H
BEEBRBESFHRAT
C The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited




Established in March 1997, The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited' is wholly owned

by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government through the Exchange
Fund. It has three wholly-owned subsidiaries,
HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI), HKMC
Annuity Limited (HKMCA) and HKMC Mortgage
Management Limited (HMML).

Missions

To promote:
stability of the banking sector
wider home ownership
development of the local debt market
development of retirement planning market

Credit Ratings

S&P Moody's
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term

Local Currency A1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3

Foreign Currency A-1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3

Outlook Stable Stable

(as at 31 December 2020)
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Financial Highlights

2020 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FOR THE YEAR

Net interest income 487,726 523,991 536,209
(Loss)/profit for the year (362,124) 317,461* 126,558*
Loan purchases 38,924,070 1,876,551 287,705
Debts issuance’ 29,356,467 17,724,508 12,424,465

Net premiums written
— General insurance businesses 1,841,392 466,215 565,739
— Annulity business 2,537,928 1,630,827 2,780,240

AT YEAR END
Loan portfolio, net 43,141,592 6,928,045 6,442,064
Debt securities issued 61,909,148 39,710,963 37,292,877
Risk-in-force
— Mortgage insurance? 47,602,099 23,075,987 19,723,956
— Reverse mortgage insurance® 12,335,756 11,239,454 9,644,152

OTHER STATISTICS

Net interest margin 0.8% 1.0% 1.1%
Capital adequacy ratio 37.3% 30.2% 26.8%
Cost-to-income ratio 640.8* 58.7%* 86.0%"
Return on equity (2.4%)* 2.1%" 0.9%*

For debts with tenor of one year or above.

The risk-in-force excludes exposure that has been covered by quota-share reinsurance arrangement.

The risk-in-force includes the outstanding balance and undrawn commitment of a reverse mortgage loan, excluding exposure that has been covered by
guota-share reinsurance arrangement. Undrawn commitment refers to the amount of expected future payout to the borrower based on the payment term.
For comparison purposes, after (i) adjusting for amortisation impact of upfront commissions to banks arising from significant surge in the volume of
new mortgage insurance underwritten in 2020 to match with premium income being recognised over the loan life; and (i) excluding an accounting loss
for maintaining prudent statutory reserves based on actuarial assumptions for annuity business made by the HKMC Annuity Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the HKMC, the adjusted profit for the year, return on equity and cost-to-income ratio for 2020 would be HK$376 million, 3.5% and 44.8%
respectively (2019: HK$443 million, 4.2% and 41.8% respectively; and 2018: HK$515 million, 5.1% and 36.7% respectively, after excluding an accounting loss
of HKMC Annuity Limited).

Including the purchase of loans with the Special 100% Loan Guarantee under the SME Financial Guarantee Scheme amounted to HK$37.6 billion fully
guaranteed by the Government.
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Chairman’s Statement

Riding out the storm with full
delivery on core missions and
social objectives.

Chan Mo-po, Paul

Chairman

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic dealt an unprecedented
blow to the global economy which had already been facing
uncertainties arising from geopolitical tensions. Many major
economies reported contractions of varying degrees as
economic activities were very much brought to a standstill
by the frequent introduction of various restrictive social
distancing measures in the fight against the prolonged
pandemic. In contrast, the effective containment of the
pandemic since March 2020 coupled with timely macro
policies had enabled the Mainland economy to post a
strong rebound and achieve a positive growth for the year.

In Hong Kong, the economy registered negative growth
for two consecutive years, having suffered successive
shocks from escalating China-US trade tensions, local social
incidents and the pandemic. While economic activities
were disrupted by the volatile local epidemic situation, the
residential property market was broadly stable throughout
the year. Property prices remained high given the firm end-
user demand and low-interest environment.

Purchase of Mortgage Assets

The Group purchased residential mortgage loans of about
HK$35.6 million in 2020 as ample liquidity in the market
dampened banks’ appetite for offloading mortgage assets.
Given its pivotal role to reinforce banking stability, the
Group stands ready to purchase mortgage loans from the
banking sector should the need arise.

Promoting Development of Debt Market

The Group has maintained its position as a major and active
corporate debt issuer in Hong Kong for over two decades,
playing a key role in debt market development. In 2020,
the Group issued a record amount of debt securities in
different currencies totalling around HK$58.4 billion (of
which HK$29.4 billion with a maturity of one year or above)
to satisfy its refinancing and business needs. The Group's
credit ratings are AA+ from S&P and Aa3 from Moody'’s,
same as those of the HKSAR Government.

Supporting Home Ownership

With the promotion of wider home ownership as one of its
core missions, the Group operates a Mortgage Insurance
Programme (MIP) which is an integral part of the local
property mortgage market. From its inception in 1999 to
the end of 2020, the MIP had assisted more than 168,000
families buying their homes. During the year, the Group
offered MIP cover for fixed-rate mortgages on a pilot
basis to help homebuyers mitigate interest rate volatility
risk, thereby also enhancing banking stability in the long
run. Separately, the 2019 enhancements to the MIP were
followed by a drastic surge in demand. The total amount
of loan drawn down in 2020 was HK$98.3 billion, almost
tripling that of the preceding year (2019: HK$33.3 billion).
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Chairman’s Statement

Continuing Support for Small and Medium
Enterprises

In 2020, as part of the Government's successive relief
packages to tide SMEs over the economic downturn
caused by the pandemic, the Group introduced timely a
number of enhancements to the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (SFGS) such as extending the offer period and
the maximum duration of principal moratorium, providing
interest subsidy and most notably, launching the special
100% loan guarantee product under the SFGS (100%
guarantee product). The new product is fully guaranteed
by the Government to alleviate the wage and rent payment
burdens of SMEs suffering from severe business decline
or loss. By end-2020, the Group had approved more than
25,000 applications involving a total loan amount of HK$39.7
billion under the new product. Together with the 80% and
the 90% guarantee products, the three guarantee products
under the SFGS had benefitted around 33,000 local SMEs
and 540,000 related employees.

To continue easing the cash flow pressure of SMES under
the lingering epidemic, the 2021-22 Budget announced the
extension of the application period for the 100% guarantee
product to the end of 2021 along with a number of
enhancements, including an increase of the maximum loan
amount, and an extension of both the maximum repayment
period and the principal moratorium duration. In addition,
the Government has commissioned the Group to set up a
special 100% personal loan guarantee scheme to provide
an extra financing option for individuals who have become
unemployed during the pandemic.

Promoting Development of Retirement
Planning Market

In pursuing its core mission to promote the development of
the retirement planning market, the Group launched in 2019
the "HKMC Retirement Solutions” to promote its retirement
products, namely, the Reverse Mortgage Programme, the
Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme and the HKMC Annuity
Plan. All three products under the brand provide retirees
with immediate, stable and lifelong streams of income,
which are rare on the market. Together it represents a
holistic solution for retirement planning.

For most of 2020, the Group stayed in touch with the
retirement community via digital channels due to the
epidemic. With the successful implementation of the
Group's educational initiatives, market receptiveness to the
three products has been growing progressively. A business
campaign also contributed to a notable increase of reverse
mortgage applications in the second half of the year.

In 2020, the eligible age for policyholders of the HKMC
Annuity Plan was also lowered to 60 years from 65 so as to
benefit a wider group of customers. Despite a challenging
operating environment, the annuity business of the Group
delivered a resilient performance and recorded a noticeable
growth of 56% over 2019 with total premiums received
being HK$2.5 billion.

4 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



Development of Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation (IFS) Business

Leveraging on its strong credit standing and medium-to-
long term funding capability, the Group has been furthering
its mandates of promoting banking stability and debt market
development by facilitating infrastructure investment and
financing flows. In 2020, the Group continued to accumulate
infrastructure loan assets and develop its IFS brand. The
Group operates its IFS business on prudent commercial
principles under a robust risk management framework and
will explore securitisation opportunities upon building up
an appropriate infrastructure loan portfolio and necessary
market experience.

Financial Performance for 2020

The Group reported a net loss of HK$362 million for the
year (2019: a net profit of HK$317 million). Firstly, there was
prudent accounting treatment of booking upfront sizeable
commission expenses arising from significant surge in
MIP business, with corresponding increase in premium
income being amortised over the life of each relevant loan.
Secondly, with growing annuity business, more accounting
loss for prudent statutory reserves was recorded.

Adjusting for the amortisation of upfront MIP commission
expenses to correspond with the recognition of premium
income and excluding the accounting loss of the annuity
business, the profit of the Group for the year would become
HK$376 million. Besides, notwithstanding its continuous
accounting loss, the embedded value of the annuity
business was about HK$5.4 billion, indicating that the
business should be profitable in the long term.

The capital adequacy ratio of the Group stood at 37.3%
(2019: 30.2%), providing solid capital base for further
business development. The solvency ratios of the subsidiary
for general insurance business and the subsidiary for
annuity business were both about 12 times above the
relevant minimum regulatory requirements (respective
figures in 2019: 39 times and 22 times).

Outlook for 2021

Looking ahead, both the global economy and the Hong
Kong economy are envisaged to continue to face
considerable challenges but will likely see stronger recovery
momentum in the second half of the year as the pandemic
gets under better control. Apart from the effectiveness
of the vaccination schemes, the pace of global economic
recovery will also hinge on a host of other factors such
as international trade tensions, geopolitics and possible
financial risks associated with the surging global public
debt. Against this backdrop, the Group will stay vigilant
and continue to deliver on its core missions and social
objectives.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to
fellow Board Directors, the Management and staff for their
dedicated work and tremendous support.

<

ey

Chan Mo-po, Paul
Chairman
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Organisation Structure

HKMC Annuity Limited

Long Term Insurance Business

The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited

HKMC Insurance Limited

General Insurance Business
Asset Purchase and Debt Issuance

HKMC Mortgage
Management Limited

Loan Purchase, Origination and Servicing
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Organisation Structure

Board Committee

Audit
Committee

HKMC Board

Executive Director Committee

Corporate Risk
Management
Committee

Financing and
Securitisation
Investment
Committee

Management Committee
Asset and
Liability
Committee

Credit
Committee

Transaction
Approval
Committee
Operational

Committee

Longevity

Committee

IT Steering
Committee

Executive Director
and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr Raymond LI, »

Infrastructure

Senior Vice
President
(Operations)/
Executive Director
and Chief Executive
Officer of
HKMC Insurance
Limited

Mr Clement CHAN

Senior Vice
President

(Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation)

Mr Mike CHENG

Senior Vice

President
(Finance)

Mr Raymond LIU

Senior Vice
President
(Risk)

Mr Desmond CHENG

General Counsel

Ms Feliciana CHEUNG

Vice President
(Marketing and
Business Development)
Ms Angela LEUNG

Vice President
(SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme
Operations of
HKMC Insurance Limited)
Ms Irene MOK

Vice President
(Insurance Business
Operations of
HKMC Insurance Limited)
Mr Maurice YIP

Vice President
(Operations)
Mr Kris YEUNG

Head of Infrastructure Risk
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Francis OR

Co-Head of
Infrastructure
Investment
Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation
Mr Calvin TAN

Vice President
(Information Technology)
Mr Alex LUK

Financial Controller
(Financial Control)
Mr Tim PANG

Treasurer
(Treasury)
Mr Calvin TAM

Vice President
(Pricing and Quantitative Risk)
Mr Mickey CHAN

Vice President
(Information Risk Management)
Mr Alan WU

Vice President
(Risk Management)
Ms Kathleen YEUNG

Counsel
Ms Celia CHAU

Counsel
Ms Grace LEE

Chief Compliance
Officer’

(Counsel)
Mr LIM Merng Phang

Counsel
Ms Ines WEI

Vice President
(Administration and
Human Resources)
Ms Joyce WONG

! Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer through the General Counsel

2 Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer on daily administrative function
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Chief Internal

Auditor?
Mr Victor CHIU




HKMCI Board

Board Committee

Audit
Committee

Management Committee

Risk

Executive Director

and

Chief Executive

Officer
Mr Clement CHAN

Committee

Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer on daily administrative function
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Vice President

(Insurance Business
Operations)

Mr Maurice YIP

Vice President

(SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme Operations)

Ms Irene MOK

Internal Audit’
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Organisation Structure

HKMCA Board

Board Committee Board Committee

Audit
Committee

Risk
Committee

Executive Director
and Chief Executive
Officer

Management Committee

Risk
Management
Management Té:am

Committee

Internal

Audit’

1 Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer on daily administrative function
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Board of Directors

Fad |
The Hon. Paul CHAN Mo-po, GBM, GBS, MH, JP Mr Eddie YUE Wai-man, Jp
Chairman and Executive Director Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
Financial Secretary Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Mr Howard LEE Tat-chi, Jp Mr Raymond LI Ling-cheung, Jp The Hon. Christopher HUI Ching-yu, Jp
Executive Director Executive Director and Non-Executive Director
Deputy Chief Executive Chief Executive Officer Secretary for Financial Services
Hong Kong Monetary Authority Senior Executive Director and the Treasury
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (appointed on 25 May 2020)

The Hon. Frank CHAN Fan, Jp The Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, 68s, Jp The Hon. Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, Jp

Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director

Secretary for Transport and Housing Member of Executive Council Member of Executive Council
Member of Legislative Council Member of Legislative Council
Managing Director Partner, Cheung & Yeung, Solicitors

Forward Winsome Industries Limited
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Professor CHAN Ka-keung, GBS, JP
Non-Executive Director

Adjunct Professor

The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP
Non-Executive Director

Managing Director — Assurance

BDO Limited

Mr James Henry LAU Jr., Jp
Non-Executive Director
(retired on 25 May 2020)

Ms Anita FUNG Yuen-mei, BBS, JP Mr Huen WONG, BBs, JP

Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director Principal (Hong Kong Office)
Hang Lung Properties Limited Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson

Mr Leong CHEUNG
Non-Executive Director

Executive Director, Charities and Community
The Hong Kong Jockey Club

VaN
L\
Mr Dennis KWOK Wing-hang

Non-Executive Director
(retired on 25 May 2020)
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Highlights of the Year

HKMC Retirement Solutions
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Highlights of the Year

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Collaboration with

Business Partners
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Corporate Social Responsibility

In recognition of the Corporation’s contribution to the
community and its commitment to corporate social
responsibility (CSR), the Corporation has been awarded
the Caring Organisation Logo by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service since 2008. The Corporation has also
been receiving, since 2014, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority’s Good MPF Employer Award, which
is given in appreciation of employers who place a high
value on their employees’ retirement needs. As a socially
responsible organisation, the Group cares for its employees
and the community. The Group underlines its commitment
to CSR by caring for its employees’ well-being, participating
in charity activities and implementing environmental
protection measures.

Care for Employees

Diversity and Inclusion

The Group is committed to creating, promoting and
maintaining an environment which provides equal
opportunities for staff in all areas of human resources
management, including recruitment, terms and conditions
of employment, promotion, compensation and benefits,
and training as well as corporate-sponsored social and
recreational programmes. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group has developed an Equal Opportunities
Policy and provides various facilities to cater for the needs
of different employees such as a breastfeeding room.

The Group values its employees and has a balanced gender
representation and a full range of age groups.

Gender of staff:

2020 2019
Male 46% 47%
Female 54% 53%

Age of staff:

2020 2019
50 and above 19% 19%
40 t0 49 37% 39%
30 to 39 32% 30%
Below 30 12% 12%

Staffing and Remuneration

The Group attracts and grooms talent to ensure the efficient
performance of its missions of promoting stability of the
banking sector, wider home ownership, development of
the local debt market and development of the retirement
planning market. Employees are provided with competitive
remuneration packages and fringe benefits, promising
career paths and development opportunities, and a healthy
and safe working environment. The Group also adopts
family-friendly practices by offering a five-day week to
help employees maintain a good work-life balance, as well
as comprehensive medical and dental insurance plans
that cover both employees and their family members.
Through system automation and process re-engineering,
the Group maintains a lean and efficient workforce despite
an increase in the scope of operations and the complexity
of the products it offers. In 2020, the permanent staff
establishment of the Group was 367 and the staff turnover
rate was 5.08%.

Training and Development

The Group recognises the importance of ongoing training
and devotes considerable resources to the continuous
enhancement of its employees’ professional knowledge
and skills. In 2020, the Group arranged seminars and
e-learning resources to help employees enhance both
their technical knowledge and soft skills. The Group also
sponsored employees for external job-related training and
development courses.

Training of staff:
2020 2019

Total training hours (Note) 3,300 hours 6,000 hours

Note: Some training activities were cancelled or postponed in 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Types of training:
2020 2019

Compliance/Legal Knowledge 31.4% 16.8%
Information Technology Skills 13.4% 11.6%
Managerial/Leadership Skills 0.1% 3.1%
Professional Knowledge 53.2% 46.0%
Others 1.9% 22.5%
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Employee Relations

To facilitate effective communication within the Group,
the Staff Homepage intranet facility is updated frequently
so that useful information can be shared among different
departments. There is also the Staff Suggestion Scheme,
which encourages staff to suggest improvements in the
workflow and workplace.

Health and Safety

As a caring organisation, the Group is dedicated to looking
after employees’ physical and mental health. An Employee
Support Programme is in place to provide confidential
external counselling services to employees and their family
members, if needed. A vaccination programme for the
prevention of influenza and health-check programmes at
privileged rates were also offered to employees in 2020.

Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the Group made
adjustments to the work arrangements for employees
with the objective of ensuring continued operations while
safeguarding the well-being of employees. During the year,
work-from-home (WFH) and split-team work arrangements
were adopted.

Care for the Community

Charities and Social Activities

The Group promotes various charitable and community
functions and employees are encouraged to support
charity activities and join voluntary work organised by
the Group’s volunteer team, Caring League. In 2020, the
Group organised Dress Casual Day to raise funds for the
Community Chest. In addition, the Caring League partnered
with HOPE Worldwide for employee volunteers to visit
needy elderly people and bring them “lucky bags” with daily
necessities to welcome the Chinese New Year.

Internship and Manager Trainee Programmes

To help nurture talent for the future, the Group offers
internship programmes for undergraduates to give them
a taste of the real business world and help them better
prepare for their future careers. During the year, the Group
continued to carry out the Manager Trainee Programme
with the objective of identifying high-calibre young

executives for grooming to meet the Group’s long-term staff
development plan. Throughout the three-year programme,
the Manager Trainees will undergo on-the-job training in
different departments, take part in corporate projects and
attend structured learning and development programmes.

Environmental Protection

The Group continuously supports and implements various
green measures to create a more environmentally friendly
office and raise employees’ awareness of methods of
waste reduction and energy conservation. Employees are
encouraged to adopt paperless working practices by using
more electronic communication. They are also encouraged
to collect waste paper and used toner cartridges for
recycling. Since 2006, the Group has adopted various
measures, including better control of office temperature and
the use of LED lighting, in the interest of energy efficiency.
The Group welcomes suggestions from employees on green
office ideas and encourages its suppliers to use and offer
more environmentally friendly products whenever possible.

The Group also adopts other ongoing green measures, such
as:

Providing recycling bins for collection of paper, cans and
bottles;

e Using Forest Stewardship Council-certified (FSC) paper
for certain office stationery;

e [ssuing publications in electronic format, including
AMIGOS By HKMC e-Magazine and the in-house staff
publication, HKMConnection; and

e Adopting electronic internal administrative procedures,
including leave application, ordering of stationery items
and reservation of meeting rooms.

2020 2019

12,580 reams
704,940 kWh

Total paper consumption
Total electricity consumption (Note)

5,540 reams
706,150 kwh

Note: The premises at Units 2201-2203, 22/F, 909 Cheung Sha Wan Road
for AMIGOS By HKMC was in operation as from September 2019.
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Business Review

Performance Highlights

The major achievements of the Group for the year included:

22

helping homebuyers borrow a total of HK$98.3 billion
in mortgage loans through the Mortgage Insurance
Programme (MIP)

receiving 28 applications since the launch of the
Fixed-rate Mortgage Pilot Scheme in May 2020

approving 4,370 applications since the launch of the
Reverse Mortgage Programme (RMP) in July 2011, with
an average property value of around HK$5.6 million

issuing a total of 2,606 policies of the HKMC Annuity
Plan (Annuity Plan) in 2020 with total premiums
received at HK$2.5 billion, representing an increase
of 56% over 2019. The average premium amount per
policy also rose by 31% to HK$970,000

launching the Special 100% Loan Guarantee (100%
guarantee product) under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) in April 2020, to alleviate
the burden of paying employee wages and rents by
enterprises which are suffering from reduced income
to help minimise enterprise shutdowns and layoffs

introducing further enhancement measures to the
80%, 90% and 100% guarantee products amidst the
rapid deterioration of the business environment
following the outbreak and spread of COVID-19

extending the application period of the relief measure
under the 80% and 90% guarantee products in
the form of a principal moratorium launched in
September 2019 for 6 months to end-March 2021 to
alleviate cash flow pressure on small and medium-
sized enterprises (SMES). The maximum duration of
the principal moratorium has been increased from 12
months to 18 months

approving more than 19,300 and 2,600 applications
for loans amounting to HK$82.2 billion and HK$4.9
billion since the launch of the 80% and 90%
guarantee products in May 2012 and December 2019

respectively, benefitting more than 13,000 local SMEs
and 280,000 related employees

° approving more than 25,300 applications for loans
amounting to HK$39.7 billion under the 100%
guarantee product since its launch in April 2020,
benefitting more than 19,500 local SMES and 252,500
related employees

° being on track in executing the implementation
plan of the Group’s Infrastructure Financing
and Securitisation (IFS) business to accumulate
infrastructure loan assets and develop the IFS brand
of the Group

. purchasing about HK$35.6 million of residential
mortgage loans

o issuing a record HK$58.4 billion of debt securities
(HK$29.4 billion of which with a maturity of one
year or above), thus promoting the development of
the local debt market and maintaining the Group's
position as one of the most active Hong Kong dollar
corporate bond issuers during the year

. maintaining the Group's long-term foreign and local
currency ratings of AA+ by S&P Global Ratings (S&P)
and Aa3 by Moody'’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s)
as at end-2020, same as the HKSAR Government

° safeguarding excellent credit quality, with a non-
performing loan ratio of 0.07% across all asset classes
and over-90-day delinquency ratios of 0.01% for the
mortgage insurance portfolio and 0.05% for the Hong
Kong residential mortgage portfolio (banking sector:
0.04%) as at 31 December 2020

The Group maintained a solid financial position in 2020:

. capital adequacy ratio of 37.3%, which is well above
the minimum requirement of 8% stipulated by the
Financial Secretary

o solvency ratios of 12 times for both general insurance
business and annuity business, well above the
respective 200% and 150% minimum regulatory
requirements stipulated by the Insurance Authority
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Market Overview

General Economic Conditions

In 2020, the unpredictable COVID-19 pandemic dealt a
severe blow to the global economy which was already
facing uncertainties arising from geopolitical tensions. Many
major economies reported contractions of varying degrees
as economic activities were brought to a standstill amid
the prolonged epidemic. Since the second quarter of 2020,
effective containment of the pandemic coupled with timely
macro policies had enabled the Mainland economy to post
a strong rebound and achieve a positive growth for the
year.

In Hong Kong, the economy registered negative growth for
two consecutive years, having suffered successive shocks
from external headwinds, domestic social incidents and
the pandemic. While economic activities were hindered
by the volatile local epidemic situation, the residential
property market was generally stable throughout the year.
Property prices remained high given the firm demand
and low-interest environment, way over the affordability
of the general public. Against this backdrop, Hong Kong's
economy contracted by 6.1% in 2020 from a year earlier,
following the 1.2% annual decline in 2019.

Property Market

The residential property market registered a strong
rebound in the first half of 2020, with the overall number
and consideration of residential property transactions
increasing by 153% and 162% respectively between January
and June 2020. Since June, sentiments towards the market
have been mixed, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
contained housing market activities. Overall, the number of
residential property transactions in 2020 increased slightly
by 0.1% year on year to 59,880, while the consideration
of transactions recorded a 0.1% year-on-year decrease
(Figure 1).

Figure 1
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Transaction volumes in the primary and secondary markets
have been fluctuating throughout the year. In general,
residential property prices' recorded a 0.2% cumulative
increase in 2020, compared with a 5.5% increase in 2019
(Figure 2).

Figure 2
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Mortgage Market

Overall, the mortgage rate in Hong Kong stayed low in 2020.
The Best Lending Rates (BLRs) remained unchanged at the
range of 5% and 5.5% throughout the year. The Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) started high in the first four
months. It started to drop and remained low throughout the
rest of the year. According to the Monthly Statistics Bulletin
of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA), the one-
month HIBOR in terms of period average? moved within the
range of 0.15% and 0.83% from May to December 2020.
Mortgage lending recorded steady growth, with the total
outstanding value of all residential mortgage loans rising
by 10.6% to HK$1,673.89 billion. The gross value of new
loans drawn down? dropped by 12.7% year on year in 2020,
compared with a decrease of 0.6% in 2019 (Figure 3).

Figure 3

New Residential Mortgage Loans Drawn Down
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HIBOR-based mortgages appeared to be favoured by
borrowers for much of the year. As at December 2020,
95% of new mortgage loans were benchmarked against
the HIBOR. The proportion of BLR-based mortgages was
high at 16.5% in January 2020 but started to drop from that
point and remained low for most months of the year. As at
December 2020, BLR-based mortgages accounted for only
2.6% of the market share; whereas fixed-rate plans had no
share in the mortgage loan market throughout 2020 (Figure
4).

Figure 4

Pricing of New Residential Mortgage Loans Approved

Dec-
Nov-

2883
7233

Z953525:229

£g58

_2g

28535252

£gsg

Z853EE5EL28

£ogg

_Bg

535852

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
8 with reference to BLR [ Fixed rate
[ with reference to HIBOR W Others

Source: Hong Kong Monetary Authority

24 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



Under the HKMA's prudent supervision of the mortgage
lending sector, the asset quality of residential mortgage
loans remained excellent in 2020. The over-90-day
delinguency ratio of mortgage loans stayed at the range of
0.02-0.04% throughout the year, reflecting banks’ prudent
underwriting standards. The combined ratio, which includes
both the delinquent and rescheduled loans, also maintained
at a low level at 0.02-0.04% during the same period (Figure
5). The estimated number of residential mortgage loans in
negative equity as at end-December 2020 was 185 cases,
with an aggregate value of HK$1,060 million recorded®.

Figure 5

Delinquency Ratio of Residential Mortgage Loans
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Banking-Sector Exposure

The total outstanding value of property-related loans in 2020
amounted to HK$3,214.92 billion, representing about 43.6%
of banks’ total loans (Figure 6). Of these property-related
mortgage loans, private residential properties accounted
for HK$1,580.4 billion (end-2019: HK$1,434.8 billion) and
subsidized flats accounted for HK$93.54 billion (end-2019:
HK$78.03 billion).

Figure 6
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Asset Acquisition

While the ample liquidity in the market has led to a weak
incentive for banks to offload their assets, the Group is
prepared to provide liguidity to the market as and when
required. In 2020, the Group acquired about HK$35.6 million
of residential mortgage loans.

Funding

In 2020, global financial markets and the real economy were
faced with enormous challenges from the ongoing US-China
geopolitical uncertainties and evolving COVID-19 pandemic.
Amidst the volatile market conditions, the Group managed
to secure prudent pre-funding for loan purchases and
refinancing activities. Given the Group's strong background
as a wholly government-owned entity and its solid credit
ratings, the Group raised a record amount of debt totalling
HK$58.4 billion in 2020, HK$29.4 billion of which with a
maturity of one year or above, in a cost-effective manner.
At the end of the year, the Group’s total outstanding debt
amounted to HK$61.9 billion.

Being one of the most active bond issuers in Hong Kong,
the Group will continue to issue debt in both the local
institutional and retail markets, and diversify its funding
sources and investor base to overseas institutional markets.
This will not only help broaden the Group's funding base,
but also provide institutional and retail investors with high-
quality debt instruments to satisfy their need for portfolio
diversification and yield enhancement.

The Group has three debt issuance programmes that allow
the issuance of debt securities in an efficient and effective
manner. With its strong credit rating, the Group’s debt
issues are well received by the investment community.

Medium Term Note Programme

The Group established the multi-currency Medium Term
Note (MTN) Programme in June 2007 to broaden its
investor base and funding sources in the international
market. It was set up with an initial size of US$3 billion,
which was increased to US$12 billion in October 2020 to
meet growing demand from investors. The programme

enables multi-currency issuances and incorporates
flexible product features to increase its appeal to local and
overseas investors with different investment horizons and
requirements. An extensive dealer group comprising major
international and regional financial institutions is appointed
to support future MTN issuance and provide secondary
market liquidity.

In 2020 the Group launched 72 MTN private debt issues
totalling an equivalent of HK$29.4 billion, with a maturity of
one year or above. Together with the 72 MTN issues with a
maturity of less than one year amounting to HK$29.0 billion,
the Group has raised HK$58.4 billion through 144 issues
under the MTN Programme during the year.

Debt Issuance Programme

The Debt Issuance Programme (DIP) was established in
July 1998 targeting institutional investors in the Hong Kong
dollar debt market. It was set up with an initial programme
size of HK$20 billion, which was doubled to HK$40 billion in
2003. The DIP provides a flexible and efficient platform for
the Group to issue debt and transferable loan certificates
with a tenor of up to 15 years.

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

Dedicated to the promotion of the retail bond market in
Hong Kong, the Group pioneered a new offering mechanism
in November 2001 and established the HK$20 billion Retail
Bond Issuance Programme in May 2004. Since 2001, the
Group has issued retail bonds totalling HK$13.7 billion.
When the market environment is conducive, the Group
aims to issue retail bonds regularly to provide an additional
investment tool for Hong Kong's retail investors.

Revolving Credit Facility Provided by the Exchange
Fund

In January 1998, during the Asian Financial Crisis, the
Exchange Fund extended a HK$10 billion Revolving
Credit Facility to the Group. This Facility has provided the
Group with an important liquidity fallback to enable the
Group to maintain smooth operation under exceptional
circumstances so that it can better fulfil its mission to
promote banking and financial stability in Hong Kong.
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Following the outbreak of the global financial crisis in 2008,
the size of the Facility was increased to HK$30 billion in
December that year. In October 2020, the Facility was
further increased to HK$80 billion to provide the Group
with additional support to achieve its policy objective. Both
actions demonstrated the HKSAR Government’s recognition
of the importance of, and further support for, the Group.

The Revolving Credit Facility was used by the Group during
times of market stress in 1998 and 2008 to partially fund
the acquisition of Hong Kong residential mortgage assets
from local banks. In both cases, the loans drawn under the
Facility were fully repaid with funds raised from the Group’s
cost-effective debt issuance when the markets stabilised.
There was no drawdown under the Facility in 2020.

Credit Rating

The Group’s ability to attract investment in its debt
securities is underpinned by its strong credit ratings,
which are equivalent to those of the HKSAR Government,
according to S&P and Moody’s.

Credit Ratings of the HKMC

S&P Moody's
Short-term  Long-term  Short-term  Long-term
Local Currency A1+ AA+ P= Aa3
Foreign Currency A1+ AA+ P-1 Aa3
Outlook Stable Stable

(as at 31 December 2020)

The credit rating agencies have made favourable
assessment on the Group’s credit standing. The following
comments are extracts from the credit rating reports of
S&P and Moody's in August 2020 and November 2020
respectively:

S&P

“We equalise our ratings on HKMC with the ratings on
Hong Kong, the corporation’s sole ultimate owner. This
reflects our view of an almost certain likelihood of timely
and sufficient extraordinary support from the Hong Kong
government if needed... We believe HKMC's undertaking of

additional policy initiatives over the past several years has a
solidifying effect on its ties with the Hong Kong government,
and reinforces the integral link between the two entities.”

"HKMC has a well-established market position with a unigue
policy role to address local Hong Kong banks' liquidity and
balance sheet management needs by purchasing mortgage
and loan portfolios from banks, especially in times of
stress... A variety of stressful market conditions have
tested HKMC's business model. For example, when global
financial markets and the local economy were under stress
in late 2008 and early 2009, HKMC enlarged its mortgage
acquisitions in response to banks’ requests, and enhanced
its mortgage insurance program. However, it has tightened
the eligibility criteria for its mortgage insurance program in
recent years, in response to elevated property prices.”

“We believe that HKMC benefits from the presence and
effective oversight of its experienced and competent board
members. The management team is capable, effective,
and experienced, in our view. HKMC's strategic positioning
is clear and consistent with its capability and market
conditions. The company has always operated within
its financial and risk management standards, which we
consider to be rigorous and clear.”

“We expect HKMC to manage its funding and liquidity with
reasonable prudence. It has very strong debt capital market
access through its three senior debt programs. We expect
HKMC to maintain a healthy buffer of highly liquid assets,
which is more than sufficient to cover its short-term funding
needs.”

Moody's

“HKMC is fully owned by the Hong Kong government
through the Exchange Fund. The company carries out
policy mandates, which include the promotion of financial
and banking stability in Hong Kong; homeownership and the
development of the local debt capital market and retirement
planning market through the purchase of mortgages from
commercial banks, and the provision of mortgage insurance
and reverse mortgages through its general insurance
subsidiary. As part of its mandate to promote banking
stability, the company acts as an alternative lender of last
resort through the purchase of residential mortgages from
banks in times of stress.”
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“The government, through the Exchange Fund, provides
HKMC with a HK$80 billion revolving credit facility and
additional equity capital when necessary. If the company’s
credit profile is weakened in a stress scenario, we expect
the government to provide timely extraordinary support.
The company’s public policy mandates are closely aligned
with the government’s objectives, and its close relationship
with the government increases the likelihood of future
government support. The government has provided the
company with a HK$5 billion capital injection to set up the
annuities business and is prepared to provide more if the
business continues to expand.”

“The company has maintained very sound asset-quality
metrics since its establishment... Hong Kong's residential
mortgages have historically performed very well through
economic cycles. Even when property prices declined by
up to 70% between 1997 and 2003, the company'’s overall
mortgage delinquencies never exceeded 2.0%. The current
average loan-to-value ratio of the company’s Hong Kong
mortgages is below 40%."

“The company has very good access to capital markets
because of its strong financial fundamentals and
government affiliation... The company had sufficient liquid
assets, including the government facility, to repay all of its
outstanding debt as of the end of June 2020.”

Mortgage-backed Securitisation

The Group strives to promote the development of the
mortgage-backed securities (MBS) market in Hong Kong.
MBS is an effective financial instrument that can channel
long-term funding from the debt market to supplement the
need for long-term financing generated by mortgage loans.
Banks and financial institutions can make use of MBS to
manage risks inherent in mortgage loans, such as credit
risks, liquidity risks, interest rate risks and asset-liability
maturity mismatch risks.

The Group has issued a total of HK$13.2 billion MBS
since 1999. The US$3 billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme was established in 2001 to
provide a convenient, flexible and cost-efficient platform
for the Group to issue MBS with various product structures,
credit enhancements and distribution methods.

Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation

The Group launched the Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation (IFS) business in 2019 to accumulate
infrastructure loan assets and develop the IFS brand of the
Group.

In the early stage, the Group purchases and accumulates
infrastructure loans from commercial banks, as well
as co-finances infrastructure projects with multilateral
development banks and commercial banks.

The Group continues to participate in a step-by-step manner
in the infrastructure financing market on commercially
viable and financially sustainable terms, while observing
prudent commercial principles and risk management
policies. In response to the changing macro-economic
environment and global pandemic, the Group has taken
a prudent approach with corresponding adjustment in its
asset acquisition strategy and will remain vigilant on their
development. It will explore securitisation opportunities
after building up the infrastructure loan portfolio and
necessary experience.

Mortgage Insurance Programme

The Mortgage Insurance Programme (MIP) helps potential
homebuyers who have limited resources for substantial
down payment for the purchase of a property. From a
banking industry perspective, the MIP allows banks to
engage in higher loan-to-value (LTV) lending without
incurring additional credit risk and jeopardising the stability
of the banking system. The MIP creates a win-win situation
for both homebuyers and banks.

Over the years, the MIP has been established firmly as an
integral part of mortgage financing in Hong Kong. Demand
for the MIP increased significantly in 2020, and the volume
of loans drawn down under the MIP increased to HK$98.3
billion in 2020 from HK$33.3 billion in 2019 (Figure 7). About
86% of the MIP loans drawn, in terms of loan amount,
were secured on properties in the secondary market. This
demonstrates the importance of the MIP to homebuyers
in the secondary market. Since 1999, the MIP has helped
more than 168,000 families achieve their dream of home
ownership, with an aggregate loan drawdown of HK$499
billion.
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Figure 7

Mortgage Loan Amount Drawn Down under HKMC MIP
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Fixed-rate Mortgage Pilot Scheme

Announced in the Financial Secretary’s 2020-21 Budget, the
Group introduced a pilot scheme of fixed-rate mortgages
for 10, 15 and 20 years under the Fixed-rate Mortgage
Pilot Scheme in May 2020. It aims to provide an alternative
financing option to homebuyers for mitigating their risks
arising from interest rate volatility, thereby enhancing
banking stability in the long run. The aggregate loan amount
of this pilot scheme is HK$1 billion, and the maximum loan
amount of each private residential mortgage is HK$10
million.

HKMC Retirement Solutions

In 2019, the Group launched the “"HKMC Retirement
Solutions”, under which its retirement products, namely
the Reverse Mortgage Programme (RMP), Policy Reverse
Mortgage Programme (PRMP) and HKMC Annuity Plan, are
promoted collectively as a holistic solution to retirement
planning. A loyalty programme “AMIGOS By HKMC"
(AMIGOS) was also formed in the same year to facilitate
a close connection between the Group and its customers.
Response to the loyalty programme has been encouraging.
As at the end of December 2020, AMIGOS has successfully
recruited over 3,500 members.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak, the Group
stayed in touch with the retirement community via the
digital platform for most of the year. The inaugural issue
of AMIGOS e-Magazine was launched in April 2020, which
was the first of its kind for the Group, to promote a healthy
lifestyle and provide latest updates on the Group. It covers
a wide spectrum of topics including retirement planning,
health and wellness, leisure, arts and culture. The “"HKMC
YouTube Channel” continues to serve as an effective
platform for the Group to connect with its stakeholders and
the wider public. A series of short videos including those
on the RMP, PRMP, HKMC Annuity Plan and Fixed-rate
Mortgage Pilot Scheme have been published on the “"HKMC
YouTube Channel” to introduce the features and benefits of
different products.

In recognition of its ongoing effort and contribution to the
development and improvement of the overall financial
literacy in Hong Kong, the Group was awarded Financial
Education Champion by the Investor and Financial
Education Council for three consecutive years. Looking
forward, the Group will continue to explore collaboration
opportunities with different stakeholders to educate the
public on the benefits of "HKMC Retirement Solutions”
across different sectors in the community.

Reverse Mortgage Programme

Thanks to the Group’s ongoing efforts in educating the
public on retirement solutions, receptiveness to the RMP
has been growing over the years. More and more people
welcome the idea of using the RMP as an instrument
to generate a stable stream of monthly income after
retirement. The Group from time to time reviews the RMP
and introduces enhancement features to better cater
for the needs of retirees. During the year, the RMP was
enhanced to allow property owned by a borrower through
a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong to be
used as security, in addition to the existing arrangement
for property owned by the borrower in personal name.
Meanwhile, the Group continued to cooperate with
different stakeholders, including banks, non-governmental
organisations, professional bodies and social enterprises via
multiple platforms for public education on the RMP.
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To increase the attractiveness of the RMP, the Group
launched a business campaign via AMIGOS in late June
2020 which resulted in a significant growth of nearly 50%
in RMP applications received in the second half of 2020,
compared with the first half of the year. Moreover, many
customers expressed their heartfelt compliments for the
Group's thoughtful and value-added customer services.

Policy Reverse Mortgage Programme

To better meet the needs of retirees through an alternative
retirement planning option, the Group launched the PRMP
in May 2019 by replicating the business model of the RMP.
In 2020, an advertising campaign was rolled out on social
media platforms and on public transport to enhance public
awareness of the PRMP. Meanwhile, joint promotions with
banks and insurance companies continued to reach out
to potential borrowers through the latter's customer base.
To increase the attractiveness of the PRMP, a time-limited
promotional offer was introduced to selected customers
via AMIGOS. The Group will keep exploring collaboration
opportunities with insurance companies as referrers of new
life insurance policies potentially eligible under the PRMP.

HKMC Annuity Plan

HKMC Annuity Limited (HKMCA) aims to offer the public
an alternative option for retirement financial planning and
to foster the development of the local annuity market.
The Annuity Plan helps senior citizens to transform their
savings into a life-long stream of guaranteed, stable and
fixed annuity income to support a hassle-free retirement.
Despite a challenging operating environment, the HKMCA
has delivered a resilient performance in 2020 and
concluded the year on a strong note. As of end-2020,
total premiums received during the year stood at HK$2.5

billion, representing an increase of 56% over 2019. The
average premium amount per policy also rose by 31% to
HK$970,000.

During the year, the HKMCA continued to enhance its
product and services in order to provide a better solution
to its target segments. The HKMCA lowered the minimum
eligible age for the Annuity Plan to 60 from 65 in February
2020 to facilitate early participation of the Annuity Plan for
those in need and subsequently introduced a new Video-
Conferencing Application Service for remote application in
September 2020.

The HKMCA continued to adopt a multi-pronged promotion
strategy by engaging different celebrities and key opinion
leaders for different target segments. A well-known local
celebrity, Ms Angelina Lo Yuen-yen, was engaged in a two-
episode television commercial to highlight the key features
of a number of retirement financial tools in the second
half of 2020. With her positive and down-to-earth image,
the HKMCA has succeeded in raising public attention and
awareness of the Annuity Plan. To reach a wider market
segment, Mr Leung Wing-mo, former Assistant Director of
the Hong Kong Observatory, was also engaged to share
retirement financial tips on the social media platforms. Over
the course of the year, the HKMCA has also conducted
several online talks and seminars with large corporations
and professional bodies to further promote the concept of
life annuities and longevity risk.

To build a more target-effective platform for public
education and promotion, the HKMCA's Facebook fan
page was launched in May 2020 with the aim of sharing
retirement financial planning knowledge and daily tips with
the public in a humorous and easily digestible manner. The
launch of the Facebook fan page marked a new milestone
for the HKMCA to further expand its footprint in the social
media domain.
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Enhancements to the 80% and 90%
guarantee products under SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme

The 80% and 90% guarantee products are backed by the
Government's guarantee commitment. The 80% guarantee
product was launched in May 2012 to help SMEs obtain
loans for general working capital or purchase of equipment
or other assets to support business operations. The 90%
guarantee product was launched in December 2019 to
provide additional support to smaller-sized enterprises
and businesses with relatively less operating experience to
obtain financing. The guarantee fees are set aside to pay
default claims from participating lenders and out-of-pocket
expenses to be incurred under the arrangement, with any
shortfall to be borne by the Government. A total of 34 and
19 Authorized Institutions (Als) participate as lenders in
the 80% and 90% guarantee products respectively. The
application period for the 80% and 90% guarantee products
is up to end-June 2022.

With the rapid deterioration of the business environment
following the outbreak and spread of COVID-19, the
Government announced further enhancements to the 80%
and 90% guarantee products to provide enterprises with
much-needed financial support to ease their cash flow
problem. The following further enhancements have taken
effect on 29 May 2020:

() The maximum facility amount per enterprise and its
related entities is increased from HK$15 million to
HK$18 million for the 80% guarantee product and from
HK$6 million to HK$8 million for the 90% guarantee
product;

(i) Eligibility criteria are relaxed, for a one-year period
until 31 May 2021, to cover listed companies in Hong
Kong subject to personal guarantee by shareholder(s)
directly or indirectly holding more than 50% of the
equity interest of the listed companies; and

(i) To provide an interest subsidy for a one-year period
for the facilities under the 80% and 90% guarantee
products so as to align its annual interest rate to that
of the facilities under the 100% guarantee product,
subject to a cap of 3% per annum.

In addition, the application period for the principal
moratorium arrangement under the 80% and 90%
guarantee products launched in September 2019 to alleviate
cash flow pressure of SMES has been extended to end on
31 March 2021. In September 2020, the maximum principal
moratorium period has been increased from 12 months to
18 months in aggregate and the loan guarantee period can
be extended correspondingly.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approved more
than 19,300 and 2,600 applications for loans amounting to
HK$82.2 billion and HK$4.9 billion since the launch of the
80% and 90% guarantee products, benefitting more than
13,000 local SMEs and 280,000 related employees.

Launch of Special 100% Loan Guarantee
under SME Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Financial Secretary announced in the Budget Speech
in 2020 the introduction of a Special 100% Loan Guarantee
(100% guarantee product) under the SFGS. The new
100% guarantee product aims to alleviate the burden of
paying employee wages and rents by SMEs which are
suffering from reduced income, thereby help minimise
enterprise shutdowns and layoffs. The 100% guarantee
product is applicable to SMEs in all sectors. The loans are
fully guaranteed by the Government and sold to the HKMC
after loan drawdown by participating lenders.

Eligible enterprises should have been operating for at least
three months as at end-December 2019 and have suffered
at least a 30% decline in sales turnover in any month since
February 2020 compared with the monthly average of any
quarter in 2019.
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An interest rate of the Company'’s Prime Rate minus 2.5%
per annum is charged. All guarantee fees are waived. The
100% guarantee product started to receive applications on
20 April 2020.

To further alleviate cash flow pressure on SMEs, the
Government introduced further enhancements to the 100%
guarantee product in September 2020. The maximum
loan amount per enterprise has been raised from the total
amount of employee wages and rents for 6 months to
that for 12 months, or HK$5 million, whichever is lower.
The maximum repayment period has been increased
from 3 years to 5 years. Borrowers may opt for principal
moratorium of 12 months in aggregate.

Since the launch of the 100% guarantee product up to
31 December 2020, the Group had approved 25,328
applications, involving a total loan amount of HK$39.7
billion.

The 80%, 90% and 100% guarantee products are backed by
the Government's total guarantee commitment of HK$183
billion which can be used interchangeably among the three
guarantee products.

Further to the SFGS communication campaign commenced
in 2016, the Group continued to communicate closely with
participating lenders, SME associations and chambers
of commerce and industry. During the year, the Group
arranged regular or tailor-made training and workshops
for lenders’ staff members and shared business and
claim statistics with lenders to enhance transparency and
promote more active use of the SFGS. The Group also
introduced the SFGS in seminars for SMEs to increase
public awareness of the scheme.
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The novel coronavirus which began to spread across
the globe at the start of the year has posed significant
challenges to the world economy in 2020. After major
corrections and disruptions in the first quarter of the
year, asset markets rebounded quickly amid the ultra-
loose monetary policies implemented by major central
banks and a series of relief measures launched by various
governments. With the ongoing US-China geopolitical
uncertainties and evolving global pandemic situation, the
global financial market remains challenging. In Mainland
China, the economy bounced back in the second quarter to
achieve an overall growth of 2.3% for the whole year after
the coronavirus had been well contained from March 2020.

Hong Kong's economic recession deepened in the first
half of 2020 amid the COVID-19 outbreak and recorded a
contraction of 9.0%. There was some improvement in the
third quarter and the decline of real gross domestic product
narrowed to 3.5%. However, a fourth wave of coronavirus
infections local epidemic that started in the latter part
of November added further pressure on the economy,
resulting in the unemployment rate edging up to 6.6% in the
fourth quarter as the labour market deteriorated again.

Against this backdrop, the operations of the Group's core
business operations remain resilient with solid financial
position to stand ready to face any financial turbulence
ahead in performing its strategic policy roles and attaining
its social objectives.

Income Statement

Financial Performance

Net loss for the year was HK$362 million (2019: net profit
of HK$317 million) (Table 1). The decrease in profitability
was primarily attributable to the booking of increasing
upfront commission expenses arising from significant surge
in the volume of new mortgage insurance underwritten in
one-go whereas the corresponding premium income was
amortised over the life of the respective loans, and the
Group's annuity business development which continued to
record an accounting loss as a result of maintaining prudent
statutory reserves. Adjusting for amortisation impact of
upfront commission expenses to match with premium
income being recognised and the accounting loss of
annuity business, the adjusted profit for the year and return
on equity would be HK$376 million and 3.5% respectively.
Notwithstanding the reported accounting loss of annuity
business, the embedded value of this business was about
HK$5.4 billion, indicating that the business should be
profitable in the long term.

The capital adequacy ratio stood solid at 37.3% (2019:
30.2%) so as to preserve capital for business development.
The respective solvency ratios of the Group's two insurance
subsidiaries were about 12 times (2019: 39 times) for
general insurance business and 12 times (2019: 22 times)
for annuity business, each well above the relevant minimum
regulatory requirements.

Table 1

2020
HK$ million

2019
HK$ million

Summary of financial performance

Operating (loss)/profit before impairment (435) 337
(Loss)/profit before tax (440) 337
(Loss)/profit for the year (362) 317
Return on equity (2.4%)" 2.1%'
Cost-to-income ratio 640.8%’ 58.7%'
Capital adequacy ratio 37.3% 30.2%

T After () adjusting for amortisation impact of upfront commissions to banks
arising from significant surge in the volume of new mortgage insurance
underwritten in 2020 to match with premium income being recognised
over the loan life; and (ii) excluding an accounting loss for maintaining
prudent statutory reserves based on actuarial assumptions for annuity
business made by the HKMCA, the adjusted profit for the year, return on
equity and cost-to-income ratio for 2020 would be HK$376 million, 3.5%
and 44.8% respectively (2019: HK$443 million, 4.2% and 41.8% respectively
after excluding an accounting loss for maintaining prudent statutory
reserves based on actuarial assumptions for annuity business made by
the HKMCA).

Net Interest Income

The HKMC Group earned a net interest income of HK$488
million, HK$36 million lower than that for 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to the deployment of surplus
funds to support the policy initiative of purchasing loans
with the Special 100% Loan Guarantee under the SFGS
which is non-profit making, and reduction of other average
interest-earning assets. The net interest margin was 0.8%
(2019: 1.0%) (Table 2).

Table 2
Net Interest Income 2020 2019
HKS$ million  HKS$ million
Net interest income 488 524
Average interest-earning assets 62,447 53,839
Net interest margin 0.8% 1.0%
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Net Mortgage Insurance Premium Earned

New business underwritten under the MIP increased to
HK$98.3 billion in 2020 from HK$33.3 billion in 2019. The
net premium receipts (after discount to customers) were
amortised and recognised as income in accordance with
the unexpired risks. Net mortgage insurance premiums
earned, after income amortisation and provision was
HK$398 million (2019: HK$334 million). The net upfront
commission expenses to banks surged to HK$666 million
(2019: HK$138 million) amid the significant increase in new
loans underwritten.

Net Insurance-related Results for Annuity Business
Net insurance-related results for annuity business (i.e.,
the sum of net premiums earned, net claims incurred,
benefits paid, movement in policyholders’ liabilities, and
commission and levy expenses) recorded an increased 10ss
of HK$980 million (2019: a loss of HK$387 million) as a result
of the prudent provisions for statutory reserves for policy
written and increase in annuity payments. The 2020 loss
was mainly due to the prudent statutory reserving based on
actuarial assumptions, whereas the investment returns on
capital and premiums placed with the Exchange Fund were
grouped under other income.

Other Income

Other income was HK$808 million (2019: HK$465 million),
mainly representing investment income of HK$889 million
(2019: HK$465 million) from placements with the Exchange
Fund, dividend income of HK$18 million (2019: HK$20
million) from investments, net loss of HK$65 million (2019:
net gain of HK$33 million) on investments at fair value
through profit or loss and exchange loss of HK$44 million
(2019: HK$38 million) arising primarily from US dollar
exposures in cash and debt investments. The exchange loss
was largely the net results represented by the exchange
difference from the financial assets and the marked-to-
market revaluation on the corresponding hedging swaps for
managing foreign currency exposures.

Operating Expenses

The Group continues to maintain stringent cost controls
to contain expenses and improve operating efficiency.
Amid the increase in resources utilised for supporting the
Group’s core missions and certain policy initiatives of the
HKSAR Government, operating expenses rose to HK$515
million (2019: HK$480 million), less than budget. Staff costs,
which were contained at 64.8% of total operating expenses,
amounted to HK$334 million (2019: HK$296 million).

Allowance for Impairment

Asset quality remained strong, with the delinquency ratio
of the Group’s mortgage portfolio staying low at 0.05%
(2019: 0.02%). Taking into account the deterioration in
the economy and market conditions during the year, a
provision on impairment allowance of HK$5.2 million was
recorded in 2020 (2019: HK$0.9 million), in accordance with
the approved prudent provisioning policy. During the year,
loans written off amounted to HK$0.5 million (2019: HK$0.5
million) with a recovery of HK$0.5 million (2019: HK$0.5
million).

Segmental Analysis
Table 3 below sets out the profit/(loss) before tax
contributed by various business segments for 2020.

Table 3

Asset
Purchase

and  General Life

Total
HKS million

Servicing
HKS million

Insurance
HKS million

Insurance
HKS million

Year ended 31 December 2020

Profit/(loss) before tax 200 (269) (371) (440)
Year ended 31 December 2019
Profit/(l0ss) before tax 302 163 (128) 337

The profit before tax in 2020 for asset purchase and
servicing was HK$200 million, mainly arising from net
interest income of the loan and investment portfolios.
General insurance’s loss before tax in 2020 was HK$269
million, mainly attributable to the booking of increasing
upfront commission expenses to banks arising from
significant surge in the volume of new mortgage insurance
underwritten in one-go whereas the corresponding premium
income was amortised over the life of the respective loans.
Life insurance recorded a loss before tax of HK$371 million
in 2020, mainly due to the prudent statutory reserves based
on actuarial assumptions provided for the annuity business
of the HKMCA, partially offset by the investment returns
from capital and premium placements with the Exchange
Fund. Notwithstanding the reported loss of the HKMCA, the
embedded value? of its annuity business at the end of 2020
was about HK$5.4 billion indicating that the business should
be profitable in the long term.

2 The embedded value is the sum of the total equity and the present
value of future profits.
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Financial Review

Financial Position

Loan Portfolio

During the year, the Group purchased loans with the
Special 100% Loan Guarantee under the SFGS of about
HK$37.6 billion (2019: Nil) and infrastructure loans of about
HK$1.3 billion (2019: HK$1.9 billion). After accounting for
prepayments and repayments of loan portfolios during the
year, the outstanding balance of the loan portfolio was
HK$43.1 billion (2019: HK$6.9 billion).

Investment Securities

The Group adopts a prudent, low-risk approach in managing
its surplus funds and investment activities in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Board. As
at 31 December 2020, the total investment portfolio was
HK$14.4 billion (2019: HK$17.3 billion), which included debt
investments of HK$14.1 billion and exchange-traded bond
funds and real estate investment trusts of HK$0.3 billion.
There was no default loss from debt investments.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

As at 31 December 2020, the placements with the Exchange
Fund arising from the capital investments of the HKMCI and
HKMCA and premium investments of the HKMCA amounted
to HK$16.3 billion (2019: HK$12.9 billion).

Debt Securities Issued

In 2020, the Group issued HK$58.4 billion of debt securities
under the MTN Programme. All the non-Hong Kong dollar
debts issued under the MTN Programme were hedged
into Hong Kong dollars or US dollars. The Group continued
to adopt a prudent pre-funding strategy, with the total
outstanding balance of the debt securities maintained at
HK$61.9 billion as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$39.7
billion).

Key Off-balance Sheet Exposure

Mortgage Insurance Programme

The Group operates the MIP on a risk-sharing basis with
approved reinsurers. At the end of 2020, the total risk-in-
force was about HK$54.5 billion (2019: HK$27.9 billion), of
which HK$6.9 billion (2019: HK$4.8 billion) was ceded to
approved reinsurers. The off-balance sheet risk-in-force
exposure borne by the Group increased to HK$47.6 billion
(2019: HK$23.1 billion).

The provision for outstanding claims remained steady
at 0.1% of the retained risk-in-force at year-end. The
delinquency ratio remained healthy at 0.01% (2019: 0.003%).

Reverse Mortgage Programme

The Group operates the RMP as an insurer to provide
mortgage insurance cover for a premium on reverse
mortgage loans advanced by participating lenders in Hong
Kong. After taking into account the undrawn future payout
of reverse mortgage loans along with the reinsurance
arrangement, the risk-in-force exposure borne by the Group
increased to HK$12.3 hillion (2019: HK$11.2 billion), with the
corresponding outstanding loan balance totalling HK$3.1
billion as at 31 December 2020.

Capital Management

In order to ensure that the Group would not incur excess
risk when expanding its business and balance sheet in
proportion to its capital base, capital adequacy and the use
of capital were monitored closely by the Group. During the
year, the Group was in compliance with the Guidelines on
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by the Financial
Secretary with reference to the Basel Il risk-based capital
adequacy framework.

In accordance with the Guidelines, the calculation of
the CAR follows the basis of consolidation for financial
reporting with the exclusion of regulated subsidiaries which
are subject to separate requirements on the maintenance
of adequate capital (i.e., the HKMCI and the HKMCA, as
regulated by the Insurance Authority). After excluding
the investment cost of these unconsolidated regulated
subsidiaries, the CAR remained solid at 37.3% as at 31
December 2020, well above the minimum ratio of 8%
stipulated in the Guidelines on CAR.

The solvency ratios of both the HKMCI and the HKMCA
were about 12 times as at 31 December 2020, well above
the respective 200% and 150% minimum regulatory
requirements stipulated by the Insurance Authority.

Dividend
Having considered the capital requirements for business
development, no dividend was declared for 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Risk Management

The Group operates on prudent commercial principles.
The principle of “prudence before profitability” guides the
design of the overall risk management framework and
disciplines its uses in day-to-day business execution. Over
the years, the Group has continuously made refinements
to its well-established, robust and time-tested risk
management framework to reflect changes in the markets
and its business strategies.

The Board is the highest decision-making authority
of the Group and holds ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of the
Corporate Risk Management Committee (CRC), has the
primary responsibility of formulating risk management
strategies in the risk appetite statement and of ensuring
that the Group has an effective risk management system
to implement these strategies. The risk appetite statement
defines the constraints for all risk-taking activities, and
these constraints are incorporated into risk limits, risk
policies and control procedures that the Group follows to
ensure risks are managed properly.

The CRC is responsible for overseeing the Group's various
types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level risk-
related policies, overseeing their implementation, and
monitoring improvement efforts in governance, policies
and tools. Regular stress tests are reviewed by the CRC to
evaluate the Group’s financial capability to weather extreme
stress scenarios.

The CRC is chaired by an Executive Director, with members
including the Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice Presidents,
General Counsel and senior staff from the Risk Management
Department.

The Group manages primarily credit risk, market risk,
longevity risk, property risk, operational risk, legal and
compliance risk, and leveraging risk arising from its loan
assets, guarantee portfolio, infrastructure loans, annuity
business and investment portfolio.

In addition to the CRC, the HKMC manages different risks
through various management committees such as the
Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation Investment
committee (IFSIC), Credit Committee (CC), Transaction
Approval Committee (TAC), Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO), Operational Risk Committee (ORC) and Longevity
Risk Committee (LRC). Other than the IFSIC, which is
chaired by an Executive Director, all of these management
committees are chaired by the Chief Executive Officer with
members including the relevant Senior Vice Presidents,
General Counsel, and senior staff from the relevant
functional departments.

The insurance subsidiaries also have their own Risk
Committee (RC) to monitor insurance risk and other
relevant risks. Each RC is chaired by an Executive Director
of these subsidiaries, with members including the Chief
Executive Officer, the relevant Senior Vice Presidents and
senior staff from the relevant functional departments
of these subsidiaries. The RC of the HKMCA includes
independent and non-executive directors to provide
independent risk oversight of its operation.

Credit Risk

Loan Assets and Guarantee Portfolio

The Group maintains loan and guarantee portfolios of retail
and commercial loan assets, which primarily comprise
mortgage loans. Credit risk is the Group’s primary risk
exposure. It is the default risk presented by loan borrowers
and counterparties.

(@) Default risk
To effectively address default risk, the Group adopts
a four-pronged approach to safeguard and maintain
the quality of its assets, MIP and SME guarantee
portfolios:

o careful selection of counterparties, including
Approved Sellers, Approved Servicers, Approved
Reinsurers and Lenders

o prudent eligibility criteria for asset purchase,
insurance and guarantee applications

o effective due diligence processes for mortgage
purchase, default loss, insurance and guarantee
claims

o enhanced protection for higher-risk transactions.

Losses may arise if there are shortfalls in the recovery
amount received for defaulted loans that fall under the
Mortgage Purchase Programme (MPP). To mitigate
this default risk, the Group establishes prudent loan
purchasing criteria and conducts effective due diligence
reviews as part of the loan purchase process to maintain
the credit quality of loans. In addition, depending on the
projected risk exposure of each underlying loan portfolio,
credit enhancement arrangements are agreed upon with
Approved Sellers on a deal-by-deal basis to reduce credit
losses that could arise from the borrower’s default.
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Losses may also arise from a default on loans under
the MIP's insurance coverage. Each MIP application is
underwritten by the Group in accordance with a set of
eligibility criteria and each claim from a participating bank
is reviewed by the Group to ensure the fulfiiment of all MIP
coverage conditions. As a result, the default risk for loans
with MIP coverage has been greatly reduced. To reduce
the risk of possible concentration of this default risk, the
Group transfers a portion of the risk-in-force to Approved
Reinsurers through reinsurance arrangements.

Similarly, losses may arise from a borrower’s default on
loans in the SME guarantee portfolio. The borrower’s
default risk of each guarantee application is assessed
by the lender in accordance with their credit policies.
In addition, the Group adopts prudent eligibility criteria,
conducts administrative vetting and credit reviews to better
understand the credit quality of the applications, and carries
out a due diligence review on each default claim to ensure
the loan’s compliance with the Group's eligibility criteria
and the lenders’ internal credit policies.

Credit performances of the loan and guarantee portfolios
are tracked and reported on a regular basis to provide
management with an updated credit profile to monitor the
operating environment closely for any emerging risks to
the Group, and to implement risk-mitigating measures in a
timely way.

(b)  Seller/Servicer counterparty risk
Counterparty risks may arise from the failure of an
Approved Seller/Servicer of an acquired portfolio to
remit scheduled payments to the Group in a timely
and accurate manner.

(©

()

The Approved Sellers/Servicers are subject to a risk-
based eligibility review and ongoing monitoring of
their loan servicing quality and credit standing.

Reinsurer counterparty risk

Reinsurer counterparty risk refers to the failure of
an Approved Reinsurer to make claim payments to
the Group. To mitigate reinsurer counterparty risk
effectively, the Group has a framework in place for
the assessment of mortgage reinsurers’ eligibility and
requested collateral on the risk exposures.

The Group performs annual and ad-hoc reviews of
each Approved Reinsurer to determine the eligibility
for ongoing business allocation and risk-sharing
portions.

Treasury counterparty risk

Treasury counterparty risk arises when there is
a delay or failure from treasury counterparties to
make payments with respect to treasury instruments
transacted with the Group. Treasury counterparties
are managed by a ratings-based counterparty
assessment framework and a risk-based counterparty
limit mechanism. The treasury counterparties are
continually monitored and the counterparty limits are
adjusted based on the assessment results.

Furthermore, the Group has set up bilateral collateral
arrangements with major swap counterparties to
mitigate treasury counterparty risk.
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Lender risk

The Group is exposed to lender risk in SME lending
that arises from: (a) a lender’s underwriting being
non-compliant with its credit policy; (b) a lender’s
loosely formulated credit policy that is not specific
enough or sufficiently defined for compliance; and
(c) the moral hazard of a lender being less prudent in
underwriting a guarantee-protected application. The
Group manages lender risk through the review of the
lenders’ credit policies and the due diligence reviews
on claims.

Insurer counterparty risk

Insurer counterparty risk arises when there is a
delay or failure from the life insurer in meeting its
obligations under the life insurance policy assigned
to the Group under the Policy Reverse Mortgage
Programme (PRMP). To mitigate insurer counterparty
risk, the life insurance policy to be assigned to the
Group must be issued by an insurer authorised under
the Insurance Ordinance. Furthermore, the insurers
are subject to ongoing monitoring.

At the heart of the credit risk management framework
are the CC or TAC, or the RC as in the case of the
insurance subsidiaries.

The CC or RC as appropriate is responsible for setting
the credit policies and eligibility criteria. The CC or RC
as appropriate is the approval authority for accepting
applications to become Approved Sellers/Servicers
under the MPP, Approved Reinsurers under the
MIP, Approved Lenders under the SFGS and eligible
treasury counterparties. It is also responsible for
setting risk exposure limits for counterparties. The CC
and RC monitor the operating environment closely
and put in place timely risk-mitigating measures to
manage the credit risk.

The TAC or RC as appropriate conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated
credit risks for business transactions, while taking
into consideration the latest market conditions and
business strategies approved by the Board.

Infrastructure Loans

Credit risk arises when the counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, leading
to potential or actual financial losses to the Group. The
credit risk related to the IFS business is managed through
prudent underwriting criteria and in-depth due diligence
reviews conducted by in-house expertise and independent
consultants. All investments take into consideration
transaction structures with appropriate risks and returns,
acceptable project risks and mitigation measures, including
delay risk, construction risk, performance risk, operational
risk, commercial risk, financial risk, counterparty risk,
concentration risk, legal and compliance risk, regulatory
risk, political risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and
environmental and social risks, subject to ongoing
monitoring and a review mechanism. The Group also adopts
a robust internal credit rating methodology and a loss given
default methodology to evaluate expected losses arising
from an infrastructure loan default.

In terms of the risk governance structure, a dedicated
division, inclusive of an independent risk control unit,
performs the credit assessment, day-to-day monitoring,
reporting and risk management of infrastructure
investments. The IFSIC is the governing forum to manage
the infrastructure investments and is responsible for
overseeing compliance with rules, guidelines and policies
in relation to infrastructure finance, and for approving and
monitoring the infrastructure investments.
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Market Risk
Market risk arises when the Group’s income or the value
of its portfolios decreases due to adverse movements in
market prices. Market risk consists of interest rate risk,
asset-liability maturity mismatch risk, liquidity risk and
currency risk.

@

Interest rate risk

Net interest income is the predominant source of
earnings for the Group. It represents the excess of
interest income (from the Group’s loan portfolio,
cash and debt investments) over interest expenses
(from debt issuances and other borrowings). Interest
rate risk arises when changes in market interest
rates affect the interest income associated with the
assets and/or interest expenses associated with the
liabilities.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to limit the potential adverse effects of interest rate
movements on interest income and expenses while
maintaining stable earnings growth. The interest rate
risk faced by the Group is two-fold, namely interest
rate mismatch risk and basis risk. Interest rate
mismatch risk is the most substantial risk affecting
the Group’s net interest income. It arises mainly as a
result of differences in the timing of interest rate re-
pricing for the Group's interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate mismatch
risk is most evident in those loan portfolios where
the majority of the loans are floating-rate assets
(benchmarked against the Prime Rate or HIBOR),
while the majority of the Group’s liabilities are fixed-
rate debt securities. The Group makes prudent use
of a range of financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, interest rate swaptions, basis swaps,
forward rate agreements and issuances of MBS, to
manage interest rate mismatch risk. The proceeds of

the fixed-rate debt securities are generally swapped
into HIBOR-based funds via interest rate swaps to
better match the floating-rate incomes from mortgage
assets.

The Group also uses the duration gap as an indicator
to monitor, measure and manage interest rate
mismatch risk. Duration gap measures the difference
in interest rate re-pricing intervals between assets
and liabilities. The wider the duration gap, the higher
the interest rate mismatch risk. A positive duration
gap means the duration of assets is longer than that
of the liabilities, and therefore represents greater risk
exposure to rising interest rates. A negative duration
gap, in contrast, indicates greater risk exposure to
declining interest rates.

Depending on the prevailing interest rate outlook and
market conditions, the Group proactively re-balances
the duration gap of its asset-liability portfolio under
the guidance and supervision of the ALCO.

Basis risk represents the difference in benchmark
rates between the Group’s Prime-based interest-
earning assets and its HIBOR-based interest-bearing
liabilities. However, there are only limited financial
instruments available in the market to fully hedge the
Prime-HIBOR basis risk. In general, basis risk can be
effectively addressed only when assets are based on
HIBOR to match the funding base or when related risk
management instruments become more prevalent
or economical. Over the past few years, the Group
has consciously adopted a strategy that acquires
more HIBOR-based assets. As a result, the Prime-
HIBOR basis risk for the Group has been substantially
reduced. In addition, the Group issues Prime-based
MBS and uses hedging derivatives to mitigate such
basis risk.
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Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk

The actual average life of a portfolio of mortgage
loans and infrastructure loans, which is usually
shorter than their contractual maturity, depends on
the speed of scheduled repayments and unscheduled
prepayments. Higher prepayment rates shorten the
average life of a portfolio of mortgage loans. In Hong
Kong, prepayment occurs for two main reasons: (i)
housing turnover: borrowers repaying their mortgage
loans upon the sales of the underlying properties, and
(i) refinancing: borrowers refinancing their mortgage
loans to obtain lower mortgage rates.

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk can be more
specifically characterised as reinvestment risk and
refinancing risk. Reinvestment risk refers to the risk
of a lower return from the reinvestment of proceeds
that the Group receives from prepayments and
repayments of its loan portfolio. Refinancing risk is
the risk of refinancing liabilities at a higher level of
interest rate or credit spread. The Group is exposed
to refinancing risk in the funding amount and cost of
funds when it uses short-term liabilities to finance
long-term floating-rate loan portfolios. Reinvestment
risk is managed through the ongoing purchase of
loan assets to replenish the rundown in the retained
portfolios, and through the investment of surplus
cash in debt securities and cash deposits, to fine-tune
the average life of the overall asset pool. In addition,
the Group uses the issuance of callable bonds and
transferable loan certificates to mitigate reinvestment
risk. The call option embedded in callable bonds and
transferable loan certificates allows the Group to
adjust the average life of its liabilities to match more
closely with that of the overall pool of assets.

The Group manages its refinancing risk through
flexible debt securities issuance with a broad
spectrum of maturities. This serves to adjust the
average life of the overall liability portfolio in a
dynamic fashion. In addition, refinancing risk can
be mitigated by adjusting the maturities of assets in
the investment portfolio, or off-loading loan assets
through securitisation.

(©

The Group uses the asset-liability maturity gap ratio to
measure, monitor and manage asset-liability maturity
mismatch risk to ensure a proper balance between
the average life of the Group's assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not
being able to repay its obligations such as the
redemption of maturing debt, or to fund committed
purchases of loan portfolios. The Group implements
its liquidity risk management framework in response
to changes in market conditions. The Group
continuously monitors the impact of market events
on its liquidity position, and pursues a prudent pre-
funding strategy to help contain the impact of any
global financial turmoil on its liquidity. Liquidity
risk is managed by monitoring the daily inflow and
outflow of funds, and by projecting the longer-term
inflows and outflows of funds across the full maturity
spectrum. The Group uses the liquid asset ratio to
measure, monitor and manage liquidity risk.

Given its strong background as a wholly government-
owned entity and its solid credit rating, the Group
is efficient in raising funds from debt markets with
both institutional and retail funding bases. This
advantage is supplemented by the Group's portfolio
of highly liquid investments, which is held to enable
a swift and smooth response to unforeseen liquidity
requirements. The HK$80 billion Revolving Credit
Facility from the Exchange Fund further provides the
Group with a liquidity fallback even if exceptional
market strains last for a prolonged period.

The Group manages pre-funding prudently through
well-diversified funding sources, so all foreseeable
funding commitments are met when they fall due.
This supports the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a well-balanced liability portfolio.
Such diversification allows the Group to pursue a pre-
funding strategy at the lowest possible cost, while
offering safeguards against the difficulty of raising
funds in distorted market conditions. The current
funding sources are illustrated in Table 1 below:
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Table 1: Current Funding Sources for the Corporation

Funding Source Description
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Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group's financial
position and foreign currency-denominated cash
flows. The Group manages its currency risk strictly in
accordance with the investment guidelines approved
by the Board and under the supervision of the
ALCO, which sets daily monitoring limits on currency
exposure.

In accordance with this prudent risk-management
principle, the net exposure of the foreign currency-
denominated debts issued under the MTN Programme
is fully hedged by the use of cross-currency swaps.

Transaction execution is segregated among the front,
middle and back offices to ensure adequate checks
and balances. The Treasury Department, acting as
the front office, is responsible for monitoring financial
market movements and executing transactions in the
cash, derivatives, debt and securitisation markets in
accordance with strategies laid down by the ALCO.
The Risk Management Department, assuming the
middle-office role, monitors compliance with treasury
counterparty and market risk limits. The Operations
Department, acting as the back office, is responsible
for deal verification, confirmation, settlement and the
payment process.

The ALCO is responsible for the overall management
of market risk. It follows the prudent risk management
principles and investment guidelines approved by the
Board. It is responsible for reviewing and managing
the market risk, including interest rate risk, asset-
liability maturity mismatch risk, liquidity and funding
risk, and currency risk. Regular meetings are held
to review the latest financial market developments
and formulate relevant asset-liability management
strategies.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The HKMCA places its annuity premium receipts in
the Investment Portfolio (IP) and Long Term Growth
Portfolio (LTGP) of the Exchange Fund to earn an

investment return. Furthermore, the HKMCA and the
HKMCI have been placing their paid-up capital and
retained earnings to the IP since April 2019 to manage
the return on capital. The Group is exposed to market
risk when the investment return falls short of the
expected level. The risk of loss could result from
adverse movements in interest rates, equity prices,
property prices and foreign exchange rates. The
Group actively monitors and reviews the investment
portfolio to determine the strategic asset allocation
between IP and LTGP.

The RCs of the HKMCA and the HKMCI are the
governing forums for managing all risks arising from
their placements with the Exchange Fund.

Longevity Risk

Longevity risk under the RMP and the PRMP refers to the
heightening risk of longer and larger payouts. The longer
the payout and loan period, the larger the loan balance will
accrue over time, and the lesser the buffer will be from
the enforcement of collateral to cover the outstanding
loan balance. A loss may arise if there is a shortfall in the
recovery amount after the disposal of the property.

Longevity risk under the HKMC Annuity Plan (Annuity Plan)
is the risk that the actual life expectancies of annuitants
are longer than expected, resulting in a longer stream of
monthly payouts, which in turn could materially impact the
long-term sustainability of the Annuity Plan.

The termination rate of the loans under the RMP, the PRMP
and the annuity policies under the Annuity Plan depend
largely on the mortality rate (that is, life expectancy)
of the borrowers and the annuitants respectively. The
Group takes on longevity risk through setting prudent
actuarial assumptions in mortality rates as well as future
improvement in life expectancy. An annual risk analysis
is conducted to assess the potential financial impact of
longevity risk, as well as the interaction among the various
risk factors under the RMP, the PRMP and the Annuity Plan.
The mortality assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis.
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The LRC is the governing forum that manages the longevity
risk of the Group. Its duties include approving longevity risk
management policies, hedging transactions and reviewing
longevity experiences and exposures of the Group. It also
monitors and analyses the general trend, technological
changes and their implications for human longevity.

Property Risk

Property risk arises from fluctuation in the value of
property that acts as collateral for the Group’s loan and
guarantee portfolios under the MPP, MIP and RMP. The
Group manages property risk by soliciting valuations from
professional surveyors on each property securing a loan
purchase or application, setting prudent assumptions
in the recoverable value of the collateralised property,
restricting maximum loan-to-value ratios of the loans under
the relevant programmes and conducting stress tests to
examine the impact of adverse market conditions.

The CC and RC are the governing forums that manage the
property risk of the Group.

Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses arising from
inadequacies, or the failure of internal processes, people or
systems, or external interruptions.

The Group adopts a bottom-up approach to identify
operational risk by conducting in-depth analyses of
new products, business activities, processes, system
enhancements and due diligence reviews of new
operational flows. Comprehensive validation rules,
management information system reports and audit trails
are in place to track and report any errors or deficiencies.

The Group actively manages operational risk with its
comprehensive system of well-established internal controls,
authentication structures and operational procedures.
The operational infrastructure is well designed to support
the launch of new products in different business areas.
Rigorous reviews are conducted before the implementation
of operational or system infrastructure, to ensure adeguate
internal controls are in place to mitigate operational risks.

To ensure an efficient and effective discharge of daily
operations, the Group pursues advanced technological
solutions alongside robust business logistics and controls to
carry out its operational activities and business processes.
Steps are taken to ensure the accuracy, availability and
security of these systems. The Group also takes cautious
steps to institute adequate checks and balances to ensure
its operations are controlled properly. Effective internal
controls help minimise financial risk and safeguard assets
against inappropriate use or 1oss, including the prevention
and detection of fraud.

The ORC is responsible for ensuring all line functions
in the Group maintain an effective operational risk and
internal control framework. The ORC establishes key risk
indicators to track the key operational risk items and
monitor the effectiveness of the risk-mitigating measures.
Operational risk incidents that may potentially indicate a
control weakness, a failure or non-compliance in internal
processes are logged, reported and handled for operational
risk management. The ORC is also responsible for providing
directions and resolving issues related to policies, controls
and the management of operational issues as well as
ensuring prompt and appropriate corrective actions in
response to audit findings related to operational risks and
internal controls.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal and compliance risk arises from the failure to
comply with statutory or regulatory obligations and any
unenforceability of legal documents in safeguarding the
interests of the Group.

The Corporation manages such risk with the assistance of
the Legal Office (including the Compliance Function).

The Legal Office, headed by the General Counsel, advises
the Group on legal matters. When new products or business
activities are considered, the Legal Office will advise on
the relevant laws and the necessary legal documentation.
Where appropriate, external counsel will be engaged to
assist the Legal Office in providing legal support to the
Group.
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Risk Management

The Compliance Function is part of the Legal Office and
is led by the Chief Compliance Officer, who reports to the
Chief Executive Officer through the General Counsel. Where
appropriate, the Compliance Function will engage external
counsel to advise on compliance matters.

The ORC is the governance committee for legal and
compliance risk.

Leveraging Risk

To ensure the Group would not incur excessive risk when
expanding its business and balance sheet in proportion
to its capital base, the Financial Secretary acted as the
regulator of the Group and issued the Guidelines on Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) taking reference principally from
the Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework. The
minimum CAR is set at 8%. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group's CAR was 37.3%.

The prudent use of regulatory capital is monitored closely in
accordance with the capital guidelines. The Chief Executive
Officer reports the CAR and the daily minimum ratio to the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. An early warning
system is also in place. If the CAR drops to the threshold
level of 14%, the Chief Executive Officer will alert the
Executive Directors and consider appropriate remedial
actions. If the CAR falls to 12% or below, the Board of
Directors will be informed and appropriate remedial actions
will be taken.

The capital requirements of the insurance subsidiaries are
subject to the regulatory requirements of the Insurance
Authority. As at 31 December 2020, the solvency ratios of
both the HKMCA and the HKMCI were at about 12 times.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices
The missions of the Corporation are to promote:

] stability of the banking sector

o wider home ownership

J development of the local debt market

o development of retirement planning market.

The Corporation operates on prudent commercial principles
and is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance to improve the overall accountability,
transparency and long-term sustainability of its operations.
The Corporation’s corporate governance practices are
set out in its Code approved by the Board. The Code is
premised on the principles of fairness, transparency,
accountability and responsibility to all stakeholders and has
been issued to the sole shareholder, Directors and staff
members. The Code is also available on the Corporation’s
website (www.hkmc.com.hk).

Monitoring of compliance with the Code starts with self-
assessment by each department each year, which is to be
followed by an independent review by the Chief Internal
Auditor of the Control Self-assessment Forms completed
by each department. A compliance report will then be
submitted to the Board for review. The Board is empowered
to require that appropriate action be taken in relation to any
non-compliance.

In February 2021, the Chief Internal Auditor conducted an
independent review of the Control Self-assessment Forms
provided by each department in relation to the compliance
with the Code for 2020. Based on the audit findings on the
Corporation’s internal controls systems and the completed
Control Self-assessment Forms for the year, the Chief
Internal Auditor was of the opinion that the Code had been
complied with in all material respects.

Enhancements to the Corporate Governance
Code

Maintaining a robust and sensible framework of corporate
governance for the effective and prudent management of
the Corporation is always a top corporate priority. To ensure
that the Corporation’s corporate governance practices are
commensurate with the best standards, the Corporation

will review the Code from time to time and will adopt any
relevant development in corporate governance practices.

Sole Shareholders

All the shares of the Corporation are held by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
account of the Exchange Fund.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Corporation and
promoting its success in an accountable and effective
manner. To provide strategic leadership and effective
control of the Corporation, the Board meets in person
at least four times a year to oversee the Corporation’s
business strategy and policies, budgeting and planning,
organisational and financial performance, risk management,
human resources as well as community relations. In order
to ensure that well-balanced decisions are made by the
Board, the composition of the Board includes officials from
the Government, and representatives from political parties,
banking sector and the accounting and legal professions.
Directors are encouraged to attend Board meetings to
ensure that issues are properly discussed.

The Code requires that Directors are provided with
appropriate information before Board meetings to enable
them to be updated on the affairs of the Corporation, and
make informed decisions at the meetings. During the year
under review, four Board meetings were held.

The Code also requires Directors to avoid situations which
may, or may be seen to, compromise their personal
judgement or integrity in the performance of their duties as
Directors of the Corporation or lead to conflict of interests.

Directors are requested to declare their or their respective
connected entities” material interests in any matter to be
considered by the Board. If a Director or any of his or her
connected entities has a conflict of interests in a matter
to be considered by the Board, such Director will abstain
from, and not be counted in the quorum in respect of,
voting on such matter at the Board meeting. In respect
of each financial reporting period, the Corporation will
seek confirmation from Directors in respect of their and
their respective connected entities’ material interests
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in significant transactions, arrangements or contracts
involving the Corporation or its subsidiaries or subsidiary
undertakings. Material related-party transactions between
the Corporation and its counterparties will be identified
and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements each
year in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

As at 31 December 2020, there were 13 Directors all of
whom were duly appointed by the shareholder of the
Corporation. Information about Directors is set out in the
Board of Directors section of the Annual Report and also
available on the Corporation’s website. All Directors, other
than the four Executive Directors, are non-executive and
are not actively involved in the day-to-day management of
the Corporation. Non-Executive Directors, however, do play
an important role in bringing their independent judgement,
considerable knowledge and diverse expertise to the
Board's deliberations which in turn provide effective steer
to Management in pursuit of the Corporation’s policies. The
Corporation does not remunerate its Directors.

For newly appointed Directors, the Corporation will provide
an induction briefing on the business activities, strategies
and objectives of the Corporation.

The term of a Non-Executive Director is generally one
year. Under the Articles of Association of the Corporation,
all Non-Executive Directors will retire at the next Annual
General Meeting following their appointment but are eligible
for re-election.

The Corporation maintains a directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy for its Directors and officers against legal
proceedings and other claims arising in the course of
discharge of their duties in respect of the Corporation.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During 2020, the Hon. Paul Chan Mo-po was the Chairman
and Mr Raymond Li Ling-cheung was the Chief Executive
Officer. The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
were separate and not performed by the same individual,
which ensured a clear division of responsibilities between
the Board and the executive functions of the Corporation’s
Management. The Board is responsible for laying down

strategic direction and business guidelines, approving
financial objectives and closely monitoring the Corporation’s
performance on an ongoing basis. The Chief Executive
Officer, who is accountable to the Board, is responsible for
leading Management in implementing the Board's decisions
in a proper and efficient manner. The Chief Executive
Officer also ensures that adequate information relating to
the Corporation’s business is reported to the Board on a
regular basis.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board and
its main duty is to ensure that all company secretarial
procedures are followed by the Corporation and the Board.
In addition, the Company Secretary ensures that Board
Papers are provided to Directors in a timely manner prior
to each Board meeting. Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary with a view to
ensuring that applicable laws, rules and regulations are
complied with in respect of Board proceedings.

The schedule for 2020 Board meetings was provided to
Directors in advance to facilitate Directors’ attendance
at Board meetings. The Code requires that Board Papers
should generally be sent to Directors at least seven days
before the relevant Board meeting so that Directors could
be properly briefed before the Board meeting. Board Papers
typically contain comprehensive background or explanatory
information about the agenda items and include supporting
documents, analyses, research findings, projections,
budgets and forecasts, where appropriate. However, any
Director adjudged to have a conflict of interests in an
agenda item for the Board meeting will not be provided with
the relevant Board Paper.

All the minutes of Board meetings and Audit Committee
meetings are generally taken in sufficient detail, including
the matters considered, decisions reached, concerns
raised by Directors and dissenting views expressed at
the meetings. All minutes of Board meetings and Audit
Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and made available for inspection by any Director, except
where a Director has a conflict of interests in any matter
discussed under an agenda item, the relevant minutes or
materials would be withheld from such Director.
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Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
comprised the following members:

o Mr Clement Chan, Non-Executive Director
(Chairman of the Audit Committee)

o Mr Howard Lee, Executive Director

o Prof. Chan Ka-keung, Non-Executive Director

o Ms Anita Fung, Non-Executive Director

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Corporation’s financial statements, the composition
and accounting principles adopted in such statements,
the results of the financial audits, and the Corporation’s
management procedures to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of its internal controls systems.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings with
Management, the Chief Internal Auditor and external
auditor. The Audit Committee also meets on an ad hoc
basis to consider special issues requiring its attention. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee summarises the reviews
conducted by the Audit Committee, and highlights any
major issues in a report for submission to the Board for
Directors’ consideration. In 2020, the Audit Committee held
two meetings.

Internal Auditor

The Group Internal Audit (GIA) Department operates
independent of Management and plays a major role in

Audit Committee Meeting

assessing the internal controls systems of the Corporation.
The GIA Department is led by the Chief Internal Auditor who
reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
on all matters relating to the Corporation’s internal
controls. The Chief Internal Auditor also reports to the Chief
Executive Officer on day-to-day administrative matters of
the GIA Department, and has authority to communicate
directly with the Chairman of the Audit Committee without
reference to Management.

Each year, the Audit Committee formally approves the
annual Internal Audit Work Plan drawn up by the Chief
Internal Auditor based on his independent risk assessment
and observations of relevant risk management topics
discussed at meetings of the Operational Risk Committee
and the Corporate Risk Management Committee.
In accordance with the annual Internal Audit Work
Plan, the GIA Department adopts a risk-based audit
approach in conducting its independent reviews of the
Corporation’s internal controls systems. After each review,
the GIA Department discusses the audit findings and
recommendations with the relevant department heads,
Senior Management and Executive Director. Internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for review
and, thereafter, to the Board for information.

Over the years, Management has adopted an active approach
in considering audit findings and recommendations made
by the Chief Internal Auditor and closely monitored their
implementation.
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External Auditor

The Corporation’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Detailed information in respect of the auditor’s
remuneration is disclosed in the Corporation’s financial
statements. The auditor is allowed to communicate freely
with the Chief Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee. To
ensure its independence with respect to the Corporation,
the auditor would issue a letter, on an annual basis, to the
Audit Committee to confirm its independence based on
the requirements under section 290 of the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. For the purpose of the
audit of the Corporation’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020, PricewaterhouseCoopers has
confirmed its independence to the Audit Committee.

Financial Reporting

The Corporation aims to present a clear, balanced and
comprehensible assessment of its performance, financial
position and prospects to its stakeholders and the general
public. Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements, and there is a statement by
the auditor regarding its reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on such financial statements.
Directors are to ensure that financial statements are
prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
status of the Corporation. The annual and interim results of
the Corporation are announced in a timely manner after the
end of each relevant period.

Internal Controls

The Board has the overall responsibility for the
Corporation’s internal controls systems and, through
the Audit Committee, conducts periodic reviews on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the systems.

Various committees have been established to ensure the
efficient operation and prudent risk management of the
Corporation. These include the Corporate Risk Management
Committee and Infrastructure Financing and Securitisation
Investment Committee which are both chaired by an
Executive Director to oversee the risks of the Corporation
from an enterprise-wide perspective, and the Operational
Risk Committee, the Credit Committee, the Transaction

Approval Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee
and Longevity Risk Committee, each chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer. Each of these committees has clear and
well-defined terms of reference. Detailed descriptions of
these committees and the risk management framework of
the Corporation are set out in the Risk Management section
of the Annual Report.

The internal controls systems are designed to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or
loss, manage risks of failure in the operational processes
and the attainment of business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for internal use and publication,
and ensure compliance with policies and applicable
legislation and regulations.

Compliance Reporting

The Compliance Function is part of the Legal Office and
is established for focused management of regulatory and
compliance risk.

The Compliance Function is led by the Chief Compliance
Officer who reports to the Chief Executive Officer through
the General Counsel. In accordance with the Group
Compliance Policy and the Group Compliance Manual
of the Corporation, the Compliance Function monitors
and advises departments of the Corporation on their
compliance practices with a focus on conflict of interests,
anti-corruption, anti-discrimination, competition, privacy
and personal data protection, anti-money laundering
and counter-terrorist financing matters for 2020. The
Compliance Function conducted compliance audits in
2020 to help ensure that departments of the Corporation
maintain robust compliance practices.

To provide transactional support, the Compliance Function
undertook reviews of and participated in the sign-off of
key programmes and programme enhancements during
the year. It also organised training to strengthen staff
knowledge on compliance matters. To enhance staff
knowledge on compliance matters, Compliance Function
implements an annual compliance test with different
modules for relevant staff from different departments and
subsidiaries of the Corporation.
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Code of Conduct

The Corporation requires the highest standards of integrity
and conduct from its staff members. The requirements
and the relevant legal obligations are clearly set out in the
Corporation’s Code of Conduct which forms part of the
Staff Handbook. The Code of Conduct sets out, in particular,
provisions in regard to potential conflict of interests that
may arise between personal interests of staff members
and the interests of the Corporation, and other provisions
designed to ensure that staff carry out their job duties
properly, ethically, impartially and free from any suggestion
of improper influence.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the
Corporation’s intranet to all staff members.

Staff members are required to give written confirmation of
their compliance with the Code of Conduct on an annual
basis. Based on the confirmation received from the staff
members, Management was satisfied that staff members
had complied with the Code of Conduct in 2020.

Communication

The Corporation attaches great importance to communication
with the public. The Annual Report of the Corporation
contains comprehensive information on its business
strategies and developments. The Corporation’s
website (www.hkmc.com.hk) offers timely access to the
Corporation’s press releases and its business information.
The Corporation also maintains a telephone hotline to
service enquiries from the public.

HKMCI and HKMCA

The Corporate Governance Codes of the HKMCI and the
HKMCA (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Corporation and
authorised insurers under the Insurance Ordinance to carry
on general insurance business and long term insurance
business in or from Hong Kong respectively) closely follow
the Corporation’s Code, incorporating best corporate
governance practices. During the year, the Board of each
such subsidiary comprises members from the Board of
the Corporation and from the Senior Management of each
such subsidiary. Directors of the HKMCI and the HKMCA
were appointed by the Financial Secretary as shareholder’s
representative of both subsidiaries. The Audit Committee
of each subsidiary provides regular reporting to the
Corporation’s Audit Committee.

In February 2021, the Chief Internal Auditor of the
Corporation and the Head of Internal Audit of the HKMCA
conducted independent reviews of the Control Self-
assessment Forms provided by each department or
function of the HKMCI and the HKMCA in relation to the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Codes of the
HKMCI and the HKMCA for 2020 respectively. Based on
the audit findings on both subsidiaries’ internal controls
systems and completed Control Self-assessment Forms
for the year, the Chief Internal Auditor of the Corporation
and the Head of Internal Audit of the HKMCA were of the
opinion that the Corporate Governance Codes of the HKMCI
and the HKMCA had been complied with in all material
respects respectively.

Conclusion

The Board was satisfied with the corporate governance
practices of the Corporation during 2020. In 2021,
the Corporation will continue to review its corporate
governance framework and improve those practices as
appropriate in the light of ongoing experience, regulatory
changes, international trends and developments in order
to enhance the Corporation’s efficiency and effective
management in pursuit of its missions.
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To the Sole Member of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 117 to 232, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

] the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended,

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

106 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



FAMRIE - BANPAR ST IR R KiE S
R BEAIN T I B R R R o

Jih 37 1

REFFEITMR 20T AL 21T IDEREST
WY AT IFU ) - FBAPRZ T RER -
HEBIT TR EMT LEERE -

KEHITEIWN

RBE I B DR RIERATN T L # - A
HEEMSHERNTITRNERNEY - XL
MRAERMNF I BEEAM SRR LB A N
HITAER » BAT P2 XL ETIEH B =
o

BANEFIHHIRFIR XTI ZDUEA AT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o  IRESHREKZ .
s  RRAHNGHITE .

o FLERMABRITYTHAD BEFRES
TR EsBERNMREERITR )

REHITEM
Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances on loan portfolios
Measurement of insurance contract liabilities

100% Guarantee Product under the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (“100% SFGS")

FATHY = T a0y 4k BB oS 4R B T B I
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRAESHREKE
Impairment allowances on loan portfolios

SEHLTHEAEMSRENMES -

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
Statements.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
loan impairment allowances of HK$2,456,000
relating to the gross mortgage loan portfolio of
HK$4,093,019,000 and the gross non-mortgage loan
portfolio of HK$2,966,316,000 (2019: HK$1,588,000,
HK$4,910,217,000 and HK$2,019,416,000 respectively).

BNAERENTRRASNTHER S RIHEFAEL =T
REFERETHInA

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s ECL
assessment on the loan portfolios included the following:

o  THIMMISUHETRRERTRBEXNNIBEE

Understanding and evaluating the internal controls
relating to the measurement of ECL;

o  NWEEEMAMMGEERZMZEH NI

Testing of the controls that management has established
over the valuation of collateral;
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REHITEY
Key Audit Matter

RATH = It ffET AL B X R = 1T I
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

REHBZYFMERSHRRE  UEITEERES
MRERE - REHTEATFAGHNRERKS
Mt EAREF MIEIT ©

The Group built an expected credit losses (“ECL")
model for estimating impairment allowances
on its loan portfolio. The Group also established
governance process and controls for the
measurement of impairment allowances of the loan
portfolio.

AREAHREREEREERAESE ANRRA
BENTHSRAREGRIT e REEIAVIEHEIA
[E 15 BT RUB R BE S A DR A &2 S RAE T 52505
SEQNBMAZMBETIRKRITRERERS - REF
RRTIZ2ENRDANTHERRRIHERERE -
ZEREFDETIESN - SATRRARTIRE R
ARREM RE TR R & I Je AIESKH) A #Y o

Impairment allowances on the loan portfolios
represent management'’s best estimate of the
expected losses within the loan portfolios as at the
balance sheet date. Allowances for impairment are
made for loans with significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and for loans that are credit
impaired with reference to the life time expected
credit losses. Allowances for impairment are made
for performing loans with reference to the 12-month
expected credit losses. These allowances are
based on reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future events and economic conditions at the
reporting date.

Wi E S FRERER S BRETSA
BEREEAEEOEE AR LS RERENEA
1 -

The audit focused on loan impairment allowances
because both the determination of the expected
impairment and the underlying calculations are
inherently subject to significant judgement by
management.

EAITEERBEE S & NI EERMALLE - X
RIRmEERITRINERRSE

Performing independent sample checking of the
collateral’s value to various external independent
valuation quotes to the extent available;

X T B AT A E KB AR INE TR RN RAER
VIR BB FRAES  BAHEZFEREERE
PAOE B B IA ROA AR R R RE I E

For loans with significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and for loans that are credit impaired,
assessing a sample of these loans for timely identification
and for testing the corresponding impairment calculation,;

T2 -_2F+ - A=+—HOMPE RS REBA
BN -

Assessing the overall reasonableness of the ECL as at 31
December 2020.

BNAERZBTIHETMARENERZHM - RRGHEXE
UESC#F e

We found that management’s judgements used in calculating
the expected impairment were supported by the evidence
obtained.

AV E R E R AITETR R R FURE R FORE MR
& REVGHEREIUE S

We also found that the models and assumptions used in
calculating the impairment allowances on the loan portfolios
were supported by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

REAGRITE
Measurement of insurance liabilities

SERTHRAMFIRERAME26

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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HKMC Annuity Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) has launched the HKMC Annuity Plan
(the “Plan”) in July 2018 and it has issued insurance
contracts with premiums amounting to HK$2,538
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$1,631 million). The issuance of the policies
under the Plan has given rise to the recognition of
insurance contract liabilities on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group based on
HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” and the Hong Kong
insurance regulatory requirements. The liabilities
recognised amounted to HK$8,138 million (2019:
HK$5,027 million), being approximately 10% of the
total consolidated liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2020 (2019: 10%).

BATRE A ORIt EMEHNF IR F 2 TIIUA -

Our audit procedures in relation to the measurement of
insurance contract liabilities included the following:

o  HEAFRRAEANGAEREIENRIIZS)

Evaluating the internal controls over the actuarial process
of the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities.

EBEFAEL T AESHBETRNS5T  RIIRKA
DREHT T A TR -

With the involvement of our PWC actuarial experts, we have
carried out the following procedures in relation to the insurance
contract liabilities:

. THEARAN T EZREREBBRREEERK ;
Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies

adopted against the Hong Kong insurance regulatory
requirements;
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REHITEY
Key Audit Matter

FATHY = T 044k 28 oS B B T BT
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

REAHAGNEEFTEEREINRETE &
MR R O IR RIBIERIL - A X LR RS T R ER
FHSEEFM - Bt - BATANEEXRFILSE
B TREAGRERE - REFHEARKRSGHOMGIT
FHERATHEN - BTIHESEBFITHEX
MR A NAFNEZRIRBEGEENRRIETE -

The valuation of insurance contract liabilities requires
the use of appropriate actuarial methodologies, and
also various investments return and operational
assumptions that are subject to a high degree
of management'’s judgement. Therefore, this is
identified as a key audit matter in our audit. There
are inherent uncertainties in the estimation of
future policyholder benefits as at the balance sheet
date. The key assumptions used in measuring the
insurance contract liabilities related to the Plan
include valuation interest rates and mortality rates.

WEREAMNEZHRER(BREENERIECTE)NEE
- AREEZRAIEAM AR : &

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used including the valuation interest rate and mortality
rates, and management'’s rationale for the judgment
applied; and

R A ONRBEH AN -

Evaluating the overall reasonableness of the insurance
contract liabilities.

REFECTRNIE  BAVUARNRREHAGRGEEMAHEER
B’RITEAYIERS -

Based on the work performed, we considered the key
assumptions and methodologies appropriate for the valuation
of the insurance contract liabilities.
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FOAERAERITINTHNES BEAFEZR(E
2B PR/ EEERERTR

100% Guarantee Product under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme (“100% SFGS")

SERTHEAMSRENMEA RHHE7 -

Refer to note 4 and note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TER > REHAELES BT NEBABRITLY -
BRIELLITY - 2 50REFINAHHEOE RETRE

T f&EH MBBFANTERXBT(TBAD iz
EHRm REHRERVSER -2 5HRIY
PR IR E IR RS © BZF R WEREY 5 7
BRE SEHEREZAD BT NERAERITR
PP R B BB L T -

During the year, the Group introduced the 100%
SFGS. Under this scheme, eligible loans originated
by the participating lenders are sold to the Group,
and The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”) provides
a financial guarantee to the Group on these loans.
The participating lenders continue to provide loan
servicing services. The net amount of interest
received from these loans less the relevant costs
incurred by the Group in operating the 100% SFGS
would be passed to the Government.

T_F_FF+_HA=+—8B BAAFIERA
BRI &I T 1% % 5T A K E (2 9 360.851Z 8 7T
b REAR™LENI% - ZERRDRETE
MEHREENEISEHRTA((FRBUSHRE AN
F9S ) IRMEKARITE -

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
these loans under the 100% SFGS amounted to
HK$36,085 million, representing 37% of the total
assets of the Group. The loans are measured at
amortised cost under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 Financial Instruments (‘HKFRS 9”).

NHEBEEEREZEVMSREENE D B P/ NERABR
THUEE 2T BITENESY - BIIEwR REHS525
RN ZEIAR REHASEAZEITZNEXEE - I
DIMZEEHNRSRMEZRAN - SERETIECED BT
NEREIERITRIA T R HSRFUA R 21T AR B 1 E 2
fE o

For the purpose of our evaluation of the appropriateness of
management’s assessment of the accounting treatments of the
100% SFGS under the HKFRS, we have reviewed the relevant
contracts entered into between the Group and the participating
lenders and between the Group and the Government, analysed
the transaction structures and the terms and conditions of
these contracts, discussed the 100% SFGS with management to
understand the substance of the transactions as well as their
bases of assessment on the accounting treatments applied.

ZNEHEEEER A BT/ NERERRITIOSITLE
HA @

We have evaluated management’'s assessment of the
accounting treatment of the 100% SFGS, including:

s SHBRZANZHALSH REHTEZEMSZRK
MRLIEFINZERHHEE S - AfkfE - BAIEE
B REHREEBRIZEFRRIANERENE LHBF
Hib - % SREHAEERBWRISREMNE HRFIE
EHEEREROBER T ARERBACEASREN

BHRUE -

o The appropriateness that the arrangement with the
Government did not cause the Group to de-recognise the
loans from its consolidated statement of financial position.
Specifically, we have considered whether the Group has
transferred the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the loans, or whether the Group retained the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows but assumed
a contractual obligation to remit the cash flows to the
Government without material delay.
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REHITEY
Key Audit Matter

BT = 1T f AL E X R T 1T B
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEEREHEBE BRI ERABFRITUOHSIT
A3  SHRFRAVELHMMAEBE Rt EER
=/

Management has formulated the accounting
treatment of the 100% SFGS, which has involved a
number of complex accounting considerations that
required judgments, namely:

s RABNZASHFZEHNRZHEMELHIAAS
SH BRI KA TR

° Whether the loans purchased from the
participating lenders should be de-recognised
as a result of the arrangement with the
Government;

o TFEESITLEN  #RENE258775 &
SHAZRMELORBRS SREFZBENEY
—HEE R

° Whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the
contract between the Government and the
Group should be considered together in the
determination of accounting treatments; and

e ZFERFNANIATRERSE [RAIXNAEE
RFE]-

° Whether the contractual cash flow of the loans
represent “solely payments of the principal and
interest” (“SPPI").

BAVARLEARRFITED - REANESTEER
ENERREE AAERERAMNREEALN R
SHZEAMSZHMREMOEERN -

We considered this as a key audit matter because
of its complexity of accounting considerations,
the extent of management judgments required,
and the significance of the impacts on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.

TREFEEVS RS ENEE2ITLEN - B3 58177
5 sf&EHzEAXR REAHERRNELHRBA
5 REHzEBX SREHAREHVSERNEGLH—
FEEMESE - AEME  BRIESDMERFANNE
RERRFMHARBE ERHHSKR -

o The appropriateness that the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group in respect of the sales
of loans to the Group and the contract between the
Government and the Group in respect of the financial
guarantee provided to the Group are considered together
in the determination of accounting treatments under
HKFRS. Specifically, we have analysed the key terms and
conditions of these contracts and the substance of the
transactions on a collective basis.

o  RBEREFERRDEEBTEMSHEENZE S U TRMEHAK
AT ERAWES K - Bk E - HANBEHEE NI
MERBAVANINAERMNE - RESERNTRLH
—B - EMmARENERS HAEAEITREMEE -

. The appropriateness of the classification of the loans into
the amortised cost measurement model under HKFRS 9.
Specifically, we have assessed whether the contractual
cash flows are SPPI and are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement, any modification of time value of
money, and other factors.

BREZMNEZKNIE  BNLAETEERBE BRI ERA
BRITO 2B FEN R REABRE-T-_TF+—
A=t—BLFEENFAMFHREMEBEES -

Based on our work performed, we considered management’s
assessment of the accounting treatment in respect of the 100%
SFGS to be appropriate for the purpose of the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

112  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



RAREEINEMERNR - HERBEF
WAKPAAREES  ENERRBEE VS IE A
AN RE o

BN FAEMSHRENBEAF RS EMES -
BAVIF AL FEAME R RREMEANEILLS

© e

FZRBNAFEMFHRENFIL  RIANREE
FREAES RS EREMEEES
SSRAMSHRIBANEFTIHIRFT AT RIS
MEEERAMREEUFFEEANERBFRNTE
I e

ETHMNEHITHIAE > WRBATVANEAMLESE
FEBARERGE  BNFEREZEEX - X
HE - BAVRBEMRE

EERRHEREMEEMFZRE
FRAERITIE

RARERIATRETE2ITMA2MMEKE
B EMEENRBEA(RRZADLFESSM
TENSEAMSRE - FNEANNNERENS
WKL ZFANFER TRIFRE RN SEHNEX
HIRBRIARPTRE RO N ERIZ Bl T 3T

EURGEaMSiREn  EFRTUMHE (&R
RELENREN  AEEABRTHRESHEE
EARNEL ARERBELEN TR
REE=FEER REHBERFILELE  H5
TEMKRAERTE

FUHEZRARITNTEE REHANMSREIRE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

114  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



s NEFEXRABSZEX ARG IEIE
HE e o RIFARIA = 1T EIE - BER
BFESFEMABENB ROERTHENL -
MMEIRESEN BEENIHLRETED
FEBERER - MREANVANAFEEAT
FREME - WA KB EEZHIDIRE IR ®
REIBRGAMSIRERPVERIE - B
ERRNWENRE  WHEMNNZRRIET
REBN - BN E L RE T RADIRE
B I PREVS B & 1T AEIE © 24T - ARRFIN

HBERAESH SREHTERSLTE -

o INEZEEMSMEROEMIIRADRN - 44
AR > BIERE  URFEaVFSHREE
BPERRIZFE -

o 3 BREHANIAERLFZEINMSER
REFER  @HNFIHEIL - WEXNZE
MERREKRBNL - HAAT REHAT
TTETT A~ BEEMHBIT - JATA=ILEL
HFAE S ETUE o

BREMEDN  BAISFITRASDE TN
FiTEE -~ HREZH EXFITRAE - BREH
AT 1R IR R A BB IE B0 (AT B AR

BNERFUHERARRER - WHRBNETA
BRMIZMHER T W ERENR - H 5178
BRIEAEMBIAN 2B VRSB PTA <
EMEAMED - LREEAOBERT - BAEER
IR ST = A D HITT Bk SR ERHI BT SE R B ©

MNEFTRRALENEIT - FABEBLS
TN ARG EMS RO FITZANES - EfA
PR IT R o BATEZHUDIRE PR X Lk
B BRADEEEM T AT AT R B X LRI
FERMFILNERT - MR EIHERATR
& A R TS ) U fE R P AR QAR
M - FADRE SRR S FODRIZEY

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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HEARM R IRENEITIME Ak AR The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

BT o auditor’s report is Wong Kin Lap.
FERKELITMESFT PricewaterhouseCoopers
Holb =110 Certified Public Accountants
55 —FE—FRA+=ARH Hong Kong, 12 May 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-EBE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2020

FE A Interest income 6 1,158,286 1,470,479
F B Interest expense 7 (670,560) (946,488)
E A B WA Net interest income 487,726 523,991
B ER 2R P Net premiums earned 8 2,992,723 1,987,650
HA A Other income 9 807,841 465,397
ZEWA B Total operating income 4,288,290 2,977,038
BRER~E 25 - BN H =R Net claims incurred, benefits paid and

REFEF ATNGE Y movement in policyholders’ liabilities 8 (3,541,468) (2,021,558)
e H 2RI Net commission and levy expenses 8 (666,467) (138,361)
ARELTH Operating expenses 10 (514,886) (479,651)
FITBEIHELE (SR), %5 Operating (loss)/profit before impairment (434,531) 337,468
BEE & Charge of impairment allowances 12 (5,178) (934)
BBLEI(S),EF (Loss)/profit before taxation (439,709) 336,534
F IR Taxation 13(a) 77,585 (19,073)
REE (SR),HF (Loss)/profit for the year (362,124) 317,461

SB123% 2320 PPy N 4R

B T i

financial statements.

The notes on pages 123 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-BE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2019
FAT
HK$'000
REE(SM), = F (Loss)/profit for the year (362,124) 317,461
HitemEiks : Other comprehensive income:
HEAgEH»ELERRE Items that are or may be reclassified
e : subsequently to profit or loss:
NPETIT A M4  Debt instruments at fair value through
s T A : other comprehensive income:
— N EA T B — change in the fair value, net (16,319) 27,311
— ST REN P — change in the loss allowance, net 12 1,024 (46)
TFEM=mEEHIANI SR Cash flow hedges recognised in other
K comprehensive income:
— NFEEZDEH — change in the fair value, net (96) -

NEFEMSE (5#H) U - Other comprehensive (loss)/income
BRI for the year, net of tax (15,391) 27,265

AEESLHE(TR),WEBH Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (377,515) 344,726

B1235 232 TN T HD T WA M SR8 — 24 The notes on pages 123 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=EBZFF+=ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2020

2019
FHIT
HK$'000
B’ ASSETS
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 14 21,900,341 27,908,184
R B RS FR Interest and remittance receivables 15 487,267 518,691
PTESRBTEA Derivative financial instruments 16 797,352 200,702
/N RUR AR R T B Loans with special 100%
B AEREER guarantee under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 17 36,084,713 =
TRAE S Loan portfolio, net 18 7,056,879 6,928,045
A% - Investment securities:
— AR EZR T AEAM — fair value through other
S EER comprehensive income 19(a) 4,418,962 4,920,402
— URAFEZREITARS — fair value through profit or loss 19(b) 265,769 378,803
— R PR AN B — amortised cost 19(c) 9,729,936 12,034,506
INCESTFR Placements with the Exchange Fund 20 16,336,835 12,881,627
T ERIN e RE AR Prepayments, deposits and other assets 22 464,371 1,337,349
128 RE R T2 7= Deferred tax assets 13(b) 179,747 79,170
BIRE R~ Reinsurance assets 26 377,502 208,991
& & &= 7= Fixed assets 23 257,395 109,864
BiE B Total assets 98,357,069 67,506,334
ki LIABILITIES
IVER RS Interest payable 24 342,501 372,874
RIASORIN R4 FF =2 R Eo A Accounts payable, accrued expenses
5= and other liabilities 25 9,641,398 5,261,217
PTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 16 281,230 299,935
= BT IR 5 Current tax liabilities 13(b) 136,745 123,115
REG AR Insurance liabilities 26 11,186,971 6,501,639
2 A{TRSIE S Debt securities issued 27 61,909,148 39,710,963
AR EE Total liabilities 83,497,993 52,269,743
& EQUITY
WNaFE AR GRARES Capital and reserves attributable to
the equity holder:
R& A Share capital 28 7,000,000 7,000,000
RE & A Retained profits 6,075,082 6,553,108
N B& 1% & Contingency reserve 1,774,571 1,658,669
NEEFES Fair value reserve 9,519 24,814
g & Hedging reserve (96) =
N B8 Total equity 14,859,076 15,236,591
AR RS Total liabilities and equity 98,357,069 67,506,334

EERET-E-_—FRA+-BHERFENT) Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 May
1T ° 2021.

RIEX YUE Wai Man, Eddie =SH LI Ling Cheung, Raymond
BT EFM7TESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director — #77& F 3¢ & £ Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

F123E 2R TN T WEEaMEIRFH—EB5 o The notes on pages 123 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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REN@ETR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-BE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2020

A& RE & REfEE AFERE NAES X1
Share Retained Contingency  Fair value Hedging
capital profits reserve reserve reserve Total
T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-N5—F—-H%%  Balanceasat1January 2019 7,000,000 6,261,498 1,632,818 (2.451) - 14,891,865
REE G| Profit for the year - 317,461 - - - 317,461
oAl Other comprehensive income - - - 27,265 - 27,265
AEELAMELT Total comprehensive income
for the year = 317,461 = 27,265 = 344,726

HRERTIRADFANKEE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
AH)50% 30 75% 2B £ premium earned from retained

profits to contingency reserve - (189,875) 189,875 - - -
HNRERREZREEF  Release of contingency reserve to

retained profits - 164,024 (164,024) - - -
F-B-h& Balance as at 31 December 2019

+ZB=1t-B£% 7,000,000 6,553,108 1,658,669 24,814 - 15,236,591

EESH Loss for the year - (362,124) - = = (362,124)
Bt ES R Other comprehensive oss - - - (15,295) (%) (15,391)
AERLETHET Total comprehensive loss

for the year - (362,124) - (15,295) (96) (377,515)

AREETIRAC FEX KR Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
AH)50% 3 75% 2B £ premium earned from retained

profits to contingency reserve - (221,219 21,219 - - -
RS REEEEHA  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 105,317 (105,317) - - -
FoB-oBE Balance as at 31 December 2020
TZA=+-B4% 7,000,000 6,075,082 1,774,571 9,519 (96) 14,859,076
F123E 22T FTEMTENLREMSIRER—EB% The notes on pages 123 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-EBE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2020

ZELSZAERE cash flows from operating activities
ZE(SM),&m Operating (loss)/profit (439,709) 336,534
AT S IEH H1FEE - Adjustment for:
FEMA Interest income (1,158,695) (1,476,616)
2 H Interest expense 545,728 881,654
A& WA Dividend income 9 (17,998) (20,019)
KBINCE S FRHRE Income from placements with
the Exchange Fund 9 (889,208) (464,693)
18 Depreciation 10 93,391 81,037
B R ITRSIUE ST LE 4 Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 124,832 64,834
BEL R Charge of impairment allowances 12 5,178 934
IEAIE RN M 4E Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 409 6,137
NEEZEIT ARSI R Net loss/(gain) on investments at fair
?bﬂ/ (Wezs) 28 value through profit or loss 9 64,597 (33,037)
TRITAEANFEED Change in fair value of
financial instruments 189,180 (7,372)
HEURFEZAIT AL Net gain on disposal of investment
2 E e A1 R W e P En at fair value through other
comprehensive income 9 - (75)
B IR P SN T R B I R Net gain on disposal of investment at
Was 2 Em amortised cost 9 (11,074) -
HEERERHTHR Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 510
SN Interest received 1,248,112 1,381,156
ERFE Interest paid (576,101) (766,248)
RITAERE R RHGRENE Cash flows from operating activities before
ez ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ%‘cij > 2 changes in operating assets
and liabilities (821,358) (15,264)
FREAHBE =N AR EETFEZR  Change in time deposits with original
RN maturity of more than three months 8,549,208 (1,338,000)
MUCCFRE S Change in remittance receivables (57,993) 14,688
TR IN ~ 3R REHMA~2E)  Change in prepayments, deposits and
other assets 890,825 (510,798)
/N ERIBRITRI TBIE S E  Change in loans with special 100%
BIRFFEIFKAED) guarantee under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (36,084,713) -
WRAEAT T Change in loan portfolio (129,774) (486,895)
MNATPRIN - NS REAM A Change in accounts payable, accrued
) expenses and other liabilities 4,239,536 152,718
RS A RA S Change in insurance liabilities, net 4,516,821 1,856,793
LR ZEEN Exchange differences 72,517 71,088
ZELSFERzINE Cash used in operation (18,824,931) (255,670)
[EANEZAN1 Taxation paid (27,209) (1,339)
2L EEINS %5 Net cash used in operating activities (18,852,140) (257,009)
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SAEWMERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2019
FHET
HK$'000
REFHNZNERE Cash flows from investing activities
N5 & E & 7 Purchase of fixed assets (46,640) (38,337)
TEANFEZHITAEAMD Purchase of investment securities
2 EREEAIEFIT R at fair value through other
comprehensive income (623,344) (1,679,612)
TSR LA N FEZE 1T AR A 8 Purchase of investment securities at fair
AR value through profit or loss (1,565) —
TV SE F2 B B A AR 51 K A UIE 55 Purchase of investment securities at
£33y amortised cost (773,375) (2,176,283)
o S e B [B1IF 5445 7R FTS 3RO Proceeds from sale and redemption of
investment securities 4,223,403 3,675,539
INSCEESFR Placements with the Exchange Fund (2,566,000) (4,682,000)
B ETRRRRE Dividend received from
listed investments 17,998 20,019
SRIESE A (ER) 20 & Net cash generated from/(used in)

A investing activities 230,477 (4,880,674)
R SE B B I & R A Net cash outflows before financing (18,621,663) (5,137,683)
MREDNZAERE Cash flows from financing activities

RITEFPTE N Proceeds from bank borrowings 15,939,666 25,418,080

EHEERTTIE R Repayment of bank borrowings (15,939,666)  (25,417,451)

KT UE 2 FT1S 50 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 27 58,244,045 31,843,819

BB K1 Tm S U5 Redemption of debt securities issued 27 (37,027,251) (29,474,462)

HENRB ARSI Principal elements of lease payments (53,637) (51,392)
B ASE A 2 Bl & Net cash generated from

financing activities 21,163,157 2,318,594
NERERMNETE (2> ) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

A cash equivalents 2,541,494 (2,819,089
FEINERERMEWME Beginning cash and cash equivalents 11,957,183 14,777,801
ICENNERZEFENETE N Effect of exchange rates on cash and

cash equivalents 1,118 (1,529)
FRYSRZERIT WM E Ending cash and cash equivalents 14 14,499,795 11,957,183

$1238 232 s T N EMEIRzRM—25 - The notes on pages 123 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

EERBISARAT —S-S6F%F 123



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2020

In 2020, the Group has adopted the following
amendments to HKFRSs which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020:

. Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition
of Material”

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
“Definition of Material” provide a new definition
of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity”.

The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of
the financial statements. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. These amendments have
no material impact on the Group’s financial
Statements.
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. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
“Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”

The amendments provide exemptions that allow
entities to continue hedge accounting for existing
hedge relationships under the assumption that
Inter Bank Offer Rate (IBOR) based hedged cash
flows are not altered as a result of the IBOR
Reform.

These amendments have no material impact on
the Group's financial statements.

The other standards effective in 2020 have no material
impact on the Group.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2020, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

o HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” establishes
a comprehensive global insurance standard
which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures
of insurance contracts. The standard requires
entities to measure insurance contract liabilities
at their current fulfilment values. The Group is
yet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations.
The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and will
be applied retrospectively with restatement of
comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date and is in the process of
assessing the financial and disclosure impact on
the adoption of the standard.
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There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2020.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities used
for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited)
over which the Group has control. The Group has provided
financial support to the structured entities during the year.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or l0ss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

126 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



2.3.

2.4,

FIBMARZH

mEMSERTAZMBWARZH
)RR EOE TR R ATIA ©

ERMEBER—TIHE SR A~ RE
BAGZ BEERA - ARED B <
A Z M B UA B S HH 7305 © 58
PRAZEE T2 T A2 Fit R
FEE ) (A& ) - B It ARRI £ X
HEBAERTAES R R~ &
TEIKE S (BRI o T ESKBRA X
i AEHSEERSRTANMES
HEFAEITISRE - B2t R
FHERESHR - itEEEEREITHIN
FEXNHE W BB T 3RFRAEAR
A& —8rH—E%R - UER5
B B P A B ¢ sk ik o

RIS ToH & B 4 7= T 2151 PR
SRR E G - MR I E 5
AENERAFBRIN - 1T % £ B
AENERAFTE - EFBRAT)
4 A = 0 KT R S 1R 3%
B/5) MR -

Hb A (FiHE 2.21 FriR B IREE
S8R E LR ERIERIM)

(@ FTHBA

%% T IR GURSS Y DAL 1
ERWA BT EHEAERT
HE—BHOMBRAF SR
YE X B SRR 8 A 5565
Rk M BRI -

(b)) BREBA

B S T RIS 3R R AL S A A
BIHBIA

2:3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subseguently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.

2.5. Financial assets

(@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(OCl), or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies investment securities when
and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Subsequent measurement of the Group’s financial
assets are classified into the following categories,
depending on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subseqguently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired.

° Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains or losses.

. Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the income statement within other gains or
losses in the period in which it arises.
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2.6.

2.7.

(c) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.

Equity securities and investment funds

Equity securities are measured at FVPL unless an election is
made to designate them at FVOCI upon initial recognition.

For equity securities at FVPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The election of FVOCI is made upon initial recognition
on an instrument-by-instrument basis and once made is
irrevocable. Gains and losses on these equity securities are
recognised in OCI, which are not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, including when they are derecognised.

Investment funds are measured at FVPL. Changes in fair
value of these funds are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. All the financial
liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), and (ii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (i) financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

130 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



2.8.

THHD R HAfm(BEERT
BRARTETRMGS) WIEEAR
FEZEITARE  WRAFER
N BRATEZEZEFTFHER - M
AEABFEIRAREAZL - ME
BEERRRTE~ENNFHEED)
THM2EREAIK - HHEFHIETE
ARFHER R ZIHEE - 2K
X LB ) 51 A2 B X AR AR A R AR

Rrif# -

HEE NIRRT EN S BAGN
5 FIARHR NP ER A - BIATUHAC
MRV R FEHIR = ER R BEA © T
FEERMBHEKATIIK - IR FHK
R R B P AS SR U4 0 S I 41 B 8] B9
EEZER - TSI B B R SR A
BOEEMERRIIA ©

FUIE @,/ 1 6 35 B 89 i 0 B EE
B,/ B HEAN ST SKEENZE
B FREEL B & A E A T RS R
ABKHIA ©

RIAFIL L RIAERIT R

IEAFER A TASHAW KRR HENRZ S
B#IA o SURAS KSR T E 5K
AWEIT S ETHIN o HKE S TR 7=
Il RENNHEE R =
AREH B LB Z R 7= H 48 KA
75 MBS B2 B R EOANA - & B P 8
LEFRIA o

AAFEEMIT A RSN S B O G R
BERTHRFZIUESFTRSBHIA o Efb
ERARTHRS S~ ERHIA - £FH
FENTEAUENGSEREEZ B
BUHSE B - A TS KRR E
IEBIA ©

2.8.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. If there
is change in the Group’s own credit risk, the changes in fair
value due to change in own credit risk are recorded in OCI.
Those notes which are designated as hedged items under
a fair value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes
subject to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of
the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.
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2.9.

The Group does not have an asset and a liability, when the
Group enters into an arrangement to pass through cash
flows from an asset and that arrangement meets specified
conditions. In these cases, the Group acts more as an agent
of the eventual recipients of the cash flows than as an owner
of the asset. Accordingly, to the extent that those conditions
are met the arrangement is treated as a transfer and
considered for derecognition even though the entity may
continue to collect cash flows from the asset. Conversely, to
the extent the conditions are not met, the entity acts more
as an owner of the asset with the result that the asset should
continue to be recognised.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including whether changes in cash flows of
the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCl and accumulated in
equity as hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement.
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Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
Ccosts to sell.
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2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Right-of-use assets on leased  shorter of the end of the useful life of
properties for own use the right-of-use asset or the end of the

lease term
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.
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The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.

2.19.Leases

(@ Asalessee
(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.
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Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment l0ss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition to leases of assets that
are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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(b) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. Finance leases are capitalised
as receivables at the lease’s commencement at an
amount equal to the investment in the lease which
represents at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The difference between the gross
receivable and the present value of the receivable
is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease
income is recognised over the term of the lease using
the net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having
the characteristics of a finance lease are accounted
for in the same manner as finance leases. Impairment
allowances are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policies for loan portfolio as set out in Note
3.2.

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities
of three months or less, including cash and balances with
banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance

contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22(b).
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2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (MIP) of the Group is accounted
for on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.

Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs), in return for a guarantee fee,
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly
people, in return for an insurance premium.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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In respect of insurance coverage on reverse mortgage
loans, the Group entered into reinsurance contract
with a reinsurer. Reinsurance contracts refer to
contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses
0N one or more insurance contracts issued by the
Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

(c) Life insurance contracts

Premiums are recognised as income when the cash is
received from the annuitant, and the policy is issued
and becomes effective after the completion of all the
underwriting procedures.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are
recognised. These liabilities are measured by using
the Modified Net Level Premium Valuation method for
long term business in accordance with the provision of
the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules. The movements in liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the income statement.

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all annuity
payments, surrenders, withdrawals and death claims
arising during the year. Surrenders, withdrawals and
death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of
future cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment
shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows,
the shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.
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2.23.Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to develop
new business initiative on infrastructure financing; (iv) to
provide mortgage insurance cover in respect of mortgage
loans and reverse mortgage loans originated by participating
lenders and secured on residential properties in Hong Kong,
life insurance policies and other assets, if applicable; (v) to
operate a scheme for the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (Government) providing
guarantee on loans advanced by participating lenders
for local SMEs; and (vi) to offer life annuity products in or
from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC), and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes oversight and approval authority
over all investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit
Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for
asset acquisition. The ALCO oversees the implementation
of market risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated risks for
business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved
by the Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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3.2. Credit risk

The Group'’s principal financial assets are its cash and short-
term funds, investment securities, placements with the
Exchange Fund and loan portfolio. The credit risk on liquid
funds and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of
the HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of
the HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk
on the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as
it is exposure to the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the loan portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews, (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation, (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism, and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

ERBBIFERAT —T-F44HK 147



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DURRAA S

o)

RIBTRESN 2R R
i T & & H 4) lb Ro b 3T A A (K
25) o Z= T A1 K7 YK TR A 4 4R an 25
HEEHNT MR ERE - RI55
KB A FNAE N 2 YK R — AR B FE R B9
A o B AT LR e OMEE AR
TR 3R B A ERL M E - BRI
PAErEERMMmRLBBERAR
PRI S R FELEF 2 E 549X
5,/ FARTTIR = 9312 - HESERRIR
AmEANTRTE MR - =T/
o —RHADT RIS o

AP NERAERITYTOE S BE
REERRME - ATARIRAIE
BN ABRTRHESTIER - &
HEF KRR - EL 15 1ES AN
E17 o

RITEMER - EHRRRINLES

RITERER BRI KIER - AR
HRX S F RS - MREEIR2E -
B RS o IR RAMNCE
EERROXERA -

TESHMTA

RERSHBENETAZRGNFE
ITERR 2 AR ATAE T A2 E I
RIRZMI - WEEP =T HIEL
= BARAATGEERAART
THEH - ARETREEZZ 5N
F - SR NTTIE 0T FF
1 o RIFE T FHE - T RIS
WHEBRAm - RERFCHFEDN
RHNF NP -

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties located in Hong Kong and the deferred
consideration (Note 25). For hire purchase receivable, the
collateral types include taxi and public light bus licenses.
Mortgage portfolio and hire purchase receivable are
generally fully secured by collateral. The current collateral
value of properties is determined with the use of public
indices on a portfolio basis. The principal collateral types
for infrastructure loan portfolio mainly consist of security
interests in the assets of the borrowers and assignment of
key project documents and/or charge over bank accounts
but the actual security varies projects to projects. For
microfinance loans, no collateral is generally sought.

Regarding loans with special 100% guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS), no collateral is sought
as the credit default risk of the loans is fully guaranteed by
the Government. Please refer to Note 17 for more details.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.
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For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o External credit rating (as far as available);
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o Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o Significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower,

o Significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLs is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.
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ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest and remittance receivables, deposits and other
assets are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, and the identified impairment allowance was
immaterial.

The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect their

credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.
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As at 31 December 2020

Loans with special 100% guarantee under the SFGS

These loans are fully guaranteed by the Government as
detailed in Note 17. The Group uses three categories
for loans which reflect their credit risk:

Stage 1. It represents performing loans with low risk
of default and the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

Stage 2. It represents loans with significant increase
in credit risk since the moment of acquisition,
for example there is interest or principal
payment overdue between 30 days and 60
days.

Stage 3: It represents loans with significant increase in
credit risk with interest or principal payment
overdue for over 60 days, or loans with
default notice submitted by banks.

Given the default loss of these loans are fully
guaranteed, no impairment allowance is recognised in
view of the minimal default risk of the Government.

E—HE E_HME F=ME BE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER FEx FET FEx

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Q=X E] Gross carrying amount 36,067,560 10,841 6,312 36,084,713
YRR & Impairment allowance = - _ _
R ER Carrying amount 36,067,560 10,841 6,312 36,084,713
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(b)  Loan portfolio

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group's ECL model on loans is as follows:

KIAMNEN
Definition of category

HWINT RS S MR R R E A
Basis for recognition of
ECL provision

F—MNEE BERATZANKREK HERBENE 120 AMBEESH (R =/ F 55

TENIERE - DF 124 R - N0 EA 5 3R 2 7 B 4F B
ITE o)

Stage 1 Borrowers have a low risk of defaultand ~ 12-month ECLs (Where the expected
a strong capacity to meet contractual lifetime of an asset is less than 12
cash flows. months, expected losses are measured at

its expected lifetime.)
ZhER RRRERNE ARSI F 8Kk / MBFRERSHR-RKLEETAE
SR E b e BRI 30K - MIRE R
BTG EZE N o

Stage 2 Loans for which there is a significant  Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 30 days past due.

EF=MEX MBERK / ZAEEKBEOKR - BF AR RIS 0T = 1 — (E D0 R B
A= S Bl o

Stage 3 Interest and/or principal repayments  Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired
are 90 days past due, borrowers with
bankruptcy or properties repossessed.

s HEEEMmATWEaARE R /SR MR~
%L/TA °©

Write-off There is no reasonable expectation of  Asset is written off

recovery on the delinquent interest
and/or principal repayments.

R EETBAT  AEH
X P45 B B AE ] {5 B2 &2 B i o
BHE AT - FERSANEB R AL R
& F A RE £ UK ER R 42 18
BN - RNEEPE TN
{EIRY -

However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider
a loan to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any enhancements held by
the Group.
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Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for
its credit risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on
a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of loan portfolio, and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

For mortgage portfolio and hire purchase receivable
assessed by portfolio base, the Group have adopted a
range of economic cycle stages for the assessment of
mortgage loans. Probabilities are assigned to different
economic cycle stages for the assessment. Based on
market outlook, Credit Committee members form a
view on the likelihood of each economic cycle stage.
The default probability is based on the weighted
average of likelihood of different economic cycle stage
and the corresponding default probability.

For infrastructure loans assessed by individual project
base, the Group have selected a forward-looking view
based on outlook of global economy, relevant regional
economic indicators, specific industry data, and
taking into consideration of the impact of any special
events. Infrastructure loans are rated under various
scenarios. The probability table is set up to determine
the probability of each scenario under each forward-
looking view.

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loan portfolio for which impairment
allowance is recognised.

E—HME E-HE E=ME

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

F-F=-FF+=-HA=+—H FET FHET THET

As at 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
ETP=R =] Gross carrying amount 7,046,183 8,607 4,545 7,059,335
B % Impairment allowance (1,949) - (507) (2,456)
NERED Carrying amount 7,044,234 8,607 4,038 7,056,879
F—MNE FE_ME F=MEL BER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F=E2—NF+=ZA=+—H FHIT THBIT THIT FHIT
As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NEIPSXIE] Gross carrying amount 6,917,554 8,167 3,912 6,929,633
B % Impairment allowance (813) - (775) (1,588)
NTETKIE] Carrying amount 6,916,741 8,167 3,137 6,928,045
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F_E2_FF+=-A=+—H The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
IR S FEK &SR December 2020 reconciles to the opening impairment
B S Wk mT allowance as follows:
E—HME E-HE E=ZME B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FHIT T T FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF Impairment allowance as
—A—H&RE at 1 January 2019
& 47 151 468 666
B E A BT 5K Loans purchased 703 = = 703
MEREER P~ £/ Net measurement of
BEITE 2 impairment arising
from transfer of stage - 285 491 776
AT XM  Movement due to
FAERE) changes in credit risk 63 - - 63
W [0 R B BT 5K Recoveries of loans not
written-off - (22) (134) (156)
766 263 357 1,386
BB EFE =M Transfer to stage 3 = (414) 414 =
Tt Write-offs - - (464) (464)
—F-NF Impairment allowance
+=—A=+—HH#H asat 31 December
BiEHE % (K53 18) 2019 (Note 18) 813 - 775 1,588
B SR8 5T RK Loans purchased 1,096 - - 1,096
MEREER R~ 4£#)  Net measurement of
BEITE 3 impairment arising
from transfer of stage - 112 298 410
AERNEZMmM  Movement due to
#iE’chJJ changes in credit risk 40 - - 40
LT [5 2 Hl 5 BT 5K Recoveries of loans not
written-off - (29) (103) (132)
1,136 83 195 1,414
HBEE MR Transfer to stage 2 = 229 (229) =
EBREE=ME Transfer to stage 3 - (312) 312 -
s Write-offs - - (546) (546)
F_EBE_FF Impairment allowance
+=—H=+—H# as at 31 December
WEK % (X 18) 2020 (Note 18) 1,949 - 507 2,456
OB B & Charge of loan
impairment allowance 1,136 83 195 1,414
I [e] B B BT 5K Recoveries of loans
previously written-off - - (474) (474)
TH=WIARWREE Total charge/(write-
®&/(E#%) back) of impairment
SE (HHE12) allowance
recognised in
profit or loss
(Note 12) 1,136 83 (279) 940
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Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-term
funds as at 31 December 2020 reconciles to the
opening impairment allowance as follows:

TR
HK$'000

F_ZE-AF—A—B&REEKSE  Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2019 946
BN FIRzmMIAR BB RES Change in the impairment allowance recognised
in profit or loss during the period 53

FT_E-NF+—A=+—HHEME Impairmentallowance as at 31 December 2019

%% (KHE14) (Note 14) 999
B T HaERIAR RVER 22 D) Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(Ff5E12) in profit or loss during the period (Note 12) 1,247
F—E-_ZTF+-H=+—HMWEE Impairment allowance as at

%% (Hx14) 31 December 2020 (Note 14) 2,246

RESHENRARS A&
B AT 17 5T R B R1T SR F
B E R IRS LT RAVERTT o
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According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only place deposits with note-issuing banks
or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
macroeconomic data to determine the ECLs for
impairment allowance. The Group has selected a range
of possible economic outcomes, based on outlook of
global economy and relevant economic indicators,
taking into consideration the impact of any special
events, as the most suitable views to the portfolio.
A probability rate table is set up to determine the
probability rate for the forward looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to be low
risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at investment
grade by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was limited
to 12-month ECLs for stage 1. During the year, the
increase in the impairment allowance was mainly due
to the change in forward-looking view on economic
outlook. There was no transfer to stages 2 and 3 during
the period.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
minimum acceptable short-term credit ratings are A-2
(Standard and Poor’s), P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).
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According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and
reviewed by ALCO.

R AE 51 BB S TG B0 1T & (45
EER - BEBREE) TR
2 REARG S H R ITE R A
B AT o AMIE 258 5K B E
B &RAT IR - R AL R 1T
ABTFRZ 4R o

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating classification as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

DAFEEL
ITAEMEE REHKARS
W WIES  TRAVIE SRR
#'®  Investment

Investment securities at

securities at amortised

FVOCI cost

Fo-E—_TF+-H=+—H TExT FExT

As at 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$’000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 77,279 77,279
AA-t0 AA+Aa3ZE Aal AA-to AA+/Aa3 to Aal 3,022,387 1,169,365 4,191,752
A-t0 A+ A3E A1 A-to A+/A3t0 A1 1,396,575 8,486,714 9,883,289
SR Total 4,418,962 9,733,358 14,152,320

ARFEZL

ITAEMEE  LHMEKAT

WEmMIES  TRAESE R

R Investment

Investment securities at

securities at amortised

FVOCI COsSt

F—F—hF+=-_A=+—H T T

As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 527,608 527,608
AA- 2 AA+/Aa3 £ Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 2,797,417 2,375,913 5,173,330
A-2 A+/A3ZE A1 A-to A+/A3 to A1 2,122,985 8,898,533 11,021,518
ToIFR* Unrated* - 233,907 233,907
B Total 4,920,402 12,035,961 16,956,363

# TV LR B 422 e £ A 7 51 ik O SIE

FRARETHELI-ZS—HNF
F AT RALA B 75l 22 8
BEAE TRNHRSIES - B
FERBSESFTBRGRE
Hal TR ETTRAE
WAEHEF=-ZT_FTF—A
AR ERRRSIES - M
HEFESIHHR

The unrated investment security at amortised cost referred to
a debt security where all of the credit ratings were withdrawn
by the credit rating agencies close to the year-end of 2019
for commercial reasons. Since the debt securities no longer
fulfilled the minimum credit rating requirements under the
investment guidelines, the Group had orderly disposed of the
debt securities by January 2020 without incurrence of loss.
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The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of investment securities for which
impairment allowance is recognised. There was no

=MER - transfer to stages 2 and 3 during the period.
E—kER EMER
Stage 1 Stage 2
F-E_Z=F+-A=1+-—H FTET TExT
As at 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$'000
TIPSR Gross carrying amount
—RAPEEKL — FVOCl
AR & s 4,418,962 = - 4,418,962
— IR B AT — amortised cost 9,733,358 - - 9,733,358
AER R Impairment allowance
— SRR AR AR B — amortised cost (3,422) - - (3,422)
ik E{E Carrying amount
— UAFERL — FVOCl
AR 2 s 4,418,962 = - 4,418,962
— IR B AT i — amortised cost 9,729,936 - - 9,729,936
14,148,898 - - 14,148,898
F—HE FEMEL E=BER BAN
NERCH Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FE-NF+=-A=+—H FHAT FHTT FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K H S (E Gross carrying amount
— UAFEEL — FVOCl
TTAE A2 E e 4,920,402 - = 4,920,402
— RME R AT Tk — amortised cost 12,035,961 - - 12,035,961
BB H Impairment allowance
— IR R AR B ik — amortised cost (1,455) - - (1,455)
MK E{E Carrying amount
— UAFEEL — FVOCl
T AR AL e 4,920,402 - = 4,920,402
— IR AT Tk — amortised cost 12,034,506 - - 12,034,506
16,954,908 - - 16,954,908
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F_EBE_FF+-A=+—H The impairment allowance for investment securities

BVIE 51 R R E R % 5 B AR as at 31 December 2020 reconciles to the opening
BERFZXKAT - impairment allowance as follows:
E—ME E-ME B=ME B#
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FHET TR TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F_E—hHF Impairment allowance as
—A—HHRE at 1January 2019
K&
— AATEERL — Fvocl
T AR £ ERE 520 - - 520
— ISR AR BIE  —amortised cost 1,442 = = 1,442
Hi TR EIAR A& Change in the
KEET impairment

allowance recognised
in profit or loss during

the period
— UAFEEA — Fvocl
TAR e kRS (46) - - (46)
— RASR ARSI — amortised cost 13 - - 13

F=ZF—hFE+=A Impairment allowance as
=+ BHREXS at31December 2019

— UARFEEL — FvoCl
TAR e mRES 474 = - 474
— RPASRL AN — amortised cost
(B3E 19(c)) (Note 19(c)) 1,455 - . 1,455
Hi T Mz IARYR(E Change in the
K BED) impairment

allowance recognised
in profit or loss during

the period
— ARFEEL —Fvocl
AR S H K 1,024 - — 1,024
— IR AGIE  —amortised cost 1,967 - - 1967

F=ZE2=ZFF+=H Impairment
=+—HHREMEKEZ allowance as at
31 December 2020

— UAFEEZR — FvocCl

T AR SRS 1,498 - - 1,498
— B ATk  — Amortised cost

(F3E19(c)) (Note 19(c)) 3,422 - _ 3,422
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() Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2020
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

TR
HK$'000

F-ZF—-NF—HF—BHHREKXS Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2019 1,442
BN FImmIAR R ER 25 Change in the impairment allowance
recognised in profit or loss during
the period 13
FZZE-AF+-_A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at
REKE (HE19() 31 December 2019 (Note 19(c)) 1,455
BN TR REK 85 Change in the impairment allowance
(BHE12) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 12) 1,967
F-E-_ZEF+-A=+—HHW Impairment allowance as at
BERK % (FHE19(c)) 31 December 2020 (Note 19(c)) 3,422

REFAERYL —NMRE
Bl ZEFEETEA
R 53 F 1) R4S A 1T
FRBEENOIEERS
ML FRFATEME
BNEFTHEHRITIHE
VAH TE RU1E 1R % Y 7 28
ERSH AEHASR
P2 2 BRA 5T A= R AR o<
Z5tiErs - FFERMEM
FRlIEHMEME - i@t
BETHRNEFTS

NERAEREHEE o
E il 7 1 & 3R A Bt A AR
HEEEEME -

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward looking views.
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(ii)

All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered with no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2020,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was limited
to 12-months ECLs under Stage 1. During the
year, the increase in the impairment allowance
was mainly due to the change in forward-looking
view on economic outlook.

Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2020 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

FHT
HK$°000

F-ZT—-hF— B —HHREK® Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2019 520
BN T IaEHIAR R EL 2E S Change in the impairment allowance
recognised in profit or loss during
the period (46)
F_F—NF+-_A=+—HF Impairment allowance recognised in OCI as
Hih e MRERIANRELR S at 31 December 2019 474
BN FImmIAR R EL 2D Change in the impairment allowance
(FfHE12) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 12) 1,024
F=B-ZF+=-H=+—HF Impairment allowance recognised in
Hih 2 mREFINN R EKZ OCl as at 31 December 2020 1,498
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2020 was limited to 12-month ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the change in
forward-looking view on economic outlook.

In preparing the ECL, Credit Committee had formed
three forward-looking views based on market
conditions, real economies and a designated period of
historical macroeconomic variables for three scenarios.
The good view assumed a high probability of optimistic
scenario outcome whereas the bad view assumed a
high probability of pessimistic scenario outcome. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks
and troughs of economic cycles were selected to
ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
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The weightings assigned to each economic scenario,
base, pessimistic and optimistic as at 31 December
2019, were 60%, 20% and 20% respectively for the
Group's infrastructure loans, deposits and debt
investments, of which the impairment allowance is
provided based on credit ratings (either external or
internal) and forms the majority of total impairment
allowance.

To reflect the updated market conditions and COVID-19
pandemic situation as at 31 December 2020, the
Group has assigned higher probability weighting to
the pessimistic scenario. The weightings assigned the
base, pessimistic and optimistic are 10%, 90% and 0%
respectively.

Sensitivity analysis of ECL

The Group applies three alternative macro-economic
scenarios (base, pessimistic and optimistic scenarios)
on the forward-looking views to reflect probability-
weighted range of possible future outcomes in
estimating ECL. The table below provides approximate
levels of provisions of impairment under the
normal, bad and good forward-looking views for the
infrastructure loans, deposits and debt investment
portfolio of the Group:

2020 2019
SHRMPAEE ERTHAFSHE
SHREHST THREHEH

Amount
change from
the reported

Amount
change from
the reported

ECL ECL
FHET F#& T

HK$'000 HK$'000

B, ORd) g O
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

(4,852) =
= 3,510
(6,046) (1,449)
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Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
into account of collateral held or other credit
enhancements are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their gross carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are
as follows:

2019

TET
HK$'000

MBE AR 22N Total risk-in-force
— BB RE S — mortgage insurance business 54,543,200 27,884,364
— HAERERRE S — other guarantee and
insurance business 15,019,982 12,510,343
69,563,182 40,394,707
® REITR (® Impaired loans
2020 2019
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
VRN SAN Gross impaired loan portfolio 507 775
BAREK E‘J‘ﬁ?ﬂmﬁﬁi% Allowance for loan impairment in
— E=MER respect of such advances — Stage 3 (507) (775)
F=E=FF+=-_A=+—H There was no collateral held for impaired loans of the
EZFE-—NF+ZA=+— Group as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
B - ANEHS TR E R
B -
(h  YeEl (h)  Repossessed properties

7 5 B W [B] 4 A 18 R B 44
BB 7= o

WEl Pl SRR AT BT
RIRHBE - FISHRUBA TR D
RAZIE I o W=l T 55
RRKRAIRET THA R | 1
BT - REEEHRFSEHE
R R HARIEE R ROR
B DEARTHEEA o

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2020 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next twelve months by around HK$11 million
(2019: HK$2 million increase) and increase by around HK$10
million (2019: HK$2 million decrease) for a similar upward
parallel shift.
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As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by around HK$90 million
(2019: HK$9 million) and the fair value reserve would have
been higher by around HK$8 million (2019: HK$10 million) as
at 31 December 2020. If interest rates had experienced a 20
basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would
have been lower by HK$89 million (2019: HK$8 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been lower by around
HK$8 million (2019: HK$10 million).

As at 31 December 2020, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$14 million higher (2019:
HK$14 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$14
million lower (2019: HK$14 million).

As at 31 December 2020, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by HK$10
million (2019: less than HK$0.1 million). Conversely, if the
Hong Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit
for the year would have been lower by HK$10 million (2019:
less than HK$0.1 million).

The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the rate of return on the placements with the Exchange
Fund, which is set annually (the placements include
Investment Portfolio which rate of return will reset in January
while the return of LTGP will only be available in March in the
following year). As at 31 December 2020, if there were an
increase/decrease of 0.1% in the current year rate of return,
it is estimated that, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s income from the placements with the Exchange
Fund would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$16.0 million (2019: HK$11.8 million).
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As at 31 December 2020, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, profit for
the year would have been around HK$3 million lower (2019:
HK$4 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been around HK$3 million
higher (2019: HK$4 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, Euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.
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B
HKD
TiERT
HK$'000

£7
uUsb
7
HK$'000

HAbsp
Other
foreign B

Total
TET
HK$'000

currencies
TAR
HK$'000

F-E-%% As at 31 December 2020
T=ZA=t+—H
ERA= Financial assets
NekEBRe Cash and short-term funds 17,617,221 2,780,350 1,502,770° 21,900,341
R ROL R Interest and remittance
receivables 295,292 114,142 77,833 487,267
THESHMTA Derivative financial instruments 797,352 - - 797,352
FRNEABRITRIT  Loans with special 100%
NBEsBARES guarantee under the SME
g Financing Guarantee Scheme 36,084,713 - - 36,084,713
AR 2 Loan portfolio, net 4,262,138 1,076,962 1,717,779" 7,056,879
AR Investment securities:
—URFEZTHITA  —FVOCI
Hiv £ Eila 900,810 3,518,152 - 4,418,962
L/( VEHERK —FVPL
AR 255,906 9,863 - 265,769
— TR SR AT K — amortised cost 647,327 9,082,609 - 9,729,936
INCEE TR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 16,336,835 - - 16,336,835
Be RAMR = Deposits and
other assets 428,635 27,151 99 455,885
ERAT LA Total financial assets 77,626,229 16,609,229 3,298,481 97,533,939
SRR Financial liabilities
R A2 Interest payable 226,545 39,775 76,181 342,501
RIAORIR - MAFFFT K% Accounts payable,
Hi 5157 accrued expenses and
other liabilities 8,857,154 782,965 1,279 9,641,398
fTHESRMIA Derivative financial
instruments 281,230 - - 281,230
By it Debt securities issued 46,148,718  10,498,417*  5,262,013* 61,909,148
ERAREA Total financial liabilities 55,513,647 11,321,157 5,339,473 72,174,277
by Net position® 11,611,996 5,288,072 (2,040,992) 14,859,076
RERRERINGG L Off-balance sheet net
Bo# notional position® (10,404,896) 7,275,309 3,248,283 118,696
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Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$0.3 billion and renminbi of HK$1.2 billion.

Amounts included loan portfolio, net in Australian dollars of
HK$1.7 billion.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$3.7 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

“Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.
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BT
HKD
TAET
HK$'000

XL
usb
THAL
HK$'000

HApsh
Other
foreign B

currencies Total

T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FT-E-hE As at 31 December 2019
+-A=+-8
ERRF Financial assets
NekEHire Cash and short-term funds 27,618,157 280,179 9848 27,908,184
RS ROL R Interest and remittance
receivables 309,931 118,975 89,785 518,691
fTHEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 200,702 - - 200,702
HAE 2T Loan portfolio, net 5,111,696 145,388 1,670,961" 6,928,045
EFRA Investment securities:
—UAYEEKITA  —FVOCI
Hit 2 mE e 1,404,577 3,515,825 - 4,920,402
— URFETY — FVPL
AR 369,511 9,292 - 378,803
— R A AR B — amortised cost 1,989,350 10,045,156 - 12,034,506
INCES TR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 12,881,627 = = 12,881,627
ReREMR Deposits and other assets 255,032 72,974 1,001,312 1,329,318
SRR B Total financial assets 50,140,583 14,187,789 2,771,906 67,100,278
R R Financial liabilities
Rif IS Interest payable 281,561 19,740 71,573 372,874
RITORIR « AT FFT R Accounts payable,
Hi 51657 accrued expenses and
other liabilities 5,087,577 172,606 1,034 5,261,217
fTHEERMIA Derivative financial
instruments 299,935 - - 299,935
By .St Debt securities issued 28,571,799 5,962,048* 5,177,116** 39,710,963
ERAREAM Total financial liabilities 34,240,872 6,154,394 5,249,723 45,644,989
Bosa Net position® 9,681,013 8,033,395 (2,477,817 15,236,591
RERBERNEE Y Off-balance sheet net
Ho# notional position®* (5,655,092) 2,962,691 2,332,734 (359,667)
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” Amounts included loan portfolio, net in Australian dollars of
HK$1.7 billion.

" Amounts included receivables from securities issued for
settlement after the reporting date in renminbi of HK$1 billion.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

* Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$3.6 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

# “Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

i “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-MERE EAAME -EBE
2R E-f ELf Fits
-MAR Over Over over REHNE Non-
Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over interest ek

1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
TR Tn THR TR TiEn THR TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

T-5-%F As at 31 December 2020
TZA=1-H
SRAT Financial assets
NeREBHRS Cashand short-term funds 9,020,807 10,520,299 2,109,572 - - 209,663 21,900,341
R E R Interest and remittance

receivables - - - - - 487,267 487,267
fTEERIA Derivative financil

instruments - - - - - 797,352 797,352

R RER Loans with special 100%
AN ERE] guarantee under the

BREERR SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 36,084,713 - - - - - 36,084,713
RAAR AR Loan portfolio, net 5476652 910,837 537,080 7,460 124,850 - 7,056,879
EHRA - Investment securities:
—UAFEEHITA  —ROC
Ethembs 544,259 2,835,879 302,829 410,023 325,972 - 4,418,962
—AFETL —FvPL
ARG = = - - - 265,769 265,769
— IR ERUAR S — amortised cost 910,933 23265 386926 3,317,001 5,091,811 - 9,729,936
ILERER Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 16,336,835 16,336,835
REREM AT Deposits and other assets 27,061 - - - - 428824 455,885
SRATEH Total financial assets 52,064,425 14,290,280 3,336,407 3,734,484 5,542,633 18565710 97,533,939
SRA Financial liabilities
RASFIE Interest payable - - - - - 342,501 342,501
RIfH0RI - IfS T35 Accounts payable,
Ethsf accrued expenses and
other liabilities 8,152,311 - - - - 1,489,087 9,641,398
fTEERIA Derivative financil
instruments - - - - - 281,230 281,230
ERARSES Debt securities issued 7,152,002 12,011,775 25,856,147 12,043,416 4,845,808 - 61,909,148
SHAGRLS Total financial liabilities 15,304,313 12,011,775 25,856,147 12,043,416 4,845,808 2,112,818 72,174,277
FESEEHROSH* Total interest sensitivity
gap* 36,760,112 2,278,505 (22,519,740) (8,308,932) 696,825
RESTATE (0% Interest rate derivatives
HEZ N E5) (notional amounts of
net position) 67,595 (11,016,852) 9,511,033 1,122,773 434,147
* RITASTESBHITAXNE X717 & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
RSIEHEE SR on the debt securities issued.
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—MAME =ZARME  —FHE
E=/MA EF ERF MIE
—MNAW Over Over Over TFENAE Non-
Upto Tmonthto  3months 1 year QOver interest B

Tmonth  3months  toTyear  to5years 5years hearing Total
BT TAR TAT TER TAR TAT TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS$'000

F-5-h% As at 31 December 2019
+=A=t+-H
ERA" Financial assets
NeRESEAS  Cashandshorttermfunds 7,392,061 19205213 1,235,938 - - 74972 27,908,184
MUFIER LS Interestand remittance

receivables - - - - - 518,691 518,691
fASRIE Derivative financial

instruments - - - - - 200,702 200,702
TRAR AT Loan portfolio, net 6,390,510 491,030 3,769 11,116 31,620 - 6928045
EHRA - Investment securities:
—UAFBEZRHITA  —FVOCl
A2 ENE - 2785328 1126045 705725 303304 - 4920402
—ULTERK —FVPL
ARG = = = - - 378,803 378,303
— IRIEEARGME  — amortised cost - 1575045 1224151 4122643 5,112,667 - 12,034,506
INCEEER Placements with the

Exchange Fund = = = = - 12881627 12,831,627
Re REMARE Deposits and other assets 72,353 - - - - 1256465 1,329,318
SRATEA Total financial assets 13,855,424 24,056,616 3589903 4,839,484 5447591 15,311,260 67,100,278
DRAR Financial liabilities
N Interest payable - - - - - 372,874 372,874
RifI53R « MfTFFSC Accounts payable,
REMH S accrued expenses and

other liabilities 5,036,339 - - - - 224878 5261217
fTASRIE Derivative financial

instruments 299,935 299,935

BR{TESIES  Debt securities issued 3068218 12,156,149  12,028149  7,589.274 4,869,173 - 39710963
LRAREH Total financial liabilities 8,104,557 12,156,149 12,028,149 7,589,274 4869173 897,687 45,644,989

F 2GR 5k O 5 47 * Total interest sensitivity
gap* 5750867 11900467  (8,438,246)  (2,749,790) 578418

F=ATETA (B0 Interest rate derivatives
SHMEVAH)  (hotional amounts of

net position) (391,432)  (4,870,641) 4,228,957 302,553 370,896
* AFAPTEESBRTANE K17 * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
RBIEFEE LR on the debt securities issued.
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3.4.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

@)

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.

174  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



i AFPTETEISHEA CrL) ()  Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-MABE  ZARBE —ENE
Z=MA 2-F Z1E
-MAW Over over Over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1 year to Over BE
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
TAR TiEn TR TET TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-B-Z5+-A=1-H Asat31December 2020

it Liabilities
R~ HAFE R Accounts payable,

Eftifz accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—HEN R — lease liabilities (4,305) (7,196) (26,149) (116,926) (29,001) (183,577)
BRITfR&IEH Debt securities issued

— A1 E8n — principal portion (6,352,955)  (8,373,273) (26,850,154) (15,127,676)  (4,576,908) (61,280,966)

—fEHn — interest portion (63,796) (139,651) (409,171) (877,881)  (1,660,821)  (3,151,320)

(6,421,056)  (8,520,120) (27,285,474) (16,122,483)  (6,266,730) (64,615,863)

—EpE
) BRE
—MNAA Over Over RENE

Upto  Tmonthto 3months 1yearto Qver £
1 month 3months to 1 year 5years 5years Total
BT ThL Tix T ThL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-F-NE+-A=1—8 Asat31December 2019
il Liabilities
R~ HAFE R Accounts payable,
Eftifz accrued expenses
and other liabilities
— AR — lease liabilities (4,433) (8,866) (31,638) (1,376) - 46,313)
B RITfR&IES Debt securities issued
— A1 E8n — principal portion 431,219 (4394878)  (16459.427) (13320419 (4813657)  (38551,162)
o ) — interest portion (48,921) (219,179) (539704) (1071677 (17897000 (3,669,180)

383,865 (4622922 (17030769  (14.393472)  (6,603357)  (42,266,659)
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iy PTAEIEIESRACRit) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-MARE EAAME -EBE
2=41H B-f ZRE
—MNBA over Over over REBE

Upto 1month  3months 1 year Over BH
1month to 3 months to1year  to5years G Total
TER TEn AR TER TEx TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-B-BE As at 31 December 2020
tZA=t-A
BRTHIEEEER Derivative financial
fTESBTIA instrument settled:
—AHEE — O net basis (1,555) (3,433) 6916 (1,750) 178 356
— PRk — 0N 1055 basis
ek Total outflow (2,690,459) (405,023) (11,118,780) (7,161,645  (1,374,996) (22,750,903)
RARH Total inflow 2,790,353 441,526 11,271,920 7,100,874 1,359,766 22,964,439

98,339 33,070 160,056 (62,521) (15,052) 213,892

=MRE —ENE

£ Eik

—N AW Over over  RENE

Upto 1 month 3 months 1year Over

Tmonth  to3months to1year to 5 years 5years

BT Titn T

HK$'000 HK$'000
T-E-nE As at 31 December 2019
tZA=t-H
BT ELER Derivative financial
fTESRIA: instrument settled:
— BER — on et basis (14,289) (4.715) 54,277 2,254 (19.429) 38099
— PRk — 0N 1055 basis
ek Total outfiow (01767 (1083086  (315595) A6 (1302500 (17,830497)
AL Total inflow 1017,7% 100879 7,2196M 7,090,225 120811 17,719,282

(14,203) (26,922) 18,293 835 (51,119 (73.116)
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(b)

EHH o

T%*E?EE%EHHEE;%
DB RRA

A IR Hf R -
R EA R -

A2 HH

GIREE
Repayable

on demand
TiEn
HK$'000

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

-MBR
Upto
1 month
TiEx
HK$'000

-MASE
E=1R
Over

1 month to
3 months
TR
HK$'000

=MASE
E-F
Over

3 months
to 1 year
TR
HK$'000

-EHE
21§
over

1 year to
5 years
AR
HK$'000

RENE
Over

5 years
THET
HK$'000

Pt
Undated
TiEn
HK$'000

k)
Total
TiEn
HK$'000

F-2-%5+-A=t-H Asat31December 2020
&= Assets
NeRBHAS (BH) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 852,013 8,419,075 10,521,641 2,109,858 - - - 21,902,587
HNEBRRRITRI TR Loans with special 100% guarantee
BABRRERMR under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 1,608 417,514 817,410 7,139,290 27,702,459 6,432 - 36,084,713
TRAR Loan portfolio 869 43,879 100,428 497,497 2,872,425 3,429,980 109,257 7,059,335
EHRR Investment securities
—UATEELITA —Fvocl
HM?EU&E = = - 768342 3,324,648 325972 - 4,418,962
AN FERIT ARG —FVPL - - - - - 265769 265769
—}wﬁﬁﬁm&\ =ty — amortised cost (gross) - 910,963 23,266 386,991 3318342 5,093,796 - 9,733,358
INCEEER Placements with the Exchange Fund = = = - 8571132 7,765,703 - 16,336,835
BREA Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 377,502 377,502
854,490 9,796,431 11,462,745 10,901,978 45,789,006 16,621,883 752,528 96,179,061
il Liabilities
R AR Insurance liabilities - 47,803 92,658 409,151 1,933,551 5,654,913 3,048,895 11,186,971
BRITfRSIES Debt securities issued - 6,452,118 8,373,542 26,841,145 15,396,534 4,845,809 - 61,909,148
- 6,499,921 8,466,200 27,250,296 17,330,085 10,500,722 3,048,895 73,096,119

F=EF-nFt=A=1-H
R

As at 31 December 2019
Assets

gl
Repayable
on demand

HK$'000

—MNAR
Upto

1 month
T
HKS'000

1 month to
3months
BT
HKS'000

3months
101 year
T
HK$'000

1year to
5 ears

HK$'000

RENE
Over
5years
T
HK$'000

R
Undated
T
HK$'000

HKS' OOO

NeRESRE (E5) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 74004 7392939 19206000 1,236,000 - - - 27909183
REda Loan portfolio 1,081 43,631 109,831 465280 2829037 3432242 43531 6,929,633
IEFRT Investment securities
— UATEELITA —Rvocl
2 mka = = 455,954 685001 3,476,143 303,304 - 4920402
— WATETHITARE —FVPL - - - - - - 378,803 378,803
— R BERATIK (25 — amortised cost (r0ss) - - 569967 2229362 4123244 5113388 - 12035961
INCEST Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 12881627 - 12881627
BRER” Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208991 208991
75325  7AM570 20341752 4615643 10428424 21,730,561 631,325 65,264,600
il Liabilities
RIS R Insurance liabilities - 32,808 63,140 276808 1288506 3366221 147415 6,501,639
BRTRSIEH Debt securities issued - 506886 4393081 16463199 13458624 43869173 - 39710963
= 550,694 4456221 16740007 14747130 8235394 1474156 46,212,602
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$80 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group provides
the mortgage insurance cover to participating lenders for
first credit losses, in general, of up to 40% of the property
value of a residential mortgage loan in Hong Kong with
loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at origination, or other
thresholds as specified from time to time. The Group also
provides financial guarantee cover to participating Als up to
50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMEs in Hong
Kong and insurance cover in respect of reverse mortgage
loans originated by participating lenders and secured
on residential properties, life insurance policies and, if
applicable, other assets.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance
of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.
Low mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over
time. This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as
there is a risk of the property value insufficient to cover the
outstanding loan balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers in an
effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance
business and reverse mortgage business. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the financial
strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in accordance
with the approved selection framework. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to participating lenders
via its general insurance subsidiary, the Group relies on the
lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers to
mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.
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Through its life insurance subsidiary, the Group offers annuity
product to personal customers. Insurance risk arises from
an inaccurate assessment of the risks entailed in writing and
pricing an insurance policy. The major insurance risk is the
longevity risk which arises from the possibility that actual
life expectancy of annuitants being longer than expected.
Insurance risk is managed by adopting a prudent set of
assumptions and conducting regular experience studies.
Asset-liability mismatch risk inherent to the annuity product
is due to asset volatility, uncertain annuity liabilities, cash
flow mismatch and currency mismatch between assets and
liabilities. To mitigate such risk, the Group actively monitor
the performance and steadfastly maintains control over
asset allocation.

The general insurance subsidiary and life insurance
subsidiary are subject to the supervision of the Insurance
Authority and are required to observe the relevant
compliance requirements stipulated by the Insurance
Authority.

As at 31 December 2020, if the combined ratio of general
insurance business had increased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$4 million (2019: HK$3 million) lower.
If combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$4 million (2019: HK$3 million) higher.
Combined ratio is calculated by taking the sum of incurred
losses and expenses and then dividing them by net earned
premium.

The following table shows the sensitivity of insurance
liabilities on the life insurance business to potential changes
in mortality and valuation interest rate.
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FoE=FE+=A=+-8
As at 31 December 2020

A mp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
(EYERIES
+ 0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

- 10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

R & AR
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities

FET
HK$’'000
B/ Os)
Increase/
(decrease)

(122,993)
136,892

(366,797)
399,562

R & TR
BoHZED
Percentage
change from
insurance
liabilities

%

B/ O
Increase/
(decrease)

(1.5)
1.7

(4.5)
4.9

T-F-h&+=-A=1+—8H
As at 31 December 2019

FlAmp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
(EYEVIES
+ 0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

- 10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

RBa AR
ST
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities
FATT
HK$'000
&/ Crisb)
Increase/
(decrease)

(73,941)
83,111

(201,611)
217,740

RES 1 57
AT
Percentage

change from
insurance
liabilities

%

&/ Crz>)
Increase/
(decrease)
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3.6. ERIATRAGRHATEE 3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ 2DFEMHIT (@  Fair value estimation
TRINTEAFEREHE The following table shows financial instruments
FAEE)HIANESRT A - recognised at fair value, by valuation method.

F-B-ZE+-A=1-H T hE+-RA=1-H
As at 31 December 2020 Asat 31 December 2019

%R %2R #=R <t ] £ R

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level2
TR TET TET T T Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i Assets
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 797,352 - 797,352 - 200,702 - 200,702
EFRR Investment securities
—WATEEHITA  —FVOCl
HveEks 2,835,020 1,583,942 - 4,418,962 3113170 1,807,232 - 4,920,402
—WATETHE —FVPL
AR 265,769 - - 265,769 378,803 = = 378,803
INCERER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 16336835 16,336,835 - - 188167 12881627
3,100,789 2,381,294 16,336,835 21,818,918 3491973 2,007,934 12,881,627 18,381,534
il Liabilities
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 281,230 - 281,230 - 299,935 - 299,935

EERAATETL  Debtsecurities issued designated as
TARBHE 1T at fair value through proft or loss

FREUIH = = = - = 147,184 - 147,184
- 81230 - 281230 2 7,119 - 47119
TARFE F—ES5FFEN There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
SRITAZRIIZEH®E - IR transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

THEARELHE=]R -
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Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.
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Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3. The placements with the
Exchange Fund are included in Level 3 with fair
value determined by reference to the estimated
rates of investment return for future years,
approximate the carrying value.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as

BitEEZAT - follows:
2019
T
HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 12,881,627 7,734,934
INCESTFR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 2,566,000 4,682,000
Tz IIAR Income from placements with
INCE RIS the Exchange Fund recognised
(FfFE9) in profit or loss (Note 9) 889,208 464,693
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 16,336,835 12,881,627
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

Al :
F-B-BE+-A=1-H FE-NET-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
k& Tk
Carrying AV £-R BB Camjing AE £-F 2R
amount  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount  Fair value Level1 Level 2
Tan TAR TiEx TAn TAT AT TAT TAn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
ERAF Financial assets
AR Investment securities
— IRIRERRIE —amortised cost 9,729,936 10548761 9498464 1050297 12034506 12517183 9913160 2,604,023
SRAK Financial liabilities
BR{IHESIES  Debtsecurities issued 61,909,148 62,937,618 - 62937618 39563779 40,046,257 - 4006257
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FHRORFEHNETH
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
and are stated net of impairment allowance.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.
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Loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. With the 100% guarantee provided
by the Government to cover the default loss of
the loans, no impairment allowance is provided.
Therefore, the carry value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.
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(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.

Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.
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3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries,

. To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

o To support the Group's stability and growth;

o To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adeqguacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.
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Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, which is made
by reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules (BCR), the
calculation basis of capital ratio under the BCR follows
the basis of consolidation for financial reporting with the
exclusion of subsidiaries which are “regulated financial
entities” (e.g. insurance companies). It is because these
entities are supervised by a regulator and are subject to
the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g. solvency ratio) to
support business activities comparable to those prescribed
for banks under the BCR. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2020 2019

F#&x FAETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

A&7 Share capital 7,000,000 7,000,000

g% Reserves 8,630,527 8,460,636

BE% R Impairment allowance 8,985 4,344
Bk : Deductions:

— FRUEHRBE AR — Investment in regulated

gy subsidiaries (8,000,000) (8,000,000)

RAEM B A Total capital base 7,639,512 7,464,980

BAFZEE Capital Adeguacy Ratio 37.3% 30.2%
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3.8. EMAFREMABZITH
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3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position but
are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
and net amounts, as well as provide additional information
on how such credit risk is mitigated.

F-Z=3F+ZA=+-A
As at 31 December 2020
BXEFREGENSRAR
pokelika e
Related amount
not set off in

F=2-nE+t=A=t-H
As at 31 December 2019
iFS %4
HNeT
Related amount
not set off in

the consolidated statement
of financial position*

the consolidated statement
of financial position*

Carrying

Carrying
amounts
onthe
consolidated T a
statement of Derivative
financial financial Cash
position instruments collateral
T FHT iy
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

amounts

on the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
TiEn
HK$'000

FESMIR
Derivative
financial
instruments
TiEn
HK$'000

REHAR AR
Cash Net
collateral amount’
TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000

R Am

amount’
T
HK$'000

SRR Financial assets
EREITES R Positive fair values for
IEATE derivative financial
instruments 797,352 (174,964) (620,969) 1,419 200,702 (175,078) (22,765) 2,859
SRR Financial liabilities
BN ESR Negative fair values for
TARTE derivative financial
instruments 281,230 (174,964) (25,328) 80,938 299,935 (175,078) (68,101) 56,756
# [HABHFARAEZEM S TR R T # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
e | 15X 2 EE L H s B At statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
WEEEFE B ERARNES R liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
B RS similar agreements including CSA.
* BEE R B A E T HE S AR L FT * Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject

to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

4.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. It is required to
exercise judgements in making assumptions and estimates
to incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecast of economic conditions.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2020 is disclosed in Note 18.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. However, the placements with the Exchange
Fund are valued on the basis of valuation techniques which
are determined by reference to the estimated rates of
investment return for future years, approximate the carrying
value. Details of the fair value measurement of financial
instruments are set out in Note 3.6.
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4.3.

4.4,

Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios of general insurance business

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to
the loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and
the local property market in making estimation of the
payments which the Group is required to make in fulfilling
its obligations under the insurance and guarantee contracts.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
ultimate claim amount are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2020 is disclosed in Note 26.

Insurance contract liabilities of life insurance
business

The liability for insurance contracts is based on current
assumptions with a margin for risk and adverse deviation.
The main assumptions used relate to mortality, longevity,
expenses and discount rates, which are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2020 is disclosed in Note 26.
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4.5.

4.6.

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

The deferred tax assets include an amount of
HK$178,112,000 which relates to carried-forward tax losses
of the HKMCA and the HKMCI. The deferred tax assets
mainly relates to tax losses of the annuity business arising
from maintaining prudent statutory reserves based on
actuarial assumptions of the HKMCA and the accounting loss
of the HKMCI resulting from upfront booking of commission
expenses. The Group has concluded that the deferred
assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable
income based on the approved business plans and budgets
for the subsidiary. The insurance business is expected to
generate taxable income in the future. The losses can be
carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

100% guarantee product under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (100% SFGS)

As refer to Note 17, the Group introduced the 100% SFGS
during the year. Under 100% SFGS, eligible loans originated
by the participating lenders are sold to the Group, and the
Government provides a financial guarantee to the Group
on these loans. The loans are classified as financial assets
measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

In formulating the accounting treatment of 100% SFGS,
the Group applied judgment on whether the loans
purchased from the participating lenders as recognised on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
should be de-recognised as a result of the arrangement
with the Government; whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the contract between
the Government and the Group should be considered
together in the determination of accounting treatments; and
whether the contractual cash flow of the loans represent
“solely payments of the principal and interest” (SPPI).

When performing this assessment, the Group considers
several factors including, whether the Group has transferred
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the loans,
whether the contracts between the Government and Group
are considered together and whether the contractual cash
flows met the SPPI criteria etc.
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5. RFAEHE 5. Segment information
AEFFTEEFTENEWER=RERE The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
BRS - —RERRRAFRRLS - HAid general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
55 - Bl R AR & A A BT M & 1T Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
B SS T A - KRB DT R MER SR I BT 7= A A and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
BRESHTHER - B0 AMEER =l considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

SRS -

—RBRREESEERBRE  ZEZRBR General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse

FOEREERILS - ABRKREEFS mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance

W - MER=REFTERRS BIERR includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include

WAl 25 R {555 A AT E H Ml 55 - loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.

TRINTAEHZLE D HBHWA  HBF K& The following tables represent revenue, profit and other

HAh 7R information for operating segments of the Group.

WERER
HAERRS 2 AT
Asset —RRR AFRE Inter-

purchase General Life segment £
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
THT TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE-B-TE+-A=1+-—HILEE Yearended 31 December 2020

AFIBHA Net interest income 440,008 54,613 (6,895) - 487,726
BRI LS5 Net insurance business results - (234,903) (980,309) - (1,215,212)
HiplA Other income 125,348 112,746 777,834 (208,087) 807,841
25N Operating income 565,356 (67,544) (209,370) (208,087) 80,355
AEXH Operating expenses (361,013) (200,740) (161,220) 208,087 (514,886)
KRt RERHEEET Operating profit before impairment 204,343 (268,284) (370,590) - (434,531)
RERS Charge of impairment allowances (4,709) (416) (53) - (5,178)
B ALER/(SH) Profit/(loss) before taxation 199,634 (268,700) (370,643) - (439,709)
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Asset ) A Inter-

purchase General Li segment Bt
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
TATL TATL TATL TATL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HE-E-NET-A=t—HILERE Yearended 31 December 2019

AFISHA Net interest income 446,493 78,069 57) - 523,991
BRI LS5 Net insurance business results - 215,189 (387,458) - (172,269)
HiblA Other income 181,229 58,426 406,869 (181,127) 465,397
ZEWA Operating income 627,722 351,684 18,840 (181,127) 817,119
ZELH Operating expenses (325,179) (189,259) (146,340) 181,127 (479,651)
RITABRINZE R Operating profit before impairment 302,543 162,425 (127,500) - 337,468
BELS) /B (Charge)/write-back of impairment allowances (1,047) m 2 - (934)
B ALER/(SH) Profit/(loss) before taxation 301,496 162,53 (127,498) - 336,534
WERFR

EREBRS AEBEINI4H

Asset — R AFRE Inter-
purchase General Life segment Eit
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-2-FE+ZA=1-H As at 31 December 2020

DERE Segment assets 76,782,095 9,456,458 13,482,802 (1,364,286) 98,357,069
DEH IR Segment liabilities 69,145,740 6,385,999 9,330,540 (1,364,286) 83,497,993

purchase General segment B

and servicing insurance insurance glimination Total
BT TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-hE+-A=t-H As at 31 December 2019
PER= Segment assets 52,762,384 6,962,673 10,012,074 (2,230,797) 67,506,334
PERLE Segment liabilities 45,287,877 3,674,331 5,538,282 (2,230,797) 52,269,743
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6. FEUWAN 6. Interestincome
2020 2019
F#&x T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Loan portfolio 145,147 171,599
RN R R ERITRI T A Loans with special 100% guarantee
B2 BEREERRIR under the SFGS 102,161 =
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 432,570 701,329
IEAR R Investment securities 478,408 597,551
1,158,286 1,470,479
7. FEXZH 7. Interest expense
2020 2019
F#&xT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITERKRE KITHRFIUEH Bank loans and debt securities issued 615,185 836,054
HE AR Lease liabilities 1,094 1,806
HAth Others 54,281 108,628
670,560 946,488
NEFR BT HEBIE670{ZBT(ZFE—N Included within interest expenses are HK$670 million (2019:
F 944127870 ) HAELA A FEZAIT AR HK$944 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
) B R AT © through profit or loss.
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8. {RBEEVLZHIU SR 8. Revenue account for insurance business

2020
— AR AERE i
General Life Ait General Bt
insurance insurance Total insurance insurance Total
TR TR TR THx THEx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ER5 Gross premiums written
(% TR B 26(a)0) (Note and Note 26(a)(i) 2,072,030 2,537,928 4,609,958 542,438 1,630,827 2,173,265
BRBRTE (F%26(a)()) Reinsurance premiums (Note 26(a)() (230,638) - (230,638) 76,223) - 76,223)
1RS840 (R E 26()() Net premiums written (Note 26(a)() 1,841,392 2,537,928 4,379,320 466,215 1,630,827 2,097,042
RAHRENZ ) HE Movement in unearned premiums, net (1,386,597) - (1,386,597) (109,392) - (109,392)
BRERE 24 ()T 26(@)0)  Net premiums earned (Note 26(a)(i) 454,795 2,537,928 2,992,723 356,823 1,630,827 1,987,650
MEFE S8 BAFIER  Netclaims incurred, benefits paid and
REBEEAAGED movement in policyholders' fiabilities
(i3 26/e)) R 26(0)0)  (Note 26fai) and Note 260)) (23959)  (3517,509)  (3,541,468) BA9 OB (2021559
BRBFERBRT AN Net premiums earned after provisions 430,836 (979,581) (548,745) 353,379 (387,287) (33,908)
Aexit Commission expenses (739,074) (518) (739,592) (163,487) (52) (163,539)
&z Levy expenses - (210) (210) - (119) (119
BRRARZBHESE  Reinsurers’ share of commission
expenses 73,335 - 73,335 25,297 - 25,297
BeTHARRIES L Net commission and levy expenses (665,739) (728) (666,467) (138,190) (171) (138,361)
NBREL MRS LA Net premiums earned after
B EIR S 240 commission and levy expenses (234,903) (980,309) (1,215,212) 215,189 (387,458) (172,269)
BEE - Note:
B—BRRRULSHE EREEZZREKRBRELE For general insurance business, gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage
RBITRRE LSS insurance cover on mortgage loans and on reverse mortgage loans.
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H A

kBEINCES TR K E

9. Other income

2020

Tz
HK$'000

Income from placements with

2019
TR
HK$'000

the Exchange Fund 889,208 464,693
IRE R A RIS BT Early prepayment fees and late charges 76 396
LA ZEE Exchange difference 160,812 (37,592)
Gl = /NS T [~ R Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (203,684) (11,936)
AR EZ T A= B Net (loss)/gain on investments at fair
TR (SH),/ WS 550 value through profit or loss (64,597) 33,037
HE AN BT T A FH A Net gain on disposal of investments
S H R T a2 at FvoCl - 75
oS R P B PR AN B R A9 38 R Net gain on disposal of investments
gy at amortised cost 11,074 =
EMRRREWA Dividend income from listed investments 17,998 20,019
HAh Others (3,046) (3,295)
807,841 465,397

TR TARNFERZRIBS TIA NI L
TN R FEXNFE N H TEAF
B855I T (ZF— N4 : 5411,500
FAETT) BRI E R HESHR8AMZE T
(ZZ—NF : HKz51,4007787T) + R (i) E
ZREXN IR BERTE KBNS
AT ETARFESR207{ZET
N 1,400 5 B TT) RIEFE RIAR
FEZETARBHE RTHRFIESFAF
BESMI00 T BT (=T —NF : 3007 %
TTWER) °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
the aggregate of (i) HK$855 million fair value gain on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge (2019: HK$15 million
loss) and HK$849 million fair value loss on the hedged items
(2019: HK$14 million gain); and (i) HK$207 million fair value loss on
derivatives mainly for hedging foreign currency exposures which
are not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2019: HK$14
million) and HK$3 million fair value loss on debt securities issued
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2019: HK$3
million gain).

198 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2020



. BEXH 10. Operating expenses

2020 2019
F#&xT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAMKA Staff costs:
— e RAEF — Salaries and benefits 308,680 272,804
— BRE A — Pension costs
— AEHFITX — defined contribution plans 17,686 15,619
== -Yioken Directors’ fees = =
MEFS 50 Emoluments in respect of directors’
BEESHEMRS other services in connection with
mitF2Me the management of the affairs of
the Company:
— e EMNIEL — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,796 6,761
— RIRRITRIFTVE 2 5K — Retirement scheme contributions 661 654
#r18 (BftE 23) Depreciation (Note 23)
— EANR~ — right-of-use assets 58,862 53,877
— HAth[EE &= — other fixed assets 34,529 27,160
M2 I ARSS Financial information services 12,035 10,962
o [a] % Consultancy fees 26,450 19,237
Mz RS Marketing and advertising expenses 30,263 32,954
DRE Premises 10,409 10,284
EmaELH Other operating expenses 30,961 29,339
W el Hr /N B R B AR TR T AY Recovery of operating expenses from
BoRAREERHMNAELH  special 100% guarantee under the SFGS (22,446) -

514,886 479,651
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1. ZEUnENE 11. Auditor’s remuneration

2020 2019
THBxT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

ZHININE Auditor's remuneration:
— FZARS — Audit services 4,388 3,552
— HMARSS — Other services 2,229 1,710
6,617 5,262

12. Bi{EHRE 12. Charge of impairment allowances
2019
T
HK$'000
REOBERE(Ek) Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances:

— & REEAS (fE3.2(c)) — Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) 1,247 53

— ISR — Investment securities

— LA AN B — amortised cost (Note 3.2(d)(i)
(BfF3E 3.2()(0)) 1,967 13
— AR ER T AEAM — FVOCI (Note 3.2(d)(ii))

2 e (HEE 3.2(d)ii)) 1,024 (46)
— TIFAE (FE3.2(b) — Loan portfolio (Note 3.2(b)) 940 914
5,178 934
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13. PIN

SZEWBBRABIBINA

(a)

13. Taxation

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents:
2020 2019
F#&T F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBERER Hong Kong profits tax
— HEIRII — Current tax 22,397 17,811
—HEFEREE — Adjustment in respect
of prior years 595 2,566
22,992 20,377
12 RE R I Deferred taxation
— AFEIRE — Credit for current period (100,577) (1,304)
(77,585) 19,073

7 HA (8] 77 A A9 4 1T R IR B O ) IR
16.5% (= F — L4 : 16.5%) Kt &
THERBFBHIL R o BIEHIAR
FAE16.5% ( —F — NF : 16.5%)
RE BRI E 2 AL AT ZH -

A OB B TR A B I SR A E
BRETEOELSTMERDT :

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
period. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2019
TAET

HK$'000

MELE (TR), A (Loss)/profit before taxation (439,709) 336,534
#16.5% (ZF—NF : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate
B R ITE of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (72,552) 55,528

ALK Tax effect of:
— BT R U — income not subject to taxation (113,527) (181,027
— DA AT 2 — expenses not deductible

for taxation purposes 95,865 114,813
— RN S S — tax losses not recognised - 8,169
— UAFERE — adjustment in respect

of prior years 595 2,566
— Hfth — other 12,034 19,024
FRIGRE),/ S T Taxation (credit)/charge (77,585) 19,073
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(b) MBFRARAMBINEEA : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2019
FH&T
HK$'000
HEARI IR A (A [ B R = 1) Current tax assets
(included in “Other assets”) 17,847 -
156 JE AR TR £ Deferred tax assets 179,747 79,170
197,594 79,170
4 HAFR I B0 {7 Current tax liabilities 136,745 123,115
FTZEFF+_A=+—BKZ=ZE There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—NFFTZA=+—R  HEEMF=E 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
AR BRI ©
BBIERIN (3 7=) /SR B == 2 H AR D The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
SRENZHWET : the movements during the year are as follows:
i RERE
BIITIH  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances
tax and RESH B
depreciation provisions Tax losses Total
TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-nE—-A—AH As at 1 January 2019 3,969 (4,625) (77,210) (77,866)
ﬂﬁz SN/ (EA) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 4,240 (107) (5,437) (1,304)
“E-NF+=-A=1t—H Asat31December 2019 8,209 (4,732) (82,647) (79,170)

TR MM/ (EA) Charged/(credited) to income

statement 13 (5,125) (95,465) (100,577)

F=-ZE-ZF+=-H=1+—H Asat31December 2020 8,222 (9,857) (178,112) (179,747)

BIEB IR = RRTH B BARKEIR Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that

Bl M A I BT TT 2H8IA © sufficient future taxable profits will be available for

RIS 5 R AI TR o realisation. The unused tax losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.

FTTZNAR - REASERBLERI There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/

B/ NREELEE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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14. BEREYAER

14. Cash and short-term funds

2020 2019

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITME Cash at banks 852,013 74,244

RITEBTFR Time deposits with banks 21,050,574 27,834,939

e kEHRE S Gross cash and short-term funds 21,902,587 27,909,183
N FEHRERBER S Impairment allowance on cash and

(F$£3.2(c)) short-term funds (Note 3.2 (c)) (2,246) (999)

21,900,341 27,908,184

pRUlERERMNE e RERALTA
BREATRIEBE N =D AKARBLER °

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise the following balances with original
maturities of three months or less.

2020 2019

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITH & Cash at banks 852,013 74,244
RITEBTER Time deposits with banks 13,647,782 11,882,939
& RERIEIE Cash and cash equivalents 14,499,795 11,957,183

15. RIWFI B RICH

15. Interest and remittance receivables

PATN S T E 2 WA 8

Interest receivable from:

— F R HE Y — interest rate swap contracts 282,537 254,305
—IEAER — investment securities 107,855 140,873
— RITEHFER — time deposits with banks 15,270 90,816

TIRAA A KRR B K Interest receivable and instalments,
BRI ER in transit from loan portfolio 81,605 32,697
487,267 518,691
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16. FTEERMTE

(a)

PTETEMNA

AEFANATINTET A HAER
W BN

BMIZEI S £ RNFERK B AT
TE LR NG KB H E SN YA o B8
M R A 4 B PA— 4R T 2 7 S IR ER
AR RENEE - RS
Mk RgEmELAGIIR - BRET
BEMEHIN  ZFERZF TS RERA
£ o AREMNEINRNRZZNF R
EERTEREMBEERRNANNE

A - REFARBEFENESZ SN
FREERNG - HLBEMNE R

B o

ETMXCRIANANESH - T
SEVSRRERBIANTERE—D
R EE - MR RBRS F H AR K
NEMENSAXT AL AT
B - Bt - e RS E IR
SELEAMNIEREG o BEE T X KL
TN EFRAOR ) - TET AR
WAEE = EAB R (R =) A (7
MW - STES T ANS LK
BZNIMBE - ERE AR
BE  ROTETASRA~RAfiz
K SME - AIRETET RIBIK S © ATt
BNTETAERNTFERT X -

16. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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a4,/
ZYEH ATE AT(E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional B il notional R fifk
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR FET FHT THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THARBNBLIHESN () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

fTETA for accounting purposes
Fia Interest rate Swaps 13,846,440 14,917 (1,224) 2,977,834 5,008 (#112)
Gkt Currency swaps 2,900,016 190 (224,458) 1842627 15,801 (20,141)
b ) Currency forwards - - - 19,554 167 -
15107 (225,682) 20,976 (24,253)
(i) AEENHTELE (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fil=sEH Interest rate swaps 28,251,058 404,905 (2,001) 18,040,000 133,215 (53980)
S Currency swaps 18,913,027 377,340 (53,515) 14,173,651 4651 (221,702)
782,245 (55,516) 179,726 (275,682)
(i) ALRIRHTETE (i) Cashflow hedge derivatives
dipkit: Currency swaps 269,536 - (32) - - =
- (32) - - -
EWNTAT AR S/ Total recognised derivative
(ff) EX assets/(iabilties) 797,352 (281,230) 200,702 (299,935)
(b) IFiESN (b) Hedging activities
MPTE T BEERAFEN BRI S 7 Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
A eIt EmE - STEIEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
MRS 7F & JJ R R AE o
i) AFEXH (i)  Fair value hedges
REFHAFENHETEBRE The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of
ATRERD X1THRSIEEAN interest rate and currency swaps that are used to
T AE & (A& R 2R B BT B B protect interest rate risk and foreign currency risk
) 2= KL R4 R RS B ) 2= A0 resulting from any potential change in fair value of
Sefitm A o underlying debt securities issued.
(i) BRI (i)  Cash flow hedges
KEFFEHABEI S 3T & The Group hedged the portion of foreign exchange
2 BN R A SN AT B A € B risks arising from variability of cash flows from foreign
TR REH=ERINC currency denominated financial instruments using
MB&EB 5 © currency swaps under cash flow hedge.
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17. R/ ERMFEEFRITVUTHES

BHEAREER

AEATERELRNDEBABRRITYT
MBS BEREERIN - hEEEET %
H/ N YRR D T AT AR 32 A5 7 & 3K
HENEN - WA B D &b FFAME

=
ol °

BIEHITY - TS SRS o
FRHERE - ZES 50T RHAE LA
TEBRERNMARAAEHLEF R -
ZERFARMF2FER - RIEEHRFRIE
EIRE B =3h 700127 7T ©

i SR LBl 2 42 B AL TN O A ) 2 2.5% X
IFE - ZFRRF S EHNRAREA =4
VRERAREX—REERTEIAXE
EBERA -

ZERRIFEFHAZR6O0MA - ERE
WAERETE T D ARERREAR

BN BERFEERNERENTRAR
st/ MR R IB LR IT R T EIELRATIRA -
HETHRFRELHMEER - 8 THIA
BER & - AEFCREPA B WITHRA
B DARE X I 3K B R B A RRE TR AR ok O B
REA » —REERITRIAX - LRBEHK
MBH R (A ) BEZIBA - AEH 7

REEZ m °

jun)

It THE D BERF

R #RY
=

17.

Loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS

The Group introduced special 100% Loan Guarantee under the
SFGS during the year. This measure aims to alleviate the burden
of paying employee wages and rents by small and medium-sized
enterprises which are suffering from reduced income, thereby
help minimise enterprise shutting down and layoffs.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed
by the Hong Kong Government up to a total loan guarantee
commitment of HK$70 billion.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 60 months, with an option principal moratorium for the first
twelve months.

Accordingly, loan default losses are covered by the Government's
guarantee in relation to loans with special 100% guarantee under
the SFGS and no impairment allowance is recognised in view of the
minimal default risk of the Government. All loan interest received
is set aside to meet the funding costs, general operating and
administrative expenses in relation to the purchase and servicing
of the loans of the Group. The remaining balance of the interest
received, if any, will be passed to the Government. The Group is
responsible for the operation of the product.
2020 2019
FATT
HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

Loans with special 100%

guarantee under the SFGS

36,084,713 =
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18. AP EHEN 18. Loan portfolio, net

(a)

BFRASRKRE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2020 2019
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEZBIIRAEE Residential mortgage portfolio 4,093,019 4,910,217
ERBEREE Non-mortgage portfolio
BT Infrastructure loans 2,796,528 1,817,052
FAM (RIHR 0 B 23 70 5T ) B2 IR 3R Hire purchase (previously
named as finance lease)
receivable 164,132 193,029
EAth Others 5,656 9,335
7,059,335 6,929,633
DIFORE K % (Ff)E3.2(b)) Allowance for loan impairment
(Note 3.2(h)) (2,456) (1,588)
7,056,879 6,928,045
RHRER SIS RRAE HARE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
BARSERNBOLLAT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2020 2019
RORE R % 25 A Total allowance for loan
HEBIHNE DL impairment as a percentage
of the gross loan portfolio 0.03% 0.02%
EE BRI FOR A B - EEEHA R Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
#) B BIT{E ° into account the current market value of the collateral.
2020 2019
RETTHES BE 5 TR Gross impaired loan portfolio
BE BB DL as a percentage of gross
loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%
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(b) EERA S PIBYFAMIRBHRER (b) Hire purchase receivable included in loan portfolio
2020
XN WKFEL RREAEH RIEA TS
FIIE FIE WA RIS
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
TER TERT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RURERIN Amounts receivable:
— —FNN — within one year 18,982 2,833 21,815
——FEERFN — after one year but within
five years 58,704 8,262 66,966
—a1FRE — after five years 86,446 7,077 93,523
164,132 18,172 182,304
2019
SIS ARk A B /)
RIINE 7 SIA
Present value Interest
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FHT FHT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIUREFRIN - Amounts receivable:
—— &N — Within one year 21,004 3,829 24,833
——FFEERFN — after one year but within
five years 67,048 11,504 78,552
— hFfRE — after five years 104,977 11,238 116,215
193,029 26,571 219,600
AN ER 5 A Tk R T R MR R A S BT R No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for hire
AR ° purchase receivable.
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19. IEHRH

(a)

UaFEEATTAEMBLER
RAIEHIR G

19. Investment securities

Investment securities at FVOCI

2020 2019

FTEx TAET
HK$"000 HK$'000

BN FEDIIR A 155 IE S

Debt securities at fair value

THRELET Listed in Hong Kong 1,102,806 1,101,818

TEHEBEIINET Listed outside Hong Kong 1,732,214 2,011,352

JEEM 1,583,942 1,807,232
MAFEZHITAEM ST  Total FVOCI securities

W 25 H9IE 25 5 5T 4,418,962 4,920,402

AR AT AR A 2 H KR #IE
HFBERFILS HREHINERE
RARE RS - MAERFAE R
FRFUE 572 Ml SR A B AR E s
BN RERLESRA MK
Il o

BARITIA BN DA R FEZL T

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as

AE M2 RS IS follows:
2020 2019
FET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R E M B Banks and other financial institutions 3,411,319 3,941,969
NN Corporate entities 847,991 822,285
H SR Central governments 159,652 156,148
4,418,962 4,920,402
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LA B AL 1 A E At 4 E M s RO IIE The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:
FHERBHAINT
2019
T T
HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 4,920,402 5,091,664
3840 Additions 623,344 1,679,612
HE K EE Sale and redemption (1,136,404) (1,846,295)
P4 Amortisation 779 (645)
NFEEZD) Change in fair value 30,385 13,610
SNTOCH ZAN Exchange difference (19,544) (17,544)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 4,418,962 4,920,402
BRBE  ERRERAEREFEEIN Information on the impairment, credit quality and the
B B F T BOE 3.2(d) 2% - Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(d).
b) LIAFETATTNIRRANESIEE (b) Investment securities at FVPL

2020 2019

TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BAFE KK R 5 PTESE Exchange-traded funds and real estate
EEREFEREREES investment trusts at fair value

TEBLT Listed in Hong Kong 265,769 378,803
AFEZM T ARZAIUES  Total FVPL securities
=kl 265,769 378,803
REFE S RIHR AT E A The Group classifies other investment securities in exchange-
ANFETHIT A H A4 U SR E R traded funds and real estate investments trusts at FVPL,
RGMEZHS REWFRREEE which do not quality for measurement at either amortised
SEHMIEFIR A DR NANFEE cost or FVOCI.

feit Affizs
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(c)

AR BT AR ESAIE S A )
BRI -

The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:

F—H—H As at 1 January 378,803 543,612

30 Additions 1,565 —

= Sale (44,989) (193,052)

NF{EEZD) Change in fair value (69,564) 28,288

SNTSCH ZEN Exchange difference (46) (45)

F+=—HA=+—8H As at 31 December 265,769 378,803
F PR R AR TR B IE 3538 % (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

TR AH PR AR DI IR B0 (51 551U 55

Debt securities at amortised cost

TESBEM Listed in Hong Kong 6,704,824 7,270,898
TEBHEINET Listed outside Hong Kong 2,032,137 2,193,184
8,736,961 9,464,082

LT Unlisted 996,397 2,571,879
T2 B RR AN 1 R A ULE S Gross investment securities

R B at amortised cost 9,733,358 12,035,961
JEBEAS ARSI K BYIIE A R A R Impairment allowance on investment

BB % (ME3.2(d) securities at amortised cost

(Note 3.2(d)) (3,422) (1,455)

LA AN SR BYIE % 527 Total amortised costs securities 9,729,936 12,034,506

RERARTRANFEATIREZER
B 2B R 9 K IR
ZN Il N

o UHEBEAWBIRNHFE RN
WA AT HE : &

o  RE|SAHFZFEIRERHNI
ERETD2HATIMNAEM
NMEEARSEHIF R -

The Group classifies investment securities as at amortised
cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the asset is held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.
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2 R ATHLADZE R 5 A He e £ A A 71 i Amortised cost securities are analysed by categories of
EOpNE - (N issuers as follows:
2019
T T
HK$'000
R1T M E M RS Banks and other financial institutions 1,927,019 4,064,177
NEI Corporate entities 6,113,080 6,270,963
NEHM Public sector entities 356,827 358,587
FR R BT Central governments 1,336,432 1,342,234
9,733,358 12,035,961
TR PR EH K AN 51 i B UE 55 &9 AR S A% A 40 The movement in amortised cost securities is summarised
T as follows:
2020 2019
TExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—A—H As at 1 January 12,035,961 11,548,275
340 Additions 773,375 2,176,283
o E K ke Sales and redemption (3,025,969) (1,631,368)
HE4H Amortisation (1,188) (5,492)
AN SE 5, Z 5T Exchange difference (48,821) (51,737)
F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 9,733,358 12,035,961
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20. INCEETBER

REABEBEBF S LA RIZIERRKE AT
BINCES TR D ENIEEURAFEEL
TARENESRMET FTZE_FF+=
A=+—H NCEESGFERERN1631Z
BT (ZE—NF - 129128 7T) - RS
BAAR1ABIZHBE T (ZE— NF 122125
) M EFE2RAERIKE 21HE R KR
BRI o

INCEESTFHR/RATINCESHIRTAE
MK AE  HIUEREHRH -
INCEESTFHREREIZFER - SR RA
AME ' BEREDBFEZRABEITERNF
MEHERER EFE=ZFHBRFREN
FH AR (TR N0%)ITE » LRSS E R
M MK KAETME @ EIRETIIRE
REER AN EIREEE -

20. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2020, the
balance of the placements with the Exchange Fund amounted to
HK$16.3 billion (2019: HK$12.9 billion), comprising a total principal
sum of HK$14.8 billion (2019: HK$12.2 billion) plus income earned
and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the reporting date.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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21. MEATIRHE

TE2E_FEFE+_RA=+—H xRN
FEMBATFENAT -

EMK LR
Place of
incorporation

ERREERERAR A
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited Hong Kong

BRRHREBRAR B
HKMC Insurance Limited Hong Kong
ABESERAT B
HKMC Annuity Limited Hong Kong

ERRIBILSRA (£ -) AR i
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* Hong Kong

Bauhinia MBS Limited* FEES
Cayman Islands

HKMC Premier Solutions Limited? B
Hong Kong

* BREEECARRZIDH R XLERRHE
SMRAMER - XENRNEERARFE
REOVZBIE AT RITARL - MAR B IR
BRAXLNRRRD

A ZABRT F—NFMAEMKL °

21. Interests in subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2020 are as follows:

AN

HEAT

HAH (HERKHBA)

(HEKEA) PR

PR 8 ERE:S

ERITRAR R4 E1E BN% Percentage of

(R #9231 Percentage of shares held by

Particulars of issued and shares heldby  the Company's

FEIS fully paid up share the Company subsidiary
Principal activities capital (Class of shares) (orits nominee)  (or its nominee)
NAEEFTIEERERER 1,000,008 (EER) 100% TER
EERE - REL/NMARR  HKS$1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A

HAERRS  RRERS
Wbz o e
oz

Mortgage purchase and
servicing, servicing of
outstanding microfinance
loans, and origination of
reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage loans,
allfor the Group

—fRRR % 3,000,000,0007% 70 (E1ER%) 100% TEHR
General insurance business HK$3,000,000,000 (Ordlinary) N/A
KRR L% 5,000,000,000 %70 (E1E%) 100% TEH
Long term insurance business  HK$5,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HERE 1,000 87 (LEk) TER TER
NO business activity HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
HEFLED 1,000% 7 (LEk) TEH TEH
NO business activity US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
AAEAREEHERLS AR 10087T(E@Rk) ™ER ER
% kAKX HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A N/A

Provision of marketing and

business development

services and related facilities

to the Group

* These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares
in these companies which are set up for the operation of mortgage-backed
securitisation programmes guaranteed by the Company.

A The company was incorporated in April 2019.
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22. FfHEIN » HEREMT

22. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

UNGIE= 35 Corporate club debentures 910 830
1= 53 S35 I R CSA receivable 27,061 72,853

EZIREFEENE KITIES Receivables from securities issued for
A Rz BRI settlement after the reporting date 101,122 1,002,223
AR IR I Other receivable 275,637 227,891
H A= Other assets 59,641 33,552
464,371 1,337,349

23. EEHR=

23. Fixed assets

i) BEEHF=Ezh (i) Movement in fixed assets
BRARNL
W E B PHAERE
Right-of-use FRRES
assets on Office
leased HFEWLEE  equipment, AE
properties Leasehold furniture B Motor B&
forown use improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TR TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-NE—A—RAMKA Costasat1lanuary 2019 105,090 38,704 12,759 218,355 775 375,683
ol Additions - 6,508 1,484 30,345 - 38,337
/e Written off/dlisposals - (394) (229) - - (623)
F-E-hFE+-A=T—H Costasat31December 2019
HERA 105,09 44,818 14,014 248,700 775 413397
# Additions 194,282 16,675 489 29476 - 240,922
e/ e Written off/disposals (90,481) - - (5,020) - (95,501)
F-F-FE+-F=1-H Costas at 31 December 2020
HRA 208,891 61,493 14,503 273,156 775 558,818
T-2-N5-A-AR Accumulated depreciation as
eyl at 1 January 2019 = (30,551) (8,723) (182,590) (745) (222,609)
118 (B)£10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (53,877) (4,898) (1,693) (20,539) (30) (81,037)
/e Written off/cisposals - k) 81 - - 113
F-E-NE+-RA=1+—H Accumulated depreciation as
MRIHTIR at 31 December 2019 (53,877) (35,417) (10,335) (203,129) (775) (303,533)
IR (K7 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (58,862) (5823) (177 (26,935) - 93,391)
s/ Le Written off/disposals 90,481 - - 5,020 - 95,501
FIZoREF-A=+-F Accumulated depreciation as
WRIHHR at 31 December 2020 (22,258) (41,240) (12106)  (225,044) (775 (301,423)
F-F-FE+-A=1+-H Asat31December 2020
XA Cost 208,891 61,493 14,503 273,156 775 558,818
29718 Accumulated depreciation (22,258) (41,240) (12,106) (225,044) (775) (301,423
K2 & Net book amount 186,633 20,253 2,397 48,112 - 257,395
F-E-NE+-A=+—H Asat31December2019
XA Cost 105,090 44318 14,014 248,700 775 413,397
21471 Accumulated depreciation (53877) (35,417) (10,335) (203,129) (775) (303,533)
K4 Net book amount 51,213 9,401 3,679 45571 - 109,864
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(i) FHEE Leases
25 R K 51 7R B X 18 BT Y & 2 40 The statement of financial position shows the following
s amounts relating to leases:
2019
FH&TT
HK$'000
FRNRT — &EF Right-of-use assets — Buildings 186,633 51,213
izt Lease liabilities
— —FN — within one year 35,246 44,402
— B —F — over one year 140,488 1,371
175,734 45,773

FAEE F£HNRE =N
194,282,000 T (—F—haF : ) °

ZERBKRITERERN ML
T

ERIATHIA — BT

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were
HK$194,282,000 (2019: nil).

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

2019

TET
HK$'000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use

assets — Buildings 58,862 53,877
FEZH Interest expense 1,094 1,806
F=F—_=F  fHAILSREE;M The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was HK$54,731,000
$954,731,000% T( = & — JL F ¢ (2019: HK$53,198,000).

53,198,000 7T ) ©

AEFAERETHAE - MEHEE
B R 7] - BH T AT A 4R AE
HEE

NAEHE iz EE AR - Yl ER
W BBEARLKIEEER - KED
SR RZEEFERNA BARETT
£ - MARAERAEAEA ©

The Group leases various offices and rental contracts are
mainly made for fixed periods of 6 years but may have
extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options are included in property
leases of the Group for operational flexibility. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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24, MfTFIR

AT SR A FE

24. Interest payable

2020 2019
TAET
HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

Interest payable from:

— BRITHRFIUES — debt securities issued 292,172 320,288
— MR HE £ — interest rate swap contracts 49,135 44,345
— HAh R — other liabilities 1,194 8,241

342,501 372,874

25. BIfFIRIN R FF 32 R A A T

f5i

25. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities

2020 2019

FHExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

R7AS R IR R R 45 FF =2 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,520,339 291,494
H bt {52 Other liabilities 7,872,016 4,866,088
HE MG Lease liabilities 175,734 45,773
E ik Other provision 73,309 57,862
9,641,398 5,261,217

Hip i EZRIER/ DA BRITT
AL B R AT R R B R 5 R IR FU(E
kR B R R AR FF 2)3,330,216,0007 70 (=
T — R 4F : 379,717,0005 7T ) (Ff3E32) -
SkERT -2 =F+_-_AK_F=FN
F— ABBFMEENRIB RIS H M
SR ¥R 5 A28 E AN 4,541,800,000 %8 7T (= =F
— L4 © 4,486,371,000787T) ©

Other liabilities represented mainly the guarantee fee and fund
received (net of claims and related expenses) of HK$3,330,216,000
(2019: HK$379,717,000) under the special concessionary
measures of the SFGS (Note 32) and the deferred consideration
of HK$4,541,800,000 (2019: HK$4,486,371,000) used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004.
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26. (REEFIHERBIREFT = 26. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2020 2019
] BRE A Bk AR

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TR TEx THT FEx AT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—RRRLS : General insurance:
RARARERBARERES Provision for unearned premiums
and guarantee fees 2,989,183 369,205 2,619,978 1,435,165 201,784 1,233,381
RRBRES Provision for outstanding claims:
— BB/ (BRE) BT — claims reported/(recovery) 109 54 55 1,895 389 1,506
—EFERRHRRR — claims incurred but not reported 59,603 8,243 51,360 37,09 6,818 30,278
59,712 8,297 51,415 38,991 7,207 31,784
3,048,895 377,502 2,671,393 1474156 208991 1,265,165
LSRR Life insurance:
REFEE AR Policyholders' liabilities 8,138,076 - 8,138,076 5,027,483 = 5,027,483
11,186,971 377,502 10,809,469 6,501,639 208991 6,292,648
(a) —RRERPEML S (a) Generalinsurance
i) RHEHPRERERZAKRZE (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
oMM T premiums and guarantee fees
2020
] BRE A 4
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross ~ Rel Net
TAx TEx AR TR ] TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-A-H As at 1 January 1435165 201,784 1233381 1290372 166383 1,123989
BURERRE: (fifi8) Premiums written (Note 8) 2,072,030 230,638 1,841,392 542,438 76,203 466,215
B AR (fiT£8) Premiums earmed (Note 8) (518,012)  (63217)  (454,795)  (397,649) (082  (35682)
F+-A=t+-H As at 31 December 2,989,183 369,205 2,619,978 1,435,165 20178 1,233,381
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(i) RRERRETHIMWOT (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims
2020
2] BRE A £
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
T Fin T Thn TAL b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-A-A As at 1 January 38,991 7,207 31,784 0472 5,135 27337
BRER Claims paid (6,397) (1,336) (5,061) (2,446) (698) (1,743)
ElEER Claims recovery 1471 738 733 304 293 2751
B4 /(E3) & (HiE8) : Claims incurred/(written back) (Note 8);
—BRRER — claims reported 3,140 263 2,871 (939) 795 (1,734)
— BFEEBRRRER — claims incurred but not reported 22,507 1,425 21,082 6,360 1,682 5,178
25,647 1,688 23,959 591 24771 3444
F+-p=1+-H As at 31 Decamber 59,712 8,297 51,415 3891 7,207 31784
(b) AF{REE (b) Life insurance
i) REBFEAARESSN (i) Analysis of movement in policyholders’ liabilities
2020
E2H] BRE 1} £}
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Thx FhEL ThT THr BT FATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 5,027,483 - 5,027,483 3,284,529 - 3,284,529
BRBREREMFE Claims and benefits paid (406,916) - (406,916) (275,160) - (275,160)
BEEREREEREA  Claimsincurred and movement in
AEE () policyholders' liabilties (Note 8) 3,517,509 - 3517509 2018114 - 2018114
F+=ZA=1+—H As at 31 December 8,138,076 - 8138076 5,027,483 - 5,027,483
(i) FERERAGTITHIGE (i) Key assumptions and reserving approach

NTRBERREL - £ RIR
SRS RER - FEFR
RIFEDFFRI—IR

For long term insurance contracts, economic
assumptions are continually reviewed and updated.
Non-economic assumptions are reviewed at least
annually.

B AR 2N IARE & R RRES Based on generally accepted actuarial principles and in

Z 1M B ECR R b (KB 7
FRETE) ANIE P - 54 Al
AGEFRBETERBEEITEDR
ARFHEZEATEE - TR
NRRINENE

accordance with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Rules of the
Insurance Ordinance, the valuation of individual life
liabilities was carried out using the Modified Net Level
Premium Valuation method, subject to a minimum of
the surrender value.
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(iif)

(iv)

FRHFEE
FET- %

fF FAHKA18%E T- R K (R I T
R ERIERAINAE) » HiE
SEMITETEBRIE L NTF
RZEITIR15% MR TN F
—EFE_FF T EXRKXRH
HKAOT 24 9 HKA18 » & DA (E F
ABEHEREMRRITER
TEk N o BIEFTERIL - THA
Za A FTIE N - S BURRK 7 fR
#EAN3IZABTT

K

RIEFERR AL (KB A GRE
FE)HNDE3FK (B 5t B
HIEitRER ) -

B

BEXHRIRETRNEAEZL
MRz T-F_FF- i
SXHRIRAAIEMN - BIRE
AL N 1.321278 7T -

fhERIRE

HENEKENEA> KRS
TEBBETIFHRIF
JE MR AR P T B R R K as
REIRNLLBI - TEE B R
‘1+3¢WJ”’]57—E’]L§FETEEW
R THERH AR )
HESHHTHERHLIT3
FRMEE R BERA KX
WFHESL - WHEAREE
BRI (KERABEE) A
MHIREBEEZ LRGN
HiR5l - MEMERA%(ZF
—NEF 1 4%) °

(iii)

(iv)

Non-economic assumptions
Mortality

HKA18 mortality table adjusted by mortality
improvement and selection loading is used, with
loading of 15% for provision for adverse deviations
on top of best estimate mortality assumptions. The
mortality table is revised in 2020 from HKAO1 to
HKA18 with updated future mortality improvement
and selection loading. The life expectancy is increased
under the new assumption with the insurance liabilities
increased by HK$300 million.

Lapse

In accordance with Section 13 of the Hong Kong
Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules (i.e. no allowance is made for the voluntary
discontinuance).

Renewal expense

The renewal expense assumption is based on internal
experience study. The renewal expense assumption
is increased in 2020 and the insurance liabilities has
increased by HK$132 million.

Valuation interest basis

The valuation interest rate is the weighted proportion
of yield on existing assets and reinvestment yield
expected of assets bought within 3 years of valuation
date and 3 years after valuation date. The reinvestment
yield of assets bought within 3 years of valuation date
is obtained by taking the average of yield on current
assets and reinvestment yield of assets expected to be
bought 3 years after valuation date. This methodology
is in compliance with the Hong Kong Insurance
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Rules and the
actuarial guidance provided by the Actuarial Society of
Hong Kong. The valuation interest rate is 4% (2019: 4%).
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27. EATTRSFIES

27. Debt securities issued

2020

TR
HK$'000

2019
TAET
HK$'000

2 38 8 PR 2R Bl ik 9 45 S50E 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
R HIG MTN 17,480,014 10,308,191
WA AN RS55S4 Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 17,480,014 10,308,191

EEAXRIE FLUIME R F  Debt securities designated as hedged

RS IE 5 items under cash flow hedge
H HAfG MTN 271,205 =
HEE NI R A H AT xR Total debt securities designated as

RS A A0 hedged items under cash flow hedge 271,205 =
BEAX R E HLLAFENF Debt securities designated as hedged

R SSIE 5 items under fair value hedge
RS TR ETITRIGRS DIP notes 1,222,216 1,733,270
i MTN 42,935,713 27,522,318
EE NI ORI A H AN FEX R Total debt securities designated as

RS 5 S 30 hedged items under fair value hedge 44,157,929 29,255,588
EEAN AR FEELIT AR Debt securities designated as

W R S5k 35 at fair value through profit or loss
15 TE RTINS DIP notes - 147,184
EE N AN EEZAIT AR Total debt securities designated as

R SIE A S50 at fair value through profit or loss - 147,184
B AITHRS IS LB Total debt securities issued 61,909,148 39,710,963

FEREARIT(ZE—NFE: L) THHRH
N A A FEEA I AR SRS IE
% ZEMSUEHFZ A FEEHRTEE
FEHRE - FZE_FF+=_F=1+—
B LTINS EE N AN FES
it AfimEmiate FTZE—NF
+ZA=+—8 " TYRBHIATEEUR
FEZEITA BRSNS RO GIKEERA
SHRESANE TEHE MMRAFFE
AT £407) 36,816,000/ 7T °

ZEEE N ARFETIRN SR AR
REAREH 2 ERRRED S REMEXN

BT e

During the year, no debt securities (2019: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. As at 31 December 2020, there were no financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition was HK$36,816,000 lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in

the credit risk of the Group for those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value.
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BATERSIUEHFRN AT The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
2019
T
HK$'000
FT—HR—H As at 1 January 39,912,212 37,494,823
KAT Issuance 58,372,069 31,890,989
R TEE[E] Less: Redemption (37,027,251) (29,474,462)
SNTIOL H ZE AR Exchange difference 5,224 862
HNMNE B Total nominal value 61,262,254 39,912,212
RPEAEITLEED Unamortised portion of discount (78,166) (74,974)
NEEIFE Fair value adjustment 725,060 (126,275)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 61,909,148 39,710,963
REERKITHRES Notes issued during the year comprise:
RHEAR
MTN
FET
HK$'000
BEATEHEE Amount issued at nominal value 58,372,069
B U ER IR Consideration received 58,244,045
FTE B A ATH G551 5519 B A 5 B T 7 All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
RE - MATERFRFIES & ERE K Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
EEneREERERE working capital and refinancing.
28. Ix& 28. Share capital
2019
FHIT
HK$'000
BRITRHR Issued and fully paid:
2012 % & AR 2 billion ordinary shares 7,000,000 7,000,000
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29. 5FXEALITIMEKXRRS

@)

A E R 2 BB A B e BTSN
LEEMERAMA(TE-—NEFT
A — B &R 9 e M B A Bl BASNE
EEERASOMEAR) - FH - K
SASHEREALITUHARNER
RHMT -

SHERXIMEESERNRZE
ENHIEL

() AEBATFAFERGSITEF
REHZFAIREHITE RE
ERERSAEESERBAN
ZA B0 AB T (ZE—N
F 20057487

(i) ANEHFAREE>£24007
BIT(ZZF—NF 1 2040775
T)EIEE EANBBESE
BRIERR TR

(i) ARBTARFEEHN60TET
“E-hFORFBT)TE
BRER  FARZZAOR

R

vy @REELTABEIINCESA
ARRRBHBAER T-F
—EE+ HFERAI0ZE T
REZE0LZETL T2
ZE+ A=+ —BHEARE
ERFREUTNE(ZF—N
FMEHE) R

v SEEELTRBLINCESH
LA AN A RN AFSING &
BHESK200{ZETIENRA -
BN RBA R R REEF
TAFMFINER - AR A
BEABRBTBFERANEA
MEFINRSIENERAE - B
B ARTFEEFE R ANE
fFRRE TR —REAKF o

29. Material related party transactions

@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are wholly
owned by the Government for the account of the Exchange
Fund (described before 1 October 2019 as Financial
Secretary of Hong Kong as controller of the Exchange Fund).
During the year, the Group entered into or maintained
material transactions with the related parties as follows:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

() the Group paid a total fee amount of HK$1.8 million for
the year (2019: HK$2.0 million) to the HKMA in respect
of custodian and clearing agent services from the
Central Moneymarkets Unit;

(i) the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$24.0
million for the year (2019: HK$20.4 million) in respect of
secondees from the HKMA,;

(i) the Company paid a back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million for the year (2019: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA,

(iv) the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
increased its revolving credit facility to the Company to
HK$80 billion in October 2020 from HK$30 billion, and
there was no outstanding balance and accrued interest
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil for both); and

(v)  the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
maintained its commitment to inject additional funds
up to HK$20 billion in aggregate into the Company as
equity for the 